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Notice

Forward-Looking Statements Disclaimer

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements concerning our company’s future business prospects and business profitability, which are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,”
“expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “believe,” “continue,” or their negatives or other variations, or by discussions of strategy that involve risks
and uncertainties. These statements are based on current expectations, projections, and assumptions and are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties, and
assumptions. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements due to numerous factors, including, among others,
changes in the economic and business conditions in India and other countries, changes in the sectors in which our company operates, fluctuations in the equity
markets, and regulatory or political developments in India or elsewhere. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements
and are advised to consider the risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements. Neither
the company nor any of its representatives shall have any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from any use of this Annual Report or its contents due to any
forward-looking statements.
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Driving Sustainable Energy Solutions
for a Resilient Future

India’s energy sector stands on the cusp
of a historic transformation. Ambitious
targets such as 500 GW of non-fossil
capacity by 2030, coupled with initiatives
like the Revamped Distribution Sector
Scheme (RDSS) and Smart Meter National
Programme, are reshaping how power is
produced, delivered, and consumed. At the
heart of this shift lies a commitment to
sustainability, self-reliance, and equitable
access to energy.

RMC Switchgears has consistently aligned
itself with these national priorities, evolving
beyond its traditional electrical enclosures
business into a holistic, innovation-driven
energy solutions provider. We are engineering
tomorrow by building capabilities across
Solar EPC, innovative infrastructure,
advanced electrical products, and backwards-
integrated manufacturing. Our integrated
solar module and mounting structure facility
will add significant resilience and efficiency
to our projects. Meanwhile, our innovative,
loT-enabled products are designed to future-
proof distribution networks and empower
customers with actionable energy insights.

In FY25, we achieved key milestones that
validate our strategic approach. From
securing prestigious rooftop solar orders
and large underground cabling projects in
Gujarat to establishing a strong pipeline in
transformers and feeder pillars, RMC has

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

demonstrated both its technical strength and
market trust. Furthermore, our investments
in the Solar Module Manufacturing Plant and
the incorporation of new subsidiaries reflect
our commitment to vertical integration and
value chain resilience, two vital pillars for
sustainable growth in a dynamic market.

As we look ahead, our focus will be on
scaling our smart grid capabilities, expanding
renewable capacity, and developing new-age
energy systems that support India’s clean
energy ambitions. Our profound commitment
to good governance, stakeholder inclusivity,
and a culture of continuous innovation will
underpin this.

We believe that engineering tomorrow is
not just about adopting new technologies,
but about empowering change and bringing
sustainable, intelligent, and impactful energy
solutions to communities, industries, and
the nation at large. By staying true to these
values, RMC Switchgears will continue to
be a trusted partner in India’s green growth
journey, building a future that is cleaner,
smarter, and more resilient for generations
to come.

RMD>

Page 4



CORPORATE REVIEW

et

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 5

RMC Switchgear Limited Page 5




|RMD>

SWITCHGEARS LTD

RMC Switchgears Limited

CORPORATE REVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Letter from the Chairman's Desk
Reflecting on FY20e25 - A Year of
Consolidation and Strategic Progress

Dear Shareholders,

| hope this letter finds you in good
health and high spirits. As we close
the financial year 2024-2025, | take
this opportunity to share with you

our reflections on the year that has
passed, the progress we have made
across key business segments, and the
direction we are setting for the future.
It has been a year of consolidation

and capacity building, where strategic
intent has taken tangible shape and set
the stage for scale, sustainability, and
stakeholder value creation.

A Year of Meaningful Growth

FY2025 was marked by significant
financial and operational progress.
Our consolidated revenues grew 84%
year-on-year, reaching ¥318.2 crore,
compared to X172.6 crore in FY2024.
Profit after tax more than doubled,
growing 111% to X31.5 crore, and
Earnings per Share (EPS) rose to
%30.31, a strong indicator of improved

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

profitability and return potential.
While gross margins stood at 29.8%

- reflecting a change in revenue mix
- EBITDA margin remained healthy
at 16.7%, underpinned by better
operating leverage and improved cost
efficiencies.

We view these numbers not just as

a sign of strong demand or project
execution, but also as a reflection of

a more balanced and strategically
diversified business model. FY2025
represented a turning point in RMC'’s
growth trajectory - one where we
matured into a full-spectrum, multi-
vertical utility infrastructure Company.

Widening Our Horizons - From
Enclosures to Energy Solutions

Historically known for our expertise

in electrical enclosures, we are now
becoming a platform that delivers
integrated infrastructure solutions in
energy, smart metering, electrification,
and clean energy. This evolution is
anchored in four operating verticals:

Page 6
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Chairman & Managing Director

Electrical Products, Electrical EPC,
Solar EPC, and Solar Products.

Each vertical has shown promise and
delivered milestones this year. On the
product side, our meter box and low-
voltage enclosure segment continued
to expand, aided by policy tailwinds
from the national smart meter rollout.
On the EPC front, we secured several
large orders, including:

o Rooftop solar EPC order worth
3320 crore, including ¥91 crore of
0&M contracts

o 3108 crore cabling and RMU order
from Gujarat

° MAHAGENCO’s 46+17 MW EPC
order under the MSKVY 2.0
scheme

Importantly, we laid the foundation

for the next wave of growth with the
Bhoomi Poojan of our 1 GW Solar
Module Plant and incorporated two key
subsidiaries: RMC Solar One Pvt. Ltd.
and RMC Green Energy Pvt. Ltd. These
moves are not merely expansions -



they reflect a shift in how we think
about vertical integration, clean energy
leadership, and scalable innovation.

A More Resilient
Financial Position

Beyond topline expansion, FY2025 was
also about fortifying our balance sheet.
Our shareholders’ equity increased by
over X46.66 crore, strengthening the
financial foundation required for larger
projects and upcoming capex. The
current ratio stood at 1.77, reflecting
healthy liquidity, and our capital
efficiency metrics improved across
working capital and asset turns.

We continue to exercise prudence in
cost control, procurement optimisation,
and capital deployment. These
principles are critical as we expand into
capital-intensive areas, such as solar
manufacturing and infrastructure EPC.

RMC Switchgear Limited

CORPORATE REVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sustainability, Governance,
and Purpose

At RMC, growth without purpose is
never our goal. We are deeply aware

of the responsibility we carry as
contributors to India’s energy transition
and infrastructure development.

Our investments in solar capacity,
including rooftop, on-grid, and smart
hybrid systems, are aligned with
India’s renewable energy targets

and the broader national mission of
achieving energy access, efficiency, and
electrification.

We also advanced our Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG]) journey in
small but meaningful ways - expanding
our solar footprint, incorporating
clean-tech subsidiaries, and
introducing more responsible practices
across procurement and waste
handling. Our CSR programme, focused
on developing rural schools in Chaksu,
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continues to grow and positively impact
lives in tangible ways.

During the year, we mourned the
passing of Mr. Kuljit Singh Popli, who
served as an independent director
from July 2024 to April 2025. Mr. Popli
was a distinguished leader in India’s
renewable energy sector, bringing deep
insight, clarity, and commitment to our
Board. His guidance helped shape our
early steps into the clean energy space,
and his legacy will endure in the vision
we carry forward.

Setting the Stage for the
Next Phase

Looking ahead, our strategic roadmap
is firmly grounded in three key pillars:
growth, governance, and green
energy. By FY2030, we aim to scale
our revenue to ¥5,000 crore - a goal
that will be enabled by expanding our
solar capacity, participating in large
infrastructure bids, and deepening our
relationships with utility clients across
power and water.

For FY2026, our priorities include
commissioning the solar module plant,
increasing contributions from EPC
orders, and expanding our market
share in metering and distribution
infrastructure. Our technology
investments, especially in loT-based
solutions, smart enclosures, and
integrated SCADA systems, will support
the long-term goal of becoming a full-
stack provider of infrastructure-grade
solutions.

None of this would be possible without
your support. We remain deeply
grateful to our investors, employees,
customers, and partners. Thank you for
believing in our mission - and walking
with us as we reimagine what it means
to be a utility infrastructure Company
in India.

Warm regards,
Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 7
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In conversation with
Ankit Agrawal,

Wholetime Director & CEO

Q1. RMC has expanded significantly
across verticals in recent years.
What is the long-term strategic
vision for this diversified business
model?

Over the last few years, we have
evolved from a niche enclosure
manufacturer into a vertically
integrated infrastructure player
serving the electrical, solar, and

utility segments. The vision behind

this transformation is to future-proof
our growth and align ourselves with
India’s broader infrastructure and
energy transition journey. Our goal is to
become a one-stop solutions provider
for the utility ecosystem - whether that
means smart metering infrastructure,
solar EPC and modules, or intelligent
switchgear and automation. We

See enormous synergies across

these business lines, especially in

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

engineering, execution and systems
integration. Looking ahead, our
strategic direction is to strengthen
backwards integration, digital
capabilities, and product-IP creation,
while selectively scaling execution-
led verticals. We expect the product
business - both electrical and solar

- to account for a significant share of
our revenue mix by FY2030. However,
our EPC business will remain crucial
in establishing market reach, building
scale and delivering turnkey solutions.

Q2. Could you elaborate on the
growth potential and margin profile
of each business segment? How do
you see this evolving?

Each of our four business verticals
offers a unique combination of growth

opportunity and margin characteristics.

Our electrical products segment, built
around enclosures and smart meter
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housings, is a high-margin and high-
volume business, particularly in the
context of India’s ongoing smart meter
rollout. This segment benefits from
proprietary tooling, standardisation,
and economies of scale.

The solar products segment, led by our
upcoming solar module plant, remains
in its early stages. However, once
operational, we expect it to be margin
accretive due to its manufacturing
nature, provided we maintain discipline
in technology selection, operating
efficiency, and market positioning.

Our EPC businesses - both solar and
electrical - are relatively lower-margin
but offer strong growth potential and
visibility. They help us gain strategic
footholds in utility tenders and build
long-term client relationships.

In the next 3-5 years, we anticipate



a gradual shift in our revenue
composition, with product segments
contributing 55-60% of the overall
topline, and EPC comprising the rest.
This shift is also expected to enhance
our blended EBITDA margins.

Q3. The Company has been vocal
about its 5,000 crore topline
vision by FY2030. What are the key
building blocks to achieve this?

Indeed, our Vision 2030 centres on
achieving a ¥5,000 crore topline while
maintaining financial prudence and a
disciplined return on capital. To achieve
this, we have identified five core levers:

1) Capacity expansion in electrical
and solar product manufacturing;

2)  Forward integration into grid and
smart infrastructure technologies;

3]  Deepening presence in utility
EPC and strategic infrastructure
projects;

4)  Entry into adjacent sectors like
water infrastructure with scalable
models;

RMC Switchgear Limited
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5]  Strengthening digital platforms,
analytics, and internal
governance.

Our growth approach is calibrated.
We are investing not just in physical
capacity, but in systems, people and
partnerships that will help us scale
responsibly. The T GW solar module
plant is one such cornerstone. It not
only diversifies our portfolio but also
offers recurring product revenue with
national and export potential.

Q4. Given the capex cycles and
industry shifts, how do you expect
the demand environment to evolve
for RMC's offerings?

We are structurally positive on the
medium- to long-term demand
environment. India’s infrastructure
cycle is now broad-based, covering
power, renewables, distribution
reforms, and digital utility platforms.
All of these require high-quality,
scalable solutions - exactly where
RMC is positioning itself. For instance,
in smart metering, over 220 million
meters have already been awarded,

and we are seeing increased demand
for metering enclosures and AMI-ready
solutions. Similarly, state DISCOMs
and central agencies are launching
integrated tenders involving RMUs,
cabling, and energy management -
areas where we have a competitive
edge. On the solar side, we anticipate
continued traction in rooftop and public
sector EPC, supported by government
programmes like PM-Surya Ghar and
MSKVY 2.0. Our solar module plant is
also expected to benefit from domestic
manufacturing incentives. Across

all verticals, customer preference is
shifting from lowest-cost vendors to
integrated, quality-first players - and
that is a long-term tailwind for us.

Q5. What message would you like to
give to shareholders?

Our focus remains on delivering quality
growth that translates into long-term
value creation for our stakeholders.
We have scaled from a X40 crore
company to over X300 crore in less
than a decade, while maintaining a
strong balance sheet and discipline
on execution. Along the way, we are
investing in people, in governance,
and in building an institution that can
stand the test of time. We are grateful
to our shareholders for their faith in
our vision, and we continue to work
diligently every day to justify that
trust with strategic clarity, financial
prudence, and operational excellence.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 9
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RMC Switchgears Ltd:

At a Glance

Established with a vision to deliver reliable, efficient, and future-ready electrical
solutions, RMC Switchgears Ltd has steadily evolved into one of India’s most
trusted players in the power infrastructure and renewable energy segments. From
its origins in manufacturing robust low-voltage electrical enclosures, RMC has
grown into a diversified company with capabilities spanning Solar EPC, innovative
infrastructure, electrical products, and backwards-integrated manufacturing. This
transformation reflects the company’s strategic intent to align with India’s national
priorities of sustainable growth, green energy, and modernisation of the power
distribution sector.

Headquartered in Jaipur, Rajasthan, RMC is driven by a clear mission: to enable
smarter, safer, and greener energy solutions that can meet India’s rapidly
growing power needs. Our portfolio includes advanced distribution boxes, feeder
pillars, meter panels, and other mission-critical enclosures, many of which

have been upgraded with loT-enabled capabilities to support modern smart grid
applications. We have consistently strengthened our R&D, investing in technology
and engineering capabilities to deliver products and solutions that meet stringent
performance, safety, and sustainability standards.

RMC has also made substantial strides in the renewable energy sector, positioning
itself as an integrated Solar EPC contractor. Leveraging its proven project
execution skills, the Company has successfully secured and delivered landmark
rooftop and ground-mounted solar projects, contributing directly to India’s clean
energy transition. The ongoing establishment of our 1 GW Solar Module and

Page 10
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Mounting Structure Manufacturing Plant is a
further testament to our commitment to vertical
integration and resilience across the solar value
chain.

In addition, RMC’s presence in smart
infrastructure is being strengthened through
investments in loT-enabled LT Distribution
Boxes and Advanced Metering Infrastructure
support systems. These offerings are designed
to minimise technical and commercial losses for
utilities while providing end-users with greater

transparency and control over their consumption.

Our projects under the Revamped Distribution
Sector Scheme (RDSS) and other government
programs stand as proof of our execution
capability and market trust.

A strong culture of governance, risk
management, and financial prudence
complements the Company’s robust project
portfolio. Supported by a skilled workforce,
advanced manufacturing facilities, and a
responsive supply chain, RMC has built a solid
foundation for scalable and sustainable growth.

RMC Switchgear Limited
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Our stakeholder-centric approach has enabled
us to consistently create value for customers,
partners, investors, and communities.

Today, RMC Switchgears Ltd is more than

an electrical equipment manufacturer; it is

a solutions-driven enterprise, enabling the
transformation of India’s power ecosystem
toward a greener, brighter, and more reliable
future. As we progress toward achieving our
Vision 2030 goal of ¥5,000 crore in revenue, we
remain focused on technological innovation,
expanding our product portfolio, and deepening
our presence in the renewable and smart
infrastructure sectors.

Throughout its journey, RMC has remained

true to its core values of quality, integrity, and

a commitment to excellence. These values
continue to guide our efforts as we empower
change and engineer tomorrow for a sustainable
and resilient India.

Page 11
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Our manufacturing

capability

At RMC Switchgears Ltd, our manufacturing
capabilities stand as the backbone of our growth,
innovation, and customer trust. Our primary
manufacturing facility in Chaksu, Jaipur, remains
at

the core of our operations, spanning 90,000
square meters and equipped with world-class
infrastructure dedicated to the production of
advanced electrical enclosures, sheet moulding
compounds (SMCJ, and pultruded sections. This
facility represents our commitment to precision,
quality, and sustainable growth.

Our Chaksu facility integrates advanced metal
fabrication systems, a modern compounding

Geothermal
Energy

Biomass
Energy

unit, and precision moulding and pultrusion
infrastructure. These are supported by in-house
mould and die manufacturing capabilities, which
empower us to deliver customised, application-
specific solutions efficiently and cost-effectively.
The seamless integration of these production
processes within a single location enhances
agility, reduces lead times, and allows us to adapt
swiftly to dynamic market needs.

In addition to our existing setup, RMC has
initiated the development of a state-of-the-art

1 GW solar module and mounting structure
manufacturing plant, also located adjacent to the
Chaksu facility. This greenfield expansion reflects
our long-term commitment to vertical integration

Page 12
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and reducing dependence on external suppliers in the solar EPC ecosystem. Once
operational by FY26, this facility will support both our captive requirements for
solar EPC projects and the commercial market, adding a new dimension to our
manufacturing ecosystem.

Our manufacturing roadmap aligns closely with RMC’s mission of delivering next-
generation, smart, and sustainable energy solutions, while supporting the ‘Make in
India” initiative. Through continuous investments in technology upgrades, process
automation, and quality assurance frameworks, we aim to stay ahead of evolving
industry standards and deliver superior products to our stakeholders

[04234]c 18

KILOWATT - HOUR METER
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Ovur Vision, Mission, and
Core Values

Vision = Become the most prominent brand in electrical enclosures and Indian exporter of low-
Statement: voltage electrical solutions to the world.

= Eliminate electrocution and eradicate electrical power and equipment theft nationwide.

As we step into FY2025-26, RMC Switchgears is committed to strengthening its position
as a benchmark of excellence and trust within the industry. Our focus remains on
achieving Zero Defect standards in product quality and maintaining consistently on-time
deliveries to build further confidence among our stakeholders. We will continue driving
world-class corporate governance practices while fostering an exceptional experience for
our customers, vendors, and employees. Additionally, we are prioritising the development
of a comprehensive Performance Management System that supports our Vision 2030
roadmap, ensuring the continued professional growth of our people and reinforcing our
reputation for innovation, accountability, and sustainable leadership in the energy and
infrastructure solutions space.

RMC's Core Values

Organisation Commitment

Optimizing processes and A promise to deliver excellence
resources for efficiency and

in all projects and
adaptability. Q Q engagements.

Dedication Respect
Showing unwavering passion Honoring diversity and treating
and attention to detail in every everyone with dignity and
task. consideration.

Striving for the highest
standards and continuous
improvement.

14 ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 Page 14




Mission: As part of our mission at RMC, we are
dedicated to being a reliable and consistent
partner for our customers, vendors,
employees, and investors. We uphold
meticulousness in all our actions, work,

and performance, ensuring every detail is
precisely managed. Our focus on research
and development is driven by a commitment
to uplift society and improve living standards,
highlighting our proactive approach to
innovation. We adopt a no-tolerance stance
towards quality and delivery, ensuring we
meet our customers’ expectations without
compromise. Additionally, we must create

= Transparency,
Trustworthiness,
Reliability.

Core Values

= Organised, Focused, and
Goal-Oriented towards
growth.

= Contribution to society to
provide safe and quality
lives.

= Ensuring the best-in-
class experience and
Growth to partners &

. associates.
the best environment for all stakeholders
involved, fostering a supportive and positive = Respect for values,
atmosphere that encourages growth and people, and obligations.

satisfaction across our network.

Commitment:

At RMC Switchgears, our promise is solid. We are committed to excellence in every project, ensuring that all
engagements are handled professionally and with utmost seriousness. This commitment extends beyond
our business operations to encompass the welfare of our employees, the satisfaction of our clients, and the
betterment of the communities we serve.

Respect:

Respect forms the cornerstone of our interactions and decisions. At RMC, we honour the diverse
backgrounds, cultures, and opinions of our people, clients, and partners. This foundational value guides us in
fostering a workplace and a business ecosystem where everyone is treated with dignity and consideration.

Excellence:

We strive for the highest standards in all our endeavours. Excellence at RMC is not just a goal but a
continuous journey. We aim to deliver best-in-class products and services that exceed expectations through
innovation and a relentless pursuit of improvement.

Dedication:

Our dedication is visible in our persistent efforts and meticulous attention to detail. Each team member at
RMC shares a deep-seated passion for achieving the goals set forth, demonstrating unwavering dedication to
our collective mission and each project.

Organisation:

Organisation within RMC is more than just structure; it's about optimising our processes and resources
to achieve synergy. We believe that a well-organised approach is critical to delivering efficient service and
maintaining the flexibility to adapt to new challenges and opportunities.
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Our Business Verticals
Snapshot

At RMC Switchgears Limited, our diversified business model is built on four
complementary verticals, each designed to serve India’s growing infrastructure
and clean energy needs while creating stakeholder value through innovation,
quality, and execution excellence.

Business Verticals

g

.:é
oF

o s

Electrical EPC

a

Electrical
Products

Solar Products

Solar EPC

Solar modules and

Smart meter
enclosures,
distribution boxes
and feeder pillars.
Other
SMC/Polycarbonate

Urban underground
cabling and RMU
systems are part of
this vertical. It also
includes feeder pillar
installations.

products are also
included.

1. Electrical Products

Rooted in our legacy expertise, these vertical
manufacturers offer robust electrical
enclosures, smart meter boxes, feeder
pillars, distribution boxes, and polycarbonate
and SMC-based solutions. These products
are engineered to meet the demanding
industry standards for safety, durability,

and performance, serving utilities, smart
metering projects, and large EPC contractors
across the nation. As India modernises its
distribution networks, our products continue
to support improved energy access and
reliable power delivery.
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Rooftop and ground-
mounted solar
projects are
undertaken.
Agricultural feeder
solarisation under

mounting structures
are key products.
Balance-of-system
components are
also offered.

KUSUM is also
included.

Electrical EPC

Our Electrical EPC vertical provides turnkey
solutions for modernising urban and

rural power infrastructure. This includes
underground cabling, Ring Main Units (RMUs],
feeder pillar installation, and complete
substation development. With a strong focus on
delivering projects under schemes such as the
Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS)
and the Integrated Power Development Scheme
(IPDS]), this vertical enables RMC to enhance
distribution efficiency and reduce transmission
losses, thereby directly supporting India’s push
for reliable and resilient power grids.
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3. Solar EPC 4. Solar Products
Aligned with India’s mission to scale non- Our Solar Products vertical is set to reinforce
fossil fuel capacity to 500 GW by 2030, our backwards integration through in-house
Solar EPC vertical is emerging as a critical manufacturing. We are establishing a 1 GW
growth engine. We execute grid-connected solar module plant at Chaksu, Jaipur, and plan
rooftop and ground-mounted solar projects, to manufacture module mounting structures
as well as solarisation of agricultural feeders and related balance-of-system components.
under schemes such as PM-KUSUM, and IPP This will reduce dependency on external
(Independent Power Producer) projects. By suppliers, improve cost efficiencies, and support
combining our execution capabilities with a our Solar EPC projects as well as cater to the
dedicated project management team, RMC broader market. Over the coming years, this
is positioned to deliver integrated renewable vertical will become a vital pillar for delivering
energy solutions with maximum impact, comprehensive renewable energy solutions.

including operations and maintenance
contracts that ensure long-term
performance.

Together, these four business verticals form a
holistic platform that allows RMC Switchgears
to address India’s power sector transition,
renewable energy adoption, and infrastructure
modernisation needs. By integrating
manufacturing excellence, project execution
skills, and sustainable innovation, we are well-
positioned to build a smarter, greener, and more
resilient energy future for the country.
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OUR
PRODUCTS

METER BOX FOR
ENERGY METER

FEATURES

= [P Level from IP-33 to IP-65, Push Fit Type Locking
System and Sensor System, with Louvers.

= Modem Mounting Arrangements, TTB, CT's
Applicable Standards are IS : 13947 (part-1) for
Ingress Protection, 1S:13410 for SMC Materials,
IS:14772 for Enclosures.

APPLICATION

= METER BOX Single/Three Phase whole current
meters & CT operated meters

= LT/CT/HT/AMR METER BOX

= MULTI METER BOX Single/Three Phase multi meters
MATERIAL

= SMC, Polycarbonate

= Mild Steel (Deep Drawn & Fabrication)

DISTRIBUTION

BOX

FEATURES

= protected with various level of INGRESS protection till
IP-65

= The bus bar arrangements :- bare, insulated and
spring loaded & Switchgears like MCB’'s or MCCB's

= Applicable Standards are 1S:13947(part-1) for ingress
protection, Is:13410 for SMC Materials, 1S:14772 for
Enclosures, 1S:8623 for temperature rise

APPLICATION

= Distribution Box for A.B. Cables (Nut & Bolt Type)
= Distribution Box for A.B. Cables (Spring Loaded)
= Distribution Box for A.B. Cables (MOC)

= Distribution Box for various rating of Distribution
Transformers

MATERIAL
= SMC, Polycarbonate
= Mild Steel (Deep Drawn & Fabrication)
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JUNCTION
BOX

FEATURES

= The Junction Boxes are protected with various level
of INGRESS protection till IP-65

» The Applicable Standards are 1S:13947(part-1) for
ingress protection, Is:13410 for SMC Materials,
IS:14772 for Enclosures.

APPLICATION

= Pole Mounted Junction Boxes with Distribution
Blocks

= Control Terminal Box or Aerial Fuse Box

= Wall mounted control panel

MATERIAL
= SMC, Polycarbonate
= Mild Steel (Deep Drawn & Fabrication)

FRP
GRATINGS

PULTRUDED GRATINGS & MOULDED GRATINGS
FEATURES

= Corrosion Resistant
= Slip Resistant gritted top surface

= Strong yet Lightweight

= Low Coefficient of Expansion and Contraction

APPLICATION
= Floor System & Walk Ways
» Work Platforms & Trench Covers

= Catwalk , Stairs & Ramps

INDUSTRIES

= Chemical Fertilizers & Petrochemicals

= Power Plants, Fisheries & Textiles, Electric
= Water Treatment & Air Pollution Control

= Dairy & Food Processing or Electroplating

i
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SMC / FRP CHEQUERED

FEATURES = Confirms to IS 13410, BS5734, ASTM

= |deal replacement for insulating Rubber D5948, DIN 16913

mats at places like sub-stations, control

rooms & trench Covers APPLICATION

Anti-corrosive, light weight yet strong & = Turnkey Contractors

Load bearing capacity as per IS = Electrical Control Rooms

Can withstand the load of breaker trolleys = Railways & Industries

without obstructing their movement a Govt. & Commercial Complexes

High Dielectric strength and life Contractors of Govt. Department
Expectancy

Easy to fix on floor, Insulating Protection
for life

CABLE TRAY

FEATURES

= Fire Retardant & Non Conductivity
= Maintenance Free & Easy to install
= Corrosion proof

= Chemical Erosion proof

INDUSTRIES

= Railways & Electrical / Utility

= Aerospace & Automotive, Roads & Highways

= Offshore & Qil & Gas

= Chemical Processing & Cooling Towers
Construction Defense

et

SMC / FRP SHEETS

FEATURES

= Excellent dielectric properties such as volume resistivity, surface resistivity,
Arc resistivity and comparative tracking index.

Can withstand continuous temperature up to 400 Degree C.
Anti-corrosive and resistant to most acids, alkalis and chemicals
Light weight, strong, Stiff & Clean or Weather Proof
Self-coloured and maintenance free

NON-Hydroscopic and retains its dielectric properties even in presence of
high humidity.
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SMC / FRP CHEQUERED

Feeder pillars are manufactured from mild steel, Stainless steel & sheet Moulding
compound as per customer requirements are used for distributing and managing various
outgoing circuits with 1 or incoming with HRC Fuse links or Kitkatson outgoing side and
option with or without ACB on the incoming side.

FEATURES

= Good Corrosion and Weather Resistance
High Physical and Mechanical Strength
High Strength to weight ratio
Highly Durable

Lower thermal conductivity and Good adaptability & dimensional stability with UV
resistance and Flexibility in design

Light in Weight and hence easy to handle and install
Ease of Maintenance with Zero Downtime

Economical & cost effective

FRP V-CROSS AR

FEATURES

= Good Corrosion and Weather Resistance
= Anti-corrosive

= |deal for harsh weather conditions

= No change in conductor formation/ configuration as well as ground clearance while
replacing metal V' type cross arms of existing lines

BUS BARS

RMC provides Fully Insulated Bus Bars covered with SMC/ DMC/ Polycarbonate / Nylon as
required by the customers are provided with Aluminum Bus Bars conductor.

FEATURES

= Excellent mechanical protection

= Best possible barrier against humidity and moisture ingress
= Same bus bar system for indoor and outdoor application

= High stability under UV exposure

Resistant to aggressive environments such as salt water, mineral oil, grease, fuels,
weak acids and bases
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal,
Chairman & Managing Director

A visionary with over 40 years in
the field, Mr. Agarwal's dynamic

leadership has been pivotal in shaping

RMC's trajectory. His dedication to
the electrical industry enables him
to spearhead strategic decisions and
uphold the company’s core values.

Mr. Ankit Agrawal,
Whole-Time Director & Chief Executive
officer

Bringing 23 years of industry
experience, Mr. Ankit Agrawal
plays a vital role in RMC’s growth
and diversification. His leadership
spans sales, marketing, and quality
assurance.

Mr Akhilesh Kumar Jain,
Director (w.e.f. 15/7/24)

Mrs. Neha Agarwal,
Whole-Time Director

With 16 years of experience, Mrs. A visionary with 40+ years in the field
Agarwal manages daily operations of Electronics, Energy, Electric Mobility
and administration. A strong advocate and IT, Mr. Jain brings a wealth of
expertise to RMC’s Team. He is known
for his innovative and out-of-the-

box sustainable ideas, and he has
committed to applying these concepts
to societal benefits, focusing on Smart
Electronics, Solar Energy, Energy
Storage, and Electric Mobility.

for women’s empowerment, she
continually bolsters the company’s
commitment to social responsibility.

Page 22
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Mrs. Krati Agarwal,
Independent Director

An accomplished Chartered Accountant
with around 40 years of expertise, Mr.
Gupta has made notable contributions
in areas such as taxation, finance,

and advisory services. He has lent his
acumen to various renowned firms,
both listed and unlisted.

Mrs. Krati Agarwal, an entrepreneur
with a knack for economics and
manufacturing, brings a fresh and
dynamic perspective to the board,
enriching it with her insights and vast
experience.

Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane,
Independent Director

Late. Kuljit Singh Popli,
Ex. Independent Director

With a background spanning 17 years
in civil, convincing, and finance law, Mr.
Mane offers invaluable legal counsel,
playing a critical role in the company’s
legal and financial facets.

RMC Switchgear Limited

The late Mr. K.S. Popli was a respected
leader in India’s renewable energy
sector. As former CMD of IREDA, he
played a key role in advancing clean
energy initiatives. He also held senior
roles with the International Solar
Alliance and Clime Finance Pvt. Ltd.
and was honoured with awards like
the SCOPE Excellence Award. His
brief tenure at RMC was marked by
insightful contributions that will be
remembered with gratitude.
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The market in which we operate

India entered FY26 with strong macroeconomic fundamentals, retaining its position as the fastest-
growing major economy in the world. GDP grew by 6.5% in FY25, driven by resilient domestic
demand, rural consumption, and infrastructure investment. The Reserve Bank of India projects 6.5%
growth for FY26, with quarterly momentum expected between 6.5% and 6.7%. Improved liquidity and
robust credit flow to housing, durables, and infrastructure sectors are expected to sustain this pace.
Echoing this optimism, the World Bank forecasts India’s growth at 6.3% in 2025 and 6.5% in 2026,
reinforcing confidence in the country’s medium-term economic trajectory.

SMART METER ROLLOUT

Opportunity:

The Government of India’s nationwide smart meter rollout
is a cornerstone initiative under the Revamped Distribution
Sector Scheme (RDSS), aimed at reducing AT&C losses,
enabling real-time consumption monitoring, and driving
energy efficiency through improved billing accuracy and
transparency. As of May 2025, contracts for over 223 million
smart meters have been awarded, and more than 30 million
meters have already been installed nationwide, making it one
of the most extensive smart metering programmes globally.

RMC'’s Response:

RMC is strategically positioned to support this
transformation by ramping up the production of smart
meter enclosures—an essential component for safeguarding
metering infrastructure in diverse and demanding field
conditions. These enclosures ensure not only physical
protection but also seamless meter performance in both
urban and rural deployments. Through consistent quality,
capacity enhancement, and industry-specific design
innovation, RMC continues to play a vital role in enabling
India’s transition to an intelligent and digitally empowered
power distribution ecosystem.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

TRANSMISSION INFRASTRUCTURE EXPANSION
Opportunity:

India’s transmission sector is entering a high-growth phase,
catalysed by sustained power demand and the accelerated
addition of renewable energy capacity. With annual electricity
consumption rising over 7% and the government targeting
450 GW of renewable energy capacity by 2030, transmission
infrastructure has become increasingly essential to ensure
grid stability and efficiency. This expansion is crucial to
meet the increasing energy demands of the industrial,
commercial, and residential sectors, as well as to facilitate
the seamless integration of renewable sources into the
national grid.

RMC's Response:

RMC is aligning its capabilities to capture emerging
opportunities in this evolving transmission landscape. The
Company is actively participating in tenders for underground
cabling, feeder pillars, and related electrical infrastructure
that support last-mile connectivity and distribution reliability,
essential components of the grid-scale transmission
ecosystem. With its expertise in enclosure solutions and
electrical EPC execution, RMC is well-positioned to play a
significant role in enabling transmission and distribution
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upgrades, particularly in urban and renewable energy-
intensive areas. By combining product innovation with EPC
execution capabilities, RMC is ready to contribute to India’s
grid resilience and energy transition goals.

GREEN ENERGY TRANSITION

Opportunity:

India is rapidly transforming its energy landscape, aiming

to balance rising demand with long-term sustainability. As
per EY, electricity demand is expected to grow at a CAGR of
5.4% through FY2047, with renewable energy poised to make
up over 85% of installed capacity by then. Solar energy, in
particular, is set to become the dominant source, accounting
for nearly 38% of India’s power mix. The government’s push
for electrification across sectors—including transport,
industry, and households—along with supportive initiatives
in green hydrogen, smart grids, and energy storage, is
expected to unlock massive investment and infrastructure
opportunities.

RMC's Response:

RMC Switchgears is fully aligned with India’s green energy
ambitions and is proactively expanding its presence

across the solar energy value chain. Through its dedicated
verticals in Solar EPC and Solar Product Manufacturing,
RMC is developing capabilities to deliver utility-scale,
rooftop, and distributed solar infrastructure. The Company
has initiated the development of a state-of-the-art solar
module manufacturing facility, which will further strengthen
backwards integration and reduce supply dependence.

With robust execution capabilities, technology adoption,

and a proven track record in clean energy projects, RMC is
strategically positioned to capitalise on the country’s energy
transition and contribute meaningfully to its decarbonisation
journey.

RMC Switchgear Limited

Page 25

END-TO-END SOLAR DEPLOYMENT

Opportunity:

India’s clean energy transition is gaining unprecedented
momentum, with solar energy expected to form the
backbone of the future power mix. According to EY, solar
energy is expected to account for nearly 38% of India’s
power capacity by FY2047. The government’s continued
push through schemes such as PM-KUSUM, RDSS, and
rooftop solar programmes has driven strong demand
across utility-scale, agricultural, and residential segments.
With the electrification of the industry and transportation
sectors underway, the need for reliable solar infrastructure
is expected to surge, creating sustained opportunities for
experienced EPC players.

RMC’s Response:

RMC Switchgears has made significant strides in solar EPC
over the past year, executing complex, large-scale projects
across geographies. The Company was awarded a 0320
crore rooftop solar EPC contract, one of the largest in the
segment, along with a 0150 crore MAHAGENCO order under
the MSKVY 2.0 scheme. With a focus on quality execution,
O&M capability, and energy performance optimisation, RMC
is building a strong track record in solar EPC. The Company
continues to expand its project pipeline by participating

in multiple tenders under various government schemes,
thereby deepening its presence in this high-growth vertical.

SOLAR MODULE MANUFACTURING

Opportunity:

India’s push for energy self-reliance and the rising
demand for domestic solar modules have opened up a vast
manufacturing opportunity. The sector is supported by
policy initiatives, including the Production Linked Incentive
(PLI) scheme and a Basic Customs Duty (BCD) on imported
modules. According to government estimates, India needs
to add over 30-40 GW of solar capacity annually to stay on
track for its 500 GW non-fossil target by 2030, resulting in
significant demand for high-quality solar panels, inverters,
and balance-of-system components.

RMC’s Response:

To support India’s manufacturing ambitions and integrate

its solar offerings, RMC is setting up a state-of-the-art 1 GW
solar module manufacturing facility at Chaksu. The plant will
be equipped to produce high-efficiency mono-PERC modules
and is expected to commence production in FY26. This
backwards integration enhances cost competitiveness and
supply chain control while opening new revenue streams.
The facility is being developed with scalable infrastructure,
allowing expansion into cells and other solar components

in future phases. RMC'’s entry into module manufacturing
strengthens its position as a comprehensive, vertically
integrated provider of clean energy solutions.
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Model

Our business model canvas

At RMC Switchgears Ltd., our business model has undergone significant evolution in response to India’s rapid energy
transformation and infrastructure development. In this Annual Report, we continue to utilise the globally recognised
Business Model Canvas framework, developed by Alexander Osterwalder and Yves Pigneur, to describe our operations
and strategic direction. This model encapsulates the synergy between our capabilities, partnerships, innovation focus, and
customer-centric execution as we operate across four core business verticals: Electrical Products, Electrical EPC, Solar

EPC, and Solar Products.

Biomass
Energy

Key Partners: RMC

Strategic partnerships remain at the core
of our success. We work closely with
government agencies, power distribution
companies (DISCOMs), public sector
undertakings, and central nodal bodies
under national schemes, including

RDSS, PM-KUSUM, and MSKVY. These
relationships, built over years of credible
project execution, enable us to access
large-scale opportunities across both the
energy access and renewable segments.
Additionally, we collaborate with EPC
contractors, utility-scale developers, and
emerging technology providers to bring
integrated infrastructure solutions to
market. In FY25, RMC further reinforced
its ecosystem through MoUs with
technology-focused international players,
reflecting our commitment to long-term
capability building.

Key Activities : The core

Our key activities span four integrated
domains. The Electrical Products
division manufactures high-durability
enclosures, meter boxes, and SMC-
based systems tailored to India’s rugged
operational environments. The Electrical
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EPC vertical is responsible for turnkey
delivery of power distribution projects,
including underground cabling, RMU-
based automation, and smart metering
infrastructure. Our Solar EPC business

is a fast-growing arm, offering design,
installation, and operations of rooftop and
ground-mounted solar projects for public
and private clients. Complementing this,
the Solar Products division—anchored

by a 1 GW solar module manufacturing
facility under development—will contribute
meaningfully from FY26 onward. Beyond
these, we have initiated pilots in smart
water management infrastructure,
signalling a strategic pivot toward loT-
enabled multi-utility solutions.

Key Resources:

Our primary resources include a fully
integrated 90,000 sq. m. manufacturing
facility in Chaksu, Rajasthan. This

plant supports in-house compounding,
moulding, metal fabrication, and custom
tooling, giving us design flexibility and
speed. A significant amount of capital
expenditure has been initiated to build
solar module lines, enhancing our
backwards integration. Our skilled
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workforce, research teams, and digitised
project execution infrastructure are

vital resources, supporting both volume
scalability and innovation-led growth.

Value Propositions:

RMC'’s value proposition lies in delivering
reliable, high-quality, and field-tested
products that meet India’s evolving
infrastructure demands. Our electrical
products are certified for durability and
safety, while our EPC execution is defined
by timeliness and compliance. The smart
metering and solar verticals deliver digital
and clean energy solutions that support
utilities in reducing technical losses and
meeting sustainability goals. Additionally,
our solutions are designed for local
conditions—resilient against climate, theft,
and usage volatility—making them ideal
for wide-scale deployment across states.

Customer Relationships:

We maintain strong relationships with
clients through performance-linked
contracts, long-term operations and
maintenance (0&M) agreements, and
responsive support. In many projects,
we co-develop or customise solutions
in consultation with state utilities and
departments. This participatory model
enhances trust and ensures relevance
to on-ground challenges. Moreover,
our increasing presence at national
forums, such as ELECRAMA, has further
strengthened customer engagement.

Channels :

Our product and service delivery is
channelled through a hybrid approach.
Government orders are primarily secured
via competitive bidding and empanelment
schemes, while private EPC and solar
contracts are obtained through direct
engagements and integrator tie-ups. In
the electrical products segment, regional
dealers and OEM partners help us reach
decentralised demand. We also utilise

NCIAL STATEMENTS
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digital channels for outreach, particularly
in raising awareness about smart and
green technologies.

Customer Segments:

Our customer segments are diverse,
including government DISCOMs and
PSUs for EPC and smart metering,
institutional and industrial clients for
solar installations, private OEMs and
contractors for enclosure products, and
regional water and power departments
for infrastructure automation. This
multi-segment strategy gives us earnings
stability and deepens our exposure to
long-cycle infrastructure themes.

Cost Structure:

On the cost side, our expenditures are
concentrated on raw materials, skilled
workforce, logistics, and technical
compliance. With a growing share of
EPC and smart product integration,

the proportion of competent project
management and engineering services
has increased. Strategic investments in
capital expenditures and automation will
also be reflected in our cost base in the
coming years.

Revenue Streams:

Our revenues are generated across five
key sources: the sale of enclosures and
electrical products; execution of electrical
EPC projects; installation and O&M of
solar systems; supply of solar modules
(starting FY26); and the sale of intelligent
infrastructure systems, such as meter
enclosures and loT devices. Newer
areas, such as water infrastructure and
automation, are expected to gain traction
over the medium term. With a diversified
revenue base and scalable operations,
RMC remains well-positioned to capture
emerging opportunities across India’s
utility and infrastructure sectors.
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2! (Story 1)y
From Boxes to Breakthroughs

How RMC is evolving into an integrated
energy solutions company

Over the past three decades, RMC Switchgears Ltd. has
charted a path that mirrors India’s own infrastructure and
energy evolution. What began as a focused enterprise
delivering reliable low-voltage enclosures is today
transforming into a multifaceted solutions provider for

a smarter, greener power ecosystem. FY2025 marked

a critical year in this journey - one that reinforced our
conviction in vertical integration, infrastructure innovation,
and market responsiveness. As we scale across solar EPC,
intelligent infrastructure, and clean energy manufacturing,
the Company’s transformation from a component supplier
to a full-spectrum solutions platform is not just a strategic
pivot, but a deliberate reinvention of purpose.

Page 28
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Our Vision 2030
is not only about
numbers - itis
about becoming
indispensable to
India’s energy
transition
through vertical
integration and
capability scale-
up.
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Laying the Foundation

The genesis of RMC dates to 1994,
when the Company began its
operations in a modest 5,000 sq. ft.
facility, supplying meter boxes to
Original Equipment Manufacturers.
Our early orders from state utilities
in Rajasthan and Maharashtra paved
the way for credibility and scale. By
2008, we had established our Chaksu
manufacturing plant and expanded our
capabilities to include polycarbonate
and SMC enclosures, a move that
proved pivotal in increasing our
footprint and quality standards.

Over the next decade, RMC

deepened its relationship with state
distribution companies and began to
participate in national electrification
programmes. The transition from

a supplier to a trusted partner in
electrical infrastructure was gradual
but intentional. It was this early
commitment to safety, reliability, and
delivery that earned us the opportunity
to participate in the R-APDRP project in
Jodhpur in 2014 - our entry point into
turnkey execution.

The 2022 Vision Shift

FY2022 marked a turning point in our
outlook for the future. The formal
adoption of our Vision 2030 - to become
a ¥5,000 crore enterprise - was not just
about scale but about redefining our
role in the national energy narrative.
We embedded four verticals into our
business model: Electrical Products,
Electrical EPC, Solar EPC, and Solar
Products. Each of these verticals is
anchored in our core strength but
designed to meet emerging market
demand for integrated, reliable, and
scalable energy infrastructure.

From smart meter enclosures and
feeder pillars to EPC services for
underground cabling and rooftop
solar projects, RMC began building
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We evolved
from producing
products to
delivering
integrated
solutions - a
journey rooted
in persistence,
credibility,

and a deep
understanding
of power sector
realities. }

3 Lakh

RMC scaled its smart meter enclosure
capacity, reinforcing its position as

a key player in India's distribution
transformation.

a platform, not just a product line.
FY2025 saw the execution of marquee
projects across sectors, including a
%320 crore rooftop solar EPC contract
and a 108 crore underground cabling
project from UGVCL. These wins
demonstrated not just capability, but
institutional trust.

?320 Cr

Rooftop EPC Order is among the
largest in the segment; this order
signified market trust in RMC’s ability
to deliver at scale.
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Backwards
integration

is not just a
cost play - it
is aresilience
strategy that
aligns us

with national
manufacturing
ambitions and
long-term
energy needs.
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The Power of Backwards Integration

The Chaksu plant became the centrepiece of our transformation strategy. With a
90,000 sq. m. footprint and capacity enhancements underway, this facility allowed
us to bring compounding, moulding, metal fabrication, and custom tooling under
one roof. In FY2025, we took a significant step by performing the Bhoomi Poojan
for our 0100 crore, 1 GW solar module manufacturing facility - an asset expected
to begin operations in FY26.

This move into solar manufacturing
aligns us closely with the government'’s
localisation and self-reliance goals
under the Production Linked Incentive
scheme. It also enables us to secure
cost and supply predictability for our
EPC operations. More importantly, it
places RMC in a unique position to
serve both the captive and commercial
markets with high-efficiency mono-
PERC modules.

1 GW Solar Module Plant

Backwards integration into solar
manufacturing marks a strategic
pivot toward cost control and value
chain dominance.
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We are not
reinventing
ourselves - we
are reapplying
our core
strengths to a
bigger canvas,
one that reflects
the future of
Indian energy.

'318.16 ©

Revenue for FY25 grew by 84.3%

year-on-year, driven by Solar
EPC, Electrical EPC, and smart
infrastructure demand.
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Creating a Platform for the Future

RMC'’s transition is not about shedding its past but about leveraging it. We
are carrying forward our legacy of precision engineering and risk-controlled
execution into emerging sectors, including smart metering, intelligent
distribution, and green energy deployment. The incorporation of subsidiaries
such as RMC Green Energy and RMC Solar One reflects our intention to
pursue scale in solar IPPs and advanced infrastructure. FY2025 was also

a year of recognition - from participation in ELECRAMA to awards in low-
voltage innovation, industry stakeholders validated the direction we are
heading in.

As we look to FY2026 and beyond, our focus will be on leveraging our core
capabilities to expand margin-accretive product lines, optimise capital
allocation, and deepen customer engagement across India’'s power
ecosystem. From boxes to breakthroughs, the journey continues.

Achieving Vision 2030

Receive Awards

Being recognised for
innovation at ELECRAMA
and ET Now Awards.
Incorporate

Subsidiaries

Establishing new
subsidiaries for solar
parks and IPP projects.
Scale Smart Meter

Capacity
Increasing smart meter

enclosure capacity to 3
lakh units per year.

Starting a 100 crore
solar module plant at
Chaksu.

Expand EPC
Pipeline
Securing large solar and
T&D contracts to boost
growth. Achieve Revenue
Growth

Attaining 84.3% YoY
revenue growth in FY25.
Transition
Business Model

Shifting to a 4-vertical
business structure for
better focus. Formalise Vision

2030

Setting the ambitious goal
of 5,000 crore topline.
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2 (Story2) 12
Smart, Green, and Grounded

Delivering real infrastructure impact
across power and energy systems

FY2025 was a year in which national programmes met practical execution,
and ambitious energy targets translated into projects on the ground. For
RMC Switchgears Ltd., this convergence created opportunities to apply our
multi-vertical capabilities to some of India’s most urgent infrastructure
priorities. Whether it was scaling up the smart metering ecosystem,
expanding rooftop solar through record-breaking EPC contracts, or
strengthening last-mile power transmission with underground cabling,
we stayed focused on delivering systems that work, not just promises. Our
strength lies in meeting policy ambitions with practical engineering and
timely execution, contributing meaningfully to India’s ongoing transition to
smarter, greener infrastructure.
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Enabling the Smart Metering Shift

India’s power distribution sector is undergoing a quiet but transformative shift,
We see smart catalysed by the Government’s Smart Meter National Programme and Revamped
met ring as Distribution Sector S.chem'e (RDSS). With over 223 .m.lulon smart meters already
th contracted and 30 million installed by May 2025, utilities are adopting Advanced
more than Metering Infrastructure (AMI) to reduce losses and improve billing accuracy.
hardware ' However, the shift is not just digital - it is also physical, requiring field-hardened
-t bwt enclosures and infrastructure that can withstand diverse conditions.

m he This is where RMC has stepped in. Our smart meter enclosures and loT-enabled
nfrastructure LT Distribution Boxes are designed for tamper resistance, network integration,
g t' and climate resilience. In FY2025, we expanded our production capacity and
d secured large orders across key states, including Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh,
and Rajasthan. These products are not peripheral add-ons - they are critical to
ensuring the reliability of new digital grid systems.

for the
_next phase of

utility refqrw. "‘

?97'631 Cr RDSS Budget

India's largest-ever central
investment in power distribution is
driving sustained demand for our
smart grid solutions.

Expanding Renewable EPC Execution
India’s transition to clean energy is gathering pace. Rooftop and decentralised
solar systems, once viewed as niche interventions, are now being mainstreamed Rooftop
into state utility operations and agricultural electrification programmes. Under solar and
schemes such as PM-KUSUM and MSKVY 2.0, RMC has established itself as a decentralised
credible EPC partner capable of delivering timely, large-scale execution.

energy are no
FY2025 saw us secure one of our most prestigious orders to date — a 0320 crore longer pilOtS -
rooftop solar EPC contract, including a 091 crore 0&M component. We also th itical
executed a w7 MW project for MAHAGENCO under MSKVY 2.0. These wins reflect ) ey are critica
not only the strength of our proposal teams but also the trust placed in us by |nfraStrUCture|
public sector clients. In each case, our delivery was supported by dedicated project and we are
management teams and execution frameworks that ensured safety, quality, and treating them
adherence to schedule. q

with the

seriousness
?320 Cr Rooftop Order Secured they deserve.
The largest single-value EPC contract in our solar }

portfolio to date, setting a new benchmark for execution
visibility.
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Strengthening Transmission from the Ground Up

India’s transmission infrastructure is being rapidly upgraded to match the rising
tide of renewable capacity. With more than 7% annual growth in power demand
and the government targeting 450 GW of renewable energy by 2030, the role of
underground cabling, RMUs, and feeder automation is now central to grid stability.

RMC'’s Electrical EPC vertical has kept pace with this shift. A notable achievement
in FY2025 was the award of a 108 crore project from Uttar Gujarat Vij Company
Limited (UGVCL) to modernise its urban distribution network. This included the
deployment of Ring Main Units and underground power cabling - both essential
for reducing technical losses and improving reliability in densely populated areas.

These projects represent the kind of practical modernisation that must accompany
the clean energy transition. Without stable last-mile connectivity, grid-level
investments cannot deliver value to the end consumer.

?1 08 Cr UGVCL Order Won

Major urban underground cabling
and RMU project supporting grid
modernisation under state DISCOM
initiatives.

Bridging Policy and Practice

At RMC, we do not view ourselves merely as project executors. We aim to be
connectors between policy ambition and engineering implementation. Our deep
understanding of government programmes - from RDSS and PM-KUSUM to
AMISP model rollouts - helps us tailor proposals and design solutions that meet
regulatory, technical, and financial criteria.

FY2025 demonstrated the strength of this approach. Despite complexities in
subsidy disbursements, site clearances, and shifting timelines, we delivered
consistently. Our growing footprint across state DISCOMs, our alignment with the
‘Make in India” mandate through domestic manufacturing, and our increasing
participation in technology-led forums like ELECRAMA, all reflect our dual
capability - to scale up and to stay grounded.

?31 8-1 6 Cr FY25 Revenue

Reflects strong growth across EPC
verticals and sustained conversion of
public-sector orders into operational
delivery.
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Our EPC projects
are making the
grid not only
stronger, but
smarter - one
feeder, one
RMU, and one
connection ata
time.

What
distinguishes
us is not just
execution
capacity, but
the ability to
understand
how policy
translates into
infrastructure
that works - on
time and on site.
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Manufacturing Strength.
Strategic Depth:

Building future-ready infrastructure
through integrated production and design
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‘ Our Chaksu
facility is not
just a factory -
it is a strategic
engine designed

34 57 sq. m.Plant Area to integrate

n - =
innovation, speed,

RMC'’s flagship facility serves as a

fully integrated production hub for its -al'ld cost control
electrical and solar verticals, L3 B [ L
we deliver. }

The Role of PM KUSUM Yojana in Rural Electrification

CIn a world where speed, resilience, and localisation are defining the future of
infrastructure, RMC Switchgears Ltd. has placed manufacturing excellence at

the centre of its long-term strategy. Our journey from basic assembly lines to an
integrated, precision-driven facility in Chaksu is more than an operational upgrade
- itis a foundational shift in how we deliver value. FY2025 was a pivotal year,
marked by fresh investments in solar module manufacturing, capacity expansion in
key inputs such as SMC, and sharper integration of engineering design and product
innovation. At RMC, manufacturing is not just what we do - it is how we scale, adapt,
and lead.

Chaksu: The Manufacturing Nucleus

Located near Jaipur, our Chaksu manufacturing facility has evolved into a multi-
utility backbone for the Company’s electrical and solar verticals. Spanning 90,000 sq.
metres, it houses all critical production stages under one roof - from compounding
and pultrusion to metal fabrication and custom tooling. This plant is not only large

in scale but deeply integrated in function. It enables rapid prototyping, product
customisation, and cost efficiencies that enhance both EPC execution and product
sales.

In FY2025, we operated the plant at high capacity, with significant output in SMC and
polycarbonate enclosures. Strategic capital expenditure was directed towards scaling
up SMC production to 15,000 MT per annum by H2 FY2026 - a necessary move as
demand from smart meter enclosures, feeder pillars, and solar applications continues
to rise. With this scale-up, we are positioning ourselves to serve larger OEMs and
government contracts while maintaining control over material quality and delivery
timelines.
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Backwards Integration with a Forward View

FY2025 marked the formal launch of our 0100 crore investment . ) . .

into a state-of-the-art, 1 GW solar module and mounting Vertical integration is more

structure manufacturing plant. Located adjacent to our than an efficiency tool - itis our

existing Chaksu facility, this new unit is central to our strategy bridge to value-chain resilience
’

of backwards integration in the clean energy value chain. The

plant will produce high-efficiency mono-PERC modules and pricing _power' a_nd long-term
mounting components that support both our captive EPC growth in solar infrastructure. }

requirements and third-party market demand.

Beyond production capability, the new solar manufacturing
plant reflects our intent to gain better cost control, reduce
import dependency, and participate in the government’s
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme. It is also a step
toward long-term margin improvement in Solar EPC, where
component costs can significantly impact project viability.

Designed with scalability in mind, the facility can potentially
expand into upstream components such as cells and wafers in
future phases, creating room for vertical integration across the
entire photovoltaic ecosystem.
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1 GW Solar Module Capacity ‘

Under construction facility to serve both internal EPC demand

and the growing third-party solar products market. Precision manufacturing is
what converts innovation into
, . . _ infrastructure - our ability to
RMC’s legacy in manufacturing rests not just on volume, but

on the precision and reliability required in field-deployed adapt d.eSIQH to appllcatlon IS
infrastructure. Whether it is smart meter enclosures used in what gives us the edge. }

Engineering Precision for Smart Infrastructure

dense urban areas, or feeder pillars deployed in harsh rural
climates, our design process integrates customer feedback,
regulatory standards, and ruggedisation needs into every mould

and panel. 1 5'000 MT SMC.

A key enabler of this is our in-house die and tooling division, .

which allows for faster turnaround and greater design Capacity by FY26
flexibility. In FY2025, we continued to expand our portfolio of
loT-enabled products, including LT Distribution Boxes and
metering enclosures compatible with AMI standards. This enclosure and solar infrastructure
capacity to adapt form factors, connectivity modules, and power product lines.

COﬂfIgUrathﬂS ln_house |S a dlfferentlator |n a Sector mov'ng ........................................................................... -
rapidly towards digitisation.

Enhanced capacity enables material
security and cost control across

We also adopted lean manufacturing practices and 3 Lakh Smart Enclosures/Year
strengthened our QA processes to maintain consistency

across scale. As demand from smart metering and solar EPC
accelerates, our ability to maintain product reliability across

thousands of installations is becoming a strategic advantage. skilled Hands, Systematic Growth

RMC'’s annual production capacity reinforces its lead in India’s
smart metering infrastructure buildout.

Behind every mould and machine is a team of engineers,
operators, and technicians who form the core of our
manufacturing excellence. FY2025 saw a renewed focus
on workforce training, cross-functional coordination, and
operational discipline. Our ERP-led manufacturing flow and
digitised QA documentation have reduced rework, enhanced
throughput, and ensured compliance with evolving sectoral
standards.

|

1
L
i

Manufacturing is as much about
people as it is about machines
- and we are investing in both As we head-into. FY2026, the fulll integration of solar - .

. . manufacturing into our operational stack, coupled with capacity
to scale sustamably and deliver expansion in electrical products, will demand further agility.

consistently. Our roadmap includes investments in automation, data-led
process control, and modular production lines that can adapt
quickly to order-specific configurations.
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Management
Bandwidth

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Mr. Ankit Agrawal, Mr. Manish Mantri,

Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director & Chief Executive Chief Operating Officer

A visionary with over 40 years in officer (w.ef. 2 May 2024)

the field, Mr. Agarwal’s dynamic Bringing 23 years of industry A seasoned expert with around 30
leadership has been pivotal in shaping experience, Mr. Ankit Agrawal years of diverse experience in the
RMC'’s trajectory. His dedication to plays a vital role in RMC’s growth manufacturing and service sectors,
the electrical industry enables him and diversification. His leadership Mr. Manish Mantri has demonstrated
to spearhead strategic decisions and spans sales, marketing, and quality exceptional proficiency in project
uphold the company’s core values. assurance. management, operational efficiency,

and driving profitability. His career
highlights include pioneering the setup
of new plants at the Aditya Birla Group
and RR Kabel, leading HV/EHV projects
at Sterlite Technologies, and managing
large-scale EPC/EHYV projects at

Kei Industries. Mr. Mantri holds a
degree in Chemical Engineering from
MREC (MNIT), Jaipur, and excels in
innovation, leadership, and strategic
execution.
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Mr Anand Chaturvedi,
Chief Financial officer
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Mr. Sajal Kumar Gosh,
Chief Growth Officer (w.e.f. 1 March
2024)

» Management Bandwidth

Mrs. Shivani Bairathi,
Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

A distinguished finance professional
with over 30 years of post-qualification
expertise in diverse facets of finance
and management, Mr. Anand
Chaturvedi holds an impressive array
of qualifications, including MCOM, CA,
CS, CMA, MBA(F), and a certification
in IFRS. His illustrious career includes
significant contributions at leading
corporates such as Grasim Industries,
Reliance Communication, IDEA
Telecom, Golcha Group, and Rajasthan
Patrika.

RMC Switchgear Limited

With 33 years of experience in the
Indian Manufacturing Sector, Mr. Gosh
is an accomplished leader who has
demonstrated exceptional expertise in
polymers and composites. His passion
lies in materials science, engineering/
technology, product development,
technical services, R&D, innovation,
and team leadership.
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Mrs. Shivani Bairathi is an associate
member of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. She has over 4
years post-qualification experience in
dealing with Regulatory Compliance
and Secretarial matters.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

A) Macroeconomic & Policy Backdrop

‘ Global GDP
expanded by
a measured
2.8% during the
year, marking
the third
consecutive year
of below-trend
growth.

42 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Global Economic Overview

The global economy in 2024
displayed modest resilience

amid a backdrop of persistent
geopolitical tensions, elevated
interest rates, and subdued

trade dynamics. Global GDP
expanded by a measured 2.8%
during the year, marking the

third consecutive year of below-
trend growth. This was notably
lower than the pre-pandemic
decade average of 3.1%, reflecting
continued global fragilities and
macroeconomic tightening across
regions. Inflation pressures
persisted into the early part of
2024, especially in advanced

Page 42

economies. However, global
inflation decelerated steadily
throughout the year, falling to

an estimated 3.8% by year-end,
down from 5.2% at the start. Key
contributors to this moderation
included easing commodity prices,
supply chain normalisation, and
cautious monetary policies.

Geopolitical disruptions,
including ongoing conflicts in
Eastern Europe and the Middle
East, as well as trade policy
uncertainties, have dampened
investor confidence and disrupted
global supply chains, particularly
in the energy and semiconductor



sectors. These risks continued
to create downward pressure on
global output and capital flows.

As 2025 commenced, signs of

a cautiously improving outlook
emerged. Inflation declined
further, encouraging several major
central banks, including the U.S.
Federal Reserve and the European
Central Bank, to pivot from
aggressive rate hikes to more
neutral or easing stances. The
global average policy rate, which
peaked at 5.1% in 2024, declined
marginally in Q1 2025 as monetary
conditions began to normalise in
key economies.

RMC Switchgear Limited
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According to the World Bank, the
global economy is projected to
expand by 2.3% in 2025, compared
to 2.8% growth in 2024, but still
below the long-term average.

This modest acceleration is
underpinned by easing inflation, a
gradual pivot in monetary policy by
major central banks and slightly
improving trade and investment
flows. While advanced economies
are expected to see stable but
subdued growth, emerging and
developing economies are likely to
drive global expansion, supported
by rising domestic demand, policy
reforms, and targeted investments
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According to the
World Bank, the
global economy
is projected

to expand by
2.3% in 2025,
compared to
2.8% growth in

2024. }

in infrastructure and green energy.
However, downside risks remain
significant, including geopolitical
tensions, policy uncertainty,

and potential financial market
volatility, which could weigh on the
pace of recovery.
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o “130@1 (c])]
expanded by -
6.5% in FY25,

marginally
softer than the
.1 post-pandemic -
& ""peak but still

1}

Indian Economic Overview

India’s economy entered FY26
on a firm footing, maintaining its
position as the world’s fastest-
growing major economy. Real
GDP expanded by 6.5% in FY25,
marginally softer than the post-
pandemic peak but still ahead

of most global peers. Growth
momentum was supported

by robust domestic demand,
strong rural consumption, and
rising fixed investment across
infrastructure and manufacturing
sectors.

Looking ahead
to FY26, the RBI
has retained

its growth
projection at
6.5%, with
Q1-Q4 growth
outlook ranging
between 6.5%

and 6.7%. }
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Inflationary pressures eased
significantly during the fiscal year.
Retail inflation declined to a six-
year low of 2.82% in May 2025,
well within the RBI's 4% target
band. Food inflation softened

due to a favourable monsoon

and declining commodity

prices, providing room for an
accommodative monetary policy.

Reflecting the improvement in
price stability, the RBI's Monetary
Policy Committee (MPC]) enacted a
50-bps repo rate cut in early June,
bringing the key rate to 5.5%, and
reduced the Cash Reserve Ratio
by 100 bps. While serving as a
stimulus to spur growth, the MPC

also shifted its stance to “neutral,”

acknowledging limited headroom
for further monetary policy easing
amid global uncertainties.

India achieved record exports
of US$824.9 billion in FY
2024-25, marking a 6.0% year-
on-year growth from US$778.1
billion in the previous year.

This surge was primarily led

by services exports, which
increased 13.6% to US$387.5
billion, driven by strong demand
in IT, telecommunications,
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head of most

lobal peers.
~ ES
- *

transportation, travel, and
financial services. This strong
external trade performance
enhances India’s economic
resilience by strengthening its
current account, supporting the
rupee, and expanding its role in
the global value chain - factors
that further underpin domestic
growth opportunities.

Looking ahead to FY26, the RBI
has retained its growth projection
at 6.5%, with Q1-Q4 growth
outlook ranging between 6.5%
and 6.7%. Credit and investment
dynamics, particularly in sectors
such as housing, consumer
durables, and infrastructure,

will be key drivers of growth,
supported by improved liquidity
conditions. Echoing the same
confidence in the Indian economy,
the World Bank has also projected
India’s growth at 6.3% for 2025
and 6.5% for 2026.

However, India remains exposed
to several external vulnerabilities.
Global trade tensions, geopolitical
instability, and volatility in
commodity prices could threaten
the recovery. Domestically, rising
household debt and slowing
savings warrant close monitoring,
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Indias Real GDP Growth (%)

2023 2024e

especially as the economy seeks
private-sector-led growth.

Fiscal and Monetary
Stimulus

The Union Budget 2025-26 lays
down a strong foundation for
inclusive and investment-led
growth. Capital expenditure
remains a cornerstone of

fiscal policy, with the central
government budgeting an effective
capital outlay of X15.5 lakh crore,
representing a robust increase
from 13.2 lakh crore in FY25
(REJ. This sustained capex push is
expected to generate a multiplier
effect on private investment,

job creation, and demand. A key

2025F 2026fF
Source: World Bank

initiative includes 1.5 lakh crore
in interest-free loans to states for
capital projects, further amplifying
infrastructure development at the
sub-national level.

Complementing this are reforms
such as a new manufacturing
mission for MSMEs, rationalised
credit criteria for start-ups,
expanded credit guarantees,

and tax rationalisation aimed at
improving ease of doing business.
Notably, the government has
announced a significant overhaul
of personal income tax to support
middle-class spending, as well
as a streamlined customs tariff
structure to bolster the ‘Make in
India” initiative.

Effective Capital Expenditure

m Effective Capital Expenditure (% Lakh Crore)

15 155
| I IHZ I

2023-24 (Actual) 2024-25 (BE)

RMC Switchgear Limited

2024-25 (RE) 2025-26 (BE)

Swﬁgzi\émistry of Finance.

GOI's FY26
Budget raises
capital outlay to
%X15.5 lakh crore
from 313.2 lakh
crore in FY25,
reaffirming its
growth-focused
agenda.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
has transitioned to a growth-
supportive monetary policy stance.
Between February and June 2025,
the policy repo rate was cut by

a cumulative 100 basis points to
5.50%, while the Cash Reserve
Ratio (CRR) was set to be reduced
in phases, releasing approximately
2.5 lakh crore of primary liquidity
into the banking system by
December 2025. Together, these
fiscal and monetary interventions
are positioned to accelerate the
Indian economy towards its FY26
growth target of 6.5%, anchored in
domestic demand, policy certainty,
and resilient macroeconomic
fundamentals.

‘ RBI’s phased CRR cut

to inject 2.5 lakh
crore liquidity by Dec
2025, reinforcing its
growth-supportive
stance.

)
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B) Industry Landscape

< Global GDP
expanded by
a measured
2.8% during the
year, marking
the third
consecutive year
of below-trend
growth.
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India’s Green
Energy Roadmap

India is poised to play a central
role in the global energy
transition, balancing the dual
imperatives of meeting rapidly
growing energy demand

and achieving long-term
decarbonisation goals. As the
third-largest energy consumer
in the world, India’s transition
strategy centres around three
interconnected pillars: expanding
renewable energy capacity,
deepening electrification, and
enhancing energy efficiency.

According to EY, India’s total
energy demand is expected to

Page 46

grow at a compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) of 4.7%
between FY2022 and FY2047.

According to EY, India’s total
energy demand is expected to
grow at a compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) of 4.7%
between FY2022 and FY2047.
During the same period, electricity
demand is expected to grow at a
faster compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 5.4%, reflecting

the country’s increasing reliance
on electrified solutions across
transportation, industry, and
residential sectors. By FY2047,
electricity is expected to meet 43%
of final energy demand, up from
just 19% in FY2022.
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All India solar and wind power generation
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Source; MNRE, MoP, CEA, EY analysis, hitps://oib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspy PRPRID=2064702

A transformative scale-up in
renewable energy deployment
underpins this shift. Non-fossil
fuel capacity is projected to
account for over 85% of total
installed power generation
capacity by FY2047, up

from approximately 42% in
FY2022. Solar energy will

be the cornerstone of this
transformation, making up 38% of
the power mix by FY2047, followed
by wind (19%), hydro (18%), and
nuclear (10%). The share of coal
is expected to decline from 51%
to just 11% over this period,
signifying a dramatic reshaping of
India’s power sector.

Non-fossil fuels
are expected to
account for more
than 85% of
power capacity
by FY2047.

RMC Switchgear Limited

On the demand side, sectors
such as industry and transport
will lead the electrification wave.
Industrial electricity consumption
is expected to grow nearly fourfold
by FY2047, driven by the adoption
of electric heating technologies
and the increasing electrification
of industrial processes. In
transport, electric vehicles (EVs)
are projected to contribute over
40% of total vehicle kilometres

by FY2047, supported by falling
battery costs and supportive policy
initiatives.

Additionally, the deployment of
green hydrogen is expected to
become commercially viable
within the decade. It will serve as
a critical vector for decarbonising
hard-to-abate sectors such

as steel, fertilisers, and long-
haul transport. The report also
identifies energy storage and
smart grid technologies as
essential enablers of India’s
transition, ensuring flexibility
and reliability in an increasingly
renewable-heavy grid.
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{

India requires
over USD

160 billion in
annual energy
investments by

FY2047.

EY underscores that to achieve
this ambitious vision, India will
require annual investments of
over USD 160 billion in the energy
sector by FY2047, a significant
increase from the current yearly
outlay of USD 70-80 billion. This
calls for proactive policy reform,
robust grid infrastructure,

and strengthened domestic
manufacturing to reduce

import dependencies in clean
technologies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 47



|RMD>

SWITCHGEARS LTD

RMC Switchgears Limited

I1) India’s Transmission
Sector Outlook

India’s transmission sector is
poised for a transformative growth
phase, driven by the country’s
increasing power demand and
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annually, which, if not supported
by infrastructure, could risk
triggering supply shortages. With
power demand projected to rise
across industrial, commercial,
and residential segments, a
commensurate expansion in

As of May 2025,
contracts for
over 223 million
smart meters

a rapid push toward integrating o i
renewable energy. According to transmission capacity has become have been .
Jefferies, India’'s combined power critical. awarded, with

generation and transmission
sectors are expected to grow 2.2
times over FY24-FY30, reaching
a cumulative investment size of
USD 280 billion, compared to the
investments made during FY17-
FY23.

This anticipated scale-up comes
in response to sustained power
consumption growth exceeding 7%

‘ According to
Jefferies, India’s

Central to this expansion is the
aggressive buildout of India’s
renewable energy ecosystem. The
government aims to install 450
GW of renewable energy capacity
by 2030, necessitating significant
transmission connectivity. To
enable this, the transmission

bid pipeline has seen a seven-
fold surge in just three years,
growing from under X150 billion
in February 2021 to over X1 trillion
in active bids today. This reflects

a decisive policy focus on creating
evacuation infrastructure ahead of
capacity addition.

[}]

more than 30
million already
installed across

India. }

hubs, EV charging networks, and
data centres. This signals a shift
toward a more flexible, future-
ready grid that can support India’s
net-zero ambitions and its broader
energy transition.

India’s Smart
Metering Market:

power a_nd_ The government aims to install India is undergoing a paradigm

transmission 450 GW of renewable energy shift in power distribution, with

sectors are capacity by 2030, necessitating smart metering emerging as a

expected to significant transmission central pillar of its reform agenda.
. connectivity. To reduce high distribution losses,

grow 2.2 times i increase billing accuracy, and

by FY2030. with Importantly, the new transmission i ) ]

y 1 W infrastructure is being designed prowd@T ansumers with real-time
USD 280 billion not just for traditional connectivity, usage insights, the Governr.n.ent of
in investments. but to support emerging energy India has launched an ambitious

demands—including grid-scale programme through the Smart
battery storage, green hydrogen Meter National Programme
Y-0-¥ Smart Consumer Meters Installation
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(SMNP] and the Revamped
Distribution Sector Scheme
(RDSS]). The scale of this initiative
is unprecedented, targeting the
installation of 250 million smart
meters by FY28, representing

a transformative $20 billion
opportunity for players across the
metering and digital infrastructure
value chain.

As of May 2025, contracts for over
223 million smart meters have
been awarded, with more than 30
million already installed across
India. States like Uttar Pradesh,
Bihar, Rajasthan, and Assam
have made significant strides,
while Maharashtra has unveiled
one of the largest deployments
through MSEDCL, valued at over
6,200 crore. These installations
mark more than just a shift from
analogue to digital—they signal a
move toward intelligent, data-
driven grids.

Despite steady progress, the

pace of smart meter installations
remains slower than anticipated,
with approximately two crore
meters installed as of January
2025. According to CARE Edge
Ratings, project awards under the
Advanced Metering Infrastructure
Service Provider (AMISP) model
are expected to grow at a

robust CAGR of 30-40% in the
coming years. However, actual
installations are likely to achieve
only about 25% of the 25-crore
target by March 2026, suggesting
a shortfall relative to the

According to
CARE Edge
Ratings, AMISP
project awards
are expected to
grow at a CAGR
of 30-40%

RMC Switchgear Limited
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government’s ambitious rollout
timeline.

Smart meters, equipped

with Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI), enable
two-way communication

between utilities and consumers,
facilitating automated billing,
remote operations, and the
implementation of dynamic tariffs.
By leveraging technologies such
as RF, PLC, and cellular networks,
these systems provide utilities
with real-time visibility and
control, enabling them to detect
outages, manage peak loads, and
forecast demand more accurately.
For consumers, these devices
offer usage insights, alerts, and
better cost management.

Impact on the ground is already
visible. In areas with dense
deployment, Aggregate Technical
and Commercial (AT&C]) losses
have declined from over 22% to
between 12% and 15%. Utilities
are witnessing improvements in
collection efficiency and revenue
assurance, strengthening the
case for faster nationwide
implementation.

The smart meter market itself
is on a high-growth trajectory.
As per IMARC Group estimates,
the Indian market was valued
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According to

IMARC Group,

the Smart

Metering Market

is set to grow

ata 15% CAGR,
reaching over

USD 1 billion by

2033. }

at USD 288.3 million in 2024

and is projected to reach USD
1.014 billion by 2033, growing at
a CAGR of 15%. Backed by the
RDSS’sX97,631 crore allocation—
India’s largest ever central
investment in power distribution—
this programme is not only
modernising infrastructure but
also creating strong downstream
opportunities for companies in
manufacturing, integration, and
data solutions.

For companies like RMC, which
are aligned with this digital
infrastructure shift, the smart
metering revolution offers a
critical avenue for expansion and
impact in India’s evolving power
ecosystem.
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IV) India Electrical
Enclosure Market:

The Indian electrical enclosure
market is undergoing a significant
transformation, driven by rapid
infrastructure development,
increased industrial automation,
and a growing emphasis on energy
reliability and safety. According to
IMARC Group, the market reached
USD 7.7 billion in 2024 and is
projected to grow at a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.9%
between 2025 and 2033, ultimately
reaching USD 13.6 billion by the
end of the forecast period.

‘ According to
IMARC Group,
the Indian
Electrical
Enclosure
Marketis
projected to
grow ata5.9%
CAGR, reaching
USD 13.6 billion
by 2033. }
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Several structural factors
underpin this growth. India’s
ongoing push for industrialisation,
expansion of the manufacturing
base, and proliferation of data
centres and urban infrastructure
projects are creating strong
demand for reliable electrical
enclosures. These enclosures
are crucial in protecting sensitive
electrical and electronic
equipment from dust, moisture,
and other environmental hazards,
thereby ensuring uninterrupted
operations and safety.

A major contributor to this surge
in demand is the increasing
investment in energy and
renewable infrastructure. As
India accelerates its shift toward
renewable energy, large-scale
solar parks, wind installations,
and energy distribution
networks require a variety of
outdoor enclosures, including
junction boxes, ring main units
(RMUs), and floor-mounted
panels, designed to withstand
extreme climatic conditions.
Non-metallic enclosures, owing
to their corrosion resistance

and lightweight properties, are
becoming increasingly preferred
across applications.

India Electrical Enclosure Market Forecast

Size, By Type, 2024-2033 (USD Milion)
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The Indian market is also
witnessing a shift in preferences
toward modular and prefabricated
designs, which offer scalability
and ease of maintenance.
Floor-mounted or free-standing
enclosures are gaining popularity,
particularly in power generation
and heavy industrial applications,
where larger capacities and
robustness are essential.

India’s share in the Asia-Pacific
electrical enclosure market—
estimated at over 36% in

2024—is poised to increase as
infrastructure modernisation
accelerates through Smart Cities
projects, smart grid initiatives, and
urban electrification programmes.
In this evolving landscape,
companies like RMC Switchgears
stand to benefit considerably.
With a diversified product
portfolio spanning electrical
enclosures, RMUs, metering
infrastructure, and solar EPC,
RMC is strategically positioned to
tap into this growing demand by
offering integrated, scalable, and
cost-effective solutions tailored to
India’s infrastructure ambitions.

As of May 2025,
contracts for
over 223 million
smart meters
have been
awarded, with
more than 30
million already
installed across

India. }



C) Business Overview

!

About RMC Switchgears

RMC Switchgears Limited

has undergone a significant
transformation from a traditional
manufacturer of electrical
enclosures into a comprehensive
energy solutions provider. What
began as a focused operation in
the manufacturing of LV panels
and enclosures has strategically
evolved to encompass a broad
suite of offerings across the solar
and electrical infrastructure value
chains.

RMC Switchgears Limited
operates through four integrated
business verticals, each
strategically aligned with India’s
evolving energy and infrastructure
landscape:

1. Electrical Products: This
vertical includes the design
and manufacture of smart
meter enclosures, feeder
pillars, distribution boxes,
and electrical panels. These
products are integral to
modern power distribution

RMC Switchgear Limited
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RMC Switchgears' business verticals span product to project focus.

Solar Products Electrical EPC

Develops solar
modules and
mounting structures

Undertakes turnkey
projects in power
infrastructure

Product-Oriented Project-Oriented

1.

Solar EPC
Constructs
Manufactures renewable energy
enclosures for projects

power distribution

systems, supporting DISCOMs
and infrastructure developers
in achieving energy efficiency

and safety.

2. Electrical EPC: This division
undertakes turnkey projects in
transmission and distribution
(T&D] infrastructure, 3.

substation automation, and
the deployment of smart
grids. It plays a critical role in
India’s mission to modernise
and expand its power delivery
network under government-
led schemes such as RDSS.

Solar EPC: Focused on
engineering, procurement,
and construction of renewable
energy projects, this vertical
includes ground-mounted
solar installations, rooftop
solar systems, and solar
pump deployments. RMC has
a successful execution track
record of over 200 MWp and
continues to scale in both
public and private sector
markets.

4. Solar Products: Under this
vertical, RMC is developing
backwards-integrated
manufacturing capabilities
for solar modules and
mounting structures. The
upcoming 1 GW solar module
manufacturing facility
in Jaipur underlines the
Company’s commitment to
vertical integration and ‘Make
in India’ strategy.

Page 51
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Key Milestones and
Strategic Developments

FY25 was a defining year in RMC
Switchgears’ growth trajectory,
marked by landmark project wins,
infrastructure expansion, and
growing industry recognition.

A significant breakthrough came
in the rooftop solar segment,
where the Company secured a
%320 crore Letter of Award (LOA)
for EPC execution, including a
%91 crore long-term Operations &
Maintenance (0&M] component.
This marked one of the largest
single-value orders for RMC from
RREC and significantly enhanced
visibility in the renewable EPC
space.

In parallel, RMC secured a 46 MW
+ 17 MW order from MAHAGENCO
under the MSKVY 2.0 scheme,

further strengthening its position
in government-backed distributed

solar and diversified EPC markets.

Strengthening its foothold in the
power distribution vertical, the
Company was awarded a 3108
crore project by Uttar Gujarat
Vij Company Limited (UGVCL)
for underground cabling and
RMU system deployment—an
area of strategic focus for

Financial Performance Summary
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urban electrification and smart
infrastructure development.

FY25 also marked a turning point
in RMC’s backwards integration
strategy. The Company performed
the Bhoomi Poojan for its state-
of-the-art 1 GW Solar Module
Manufacturing Plant .in Jaipur.
This X100 crore facility will
support both internal EPC needs
and external demand under the
government’s Production Linked
Incentive (PLI) and ‘Make in India’
mandates.

Additionally, the Company
increased its equity stake in

RMC Green Energy Pvt. Ltd. to
99.46%, thereby gaining greater
operational control and facilitating
enhanced collaboration in the
execution of solar parks.

Industry recognition followed
suit—RMC was honoured at the ET
Now “Gems of Rajasthan” Awards
for its innovation in Low Voltage
(LV] electrical solutions. The
Company also made its mark at
ELECRAMA 2025, India’s premier
electrical exhibition, showcasing
its expanding product suite and
technology leadership to a global
audience.

Metric FY24 FY25 % Change YoY
Revenue from
) 172.63 318.16 84.30%
Operations (X Cr)
Gross Profit (% Cr) 77.33 94.73 22.50%
Gross Margin (%) 44.80 29.77 -1502 bps
EBITDA R Cr) 34.12 53.22 55.98%
EBITDA Margin (%) 19.76 16.73 -304 bps
Profit Before Tax
23.48 42.65 81.64%
R Cr)
E;?f't After Tax R 14.90 31.46 111.14%
PAT Margin (%) 8.63 9.89 126 bps
Earni Per Sh
armings Fer=nare 1444 30.31 109.9%
(EPS) R)

RMC Switchgears reported a robust 84.30% year-on-year growth in revenue
from operations, reaching ¥318.16 crore in FY25 compared to ¥172.63 crore
in FY24. This sharp growth reflects improved execution in the Electrical EPC
and Electrical Products segments, driven by higher order intake and timely
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project deliveries. However,
execution capabilities in Solar
EPC are expected to take off from
Q1FY26, which may drive growth
levels to a new high.

Despite the surge in topline, gross
profit increased at a slower pace
of 22.50%, moving from ¥77.33
crore in FY24 t0X94.73 crore in
FY25. As a result, gross margins
declined significantly by 1502
basis points, from 44.80% to
29.77%. The margin compression
can be attributed to increased
expenses for establishing a
foundation to develop a team for
Solar EPC and Segment, where
revenues have yet to be generated.

EBITDA rose by 55.98% year-
on-year to ¥53.22 crore in FY25
from %X34.12 crore in FY24, driven
by increased execution activity.
However, the EBITDA margin
declined by 304 basis points to
16.73%, primarily due to higher
input costs, including increased
salaries in the Solar segment, as
well as a growing share of lower-
margin business lines.

On the profitability front, the
Company delivered a strong
performance. Profit Before Tax
(PBT) rose by 81.64% to I42.65
crore, and Profit After Tax (PAT)
more than doubled, growing by
111.14% to X31.46 crore from
14.90 crore. This was supported
by operating leverage, improved
collection efficiency, and adequate
cost controls. Notably, PAT
margins expanded by 126 basis
points to 9.89%, indicating better
bottom-Lline efficiency even amid
margin headwinds at the gross
level. Earnings per share (EPS]
more than doubled to X30.31,
reflecting strong shareholder
value creation and profit
scalability.



Strong and Resilient
Balance Sheet

RMC Switchgears closed FY25
with a robust balance sheet,
marked by a 77% YoY increase in
shareholders’ funds to X106.99
crore, driven by strong profitability
and earnings retention. The rise
in reserves from ¥50.09 crore in
FY24 t0 ¥96.43 crore reflects the
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Company’s disciplined capital
allocation.

Total assets increased to X268.50
crore, up 73% from X155.13 crore,
driven by higher investments

in tangible assets and capital
work-in-progress related to the
expansion of new manufacturing
capacity. Trade receivables and
inventories increased in line with

execution activity, with current
assets reaching X217.05 crore.

Despite an increase in borrowings
to fund growth, the Company
maintained a healthy current ratio
of 1.52 times, indicating strong
liquidity and financial flexibility.
This solid foundation positions
RMC well to support its scale-up
across solar, electrical, and smart

IV) Key Ratios:

D. Governance
Sustainability

1)

Particulars

metering verticals.

FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024

Return on Equity (ROE) (%) 37.54% 28.06%
Current Ratio (in times) 1.52 1.64
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 0.45 0.83
Net Profit Ratio (%) 9.93% 8.62%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 4.24 3.53
Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 17.11 12.72

Risk Management

Framework

RMC Switchgears Limited
maintains a proactive and
structured risk management
approach that is embedded
across its strategic, operational,
and compliance functions. The

Risk Category

Risk &

Risk Description

Company recognises that risks
are inherent to its diversified
operations, especially as it
scales new verticals, such as
Solar EPC and Manufacturing.
Through periodic assessments,
internal audits, and management
reviews, RMC identifies, evaluates,
and addresses risks that could
potentially impact its ability to
meet business objectives. A

resolute internal team, supported
by the Audit Committee and the
Board, ensures that controls are
continually monitored and refined
to respond to evolving internal
and external environments. The
Company’s risk management
framework ensures agility in
execution while safeguarding
stakeholder value.

Risk Mitigation Strategy

Execution Risk

The timely delivery of large-scale EPC
projects, especially those under government
schemes, may be impacted by delays in
approvals, site access, or supply chain
disruptions.

Detailed project planning, strengthened vendor base, and
deployment of experienced project management teams to
ensure time-bound execution.

Regulatory &
Policy Risk

Dependence on government schemes such as
RDSS and PM-KUSUM exposes the Company

to policy shifts, procedural delays, or funding

bottlenecks.

Continuous engagement with stakeholders, diversification
across sectors, and careful evaluation before committing
resources to specific schemes.

Working Capital
Risk

A high working capital cycle, especially in EPC
contracts, can strain liquidity and delay cash
flows.

Tight monitoring of receivables, milestone-based billing, and
structured financial planning to manage fund requirements
efficiently.

Supply Chain Risk

Disruption in the availability or price volatility
of key inputs, such as solar modules and steel,
may affect costs and timelines.

Backwards integration into module and structure
manufacturing, and long-term procurement planning to reduce
dependence on external suppliers.

Technology Risk

Failure to adopt or integrate evolving
technologies in smart metering and electrical
infrastructure may affect competitiveness.

Continued investments in R&D and collaborations to enhance
product innovation and ensure technological relevance.

Exposure to government utilities and public

Rigorous due diligence, conservative provisioning, and active

Credit Risk sector clients increases counterparty risk and | follow-up mechanisms to manage receivables and minimise
delays in collections. bad debt exposure.
RMC Switchgear Limited Page 53
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Internal Controls and
Systems

The Company maintains a robust
internal control framework
aligned with the scale, complexity,
and nature of its operations. The
Audit Committee periodically
assesses the effectiveness and
efficiency of this framework

to ensure optimal resource
utilisation, accurate and timely
financial reporting, statutory
compliance, and the safeguarding
of assets from unauthorised
access.

In addition to overseeing
financial controls, the Audit
Committee also monitors the
implementation of audit findings,
including improvements to

risk management policies

and practices. The Company
remains committed to structured
operations and has implemented
appropriate safeguards to
ensure reliable authorisation,
documentation, and transaction
reporting.

Internal controls form an integral
part of the Company’s governance
and day-to-day operations, aimed
at ensuring orderly business
conduct, compliance with

internal policies, protection of
assets, prevention of errors and
fraud, and reliability of financial
information.
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The Internal Audit function
independently assesses the
adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management, internal controls,
and governance processes. It

also recommends improvements
in operational and systemic
efficiencies and monitors

the implementation of Audit
Committee recommendations.

Comprehensive internal

audit reports are submitted
regularly to the management
and the Audit Committee. The
Committee evaluates the scope
and effectiveness of the internal
audit function in consultation
with the Internal Auditor. It also
seeks feedback to strengthen the
internal control environment and
identify areas for improvement.

Sustainability, ESG & CSR

At RMC Switchgears, sustainability
is embedded in our strategic

and operational philosophy. We
believe that long-term business
value can only be created by
integrating environmental,
social, and governance (ESG)
considerations into every aspect
of our functioning. Our diversified
portfolio—spanning Solar EPC,
solar product manufacturing,
and electrical infrastructure—
naturally aligns with India’s
decarbonisation goals and global
climate action commitments.
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Our proactive participation in
clean energy infrastructure,
including rooftop and ground-
mounted solar EPC projects,
positions us at the forefront of
India’s energy transition. These
initiatives directly contribute to
ESG objectives by reducing carbon
footprints and supporting grid
decarbonisation.

Beyond business, our social
responsibility efforts reflect

our commitment to inclusive

and equitable growth. In FY25,

we undertook developmental
support for a government

school in Chaksu, Rajasthan,

as part of our CSR initiatives.

This project aimed to enhance
access to quality education and
infrastructure for underprivileged
students, aligning with the UN
Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), particularly those related
to education and community
development. Our CSR framework
is guided by transparency, impact
measurement, and a commitment
to making a tangible difference in
the communities we serve.

On the governance front, we
uphold the highest standards

of ethical conduct, regulatory
compliance, and board
accountability. The Company has
established internal mechanisms
to regularly assess its ESG
performance, and we are working
toward broader disclosures

and sustainability metrics that
will enhance transparency for
stakeholders.

As we advance, we aim to further
integrate ESG principles into our
procurement, operations, and
project design, while expanding
our CSR footprint through
impactful programs in education,
health, and rural development.
Sustainability at RMC is not a
standalone initiative—it is a
cornerstone of our business
purpose and a guiding principle
for future growth.



E. Future Outlook

RMC Switchgears is on a
transformative path, guided by

an aspirational vision, to scale its
topline to 5,000 crore by FY2030.
This vision is anchored in strategic
diversification, vertical integration,
and a sharp focus on sectors
aligned with India’s long-term
infrastructure and clean energy
priorities. While aspirational, this
target reflects the management’s
confidence in the evolving market
landscape and RMC’s readiness

to lead in next-generation energy
and electrical solutions.

For FY26, our directional
expectations are calibrated for
strong momentum. Building

on the execution strength
demonstrated in FY25, the
Company is strategically
positioned to sustain high
double-digit revenue growth.
With a visible order book, active
participation in high-value
tenders, and the addition of new
market segments, including solar
products and intelligent electrical
infrastructure, the topline
trajectory is well supported.
Furthermore, the anticipated
improvement in the smart
metering ecosystem and project
clearances under RDSS augur
well for business continuity and
scale.

One of the core pillars of our
growth strategy is vertical
integration. The upcoming 1 GW
solar module manufacturing
facility is not only expected to
support internal EPC needs but
also open avenues for third-party
supply, thereby boosting margins
and operational resilience.

RMC Switchgear Limited
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In parallel, the expansion of
our smart product portfolio—
particularly loT-enabled LT
Distribution Boxes and other
intelligent enclosures—is aimed
at tapping emerging demand
for digitised and automated
electrical infrastructure. This
forward-looking diversification
is supported by disciplined
capital allocation and an asset-
light development model, which
mitigates risk while capturing
market potential.

We remain committed to
delivering consistent value to

all stakeholders—customers,
shareholders, employees, and the
broader community. Our approach
blends innovation with operational
rigour, ensuring that RMC
continues to scale responsibly,
adapt to future technologies, and
contribute meaningfully to India’s
sustainable growth ambitions.
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Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the
management discussion and
analysis report relating to the
Company’s objectives, projections,
outlook, expectations, estimates
and others may constitute
‘forward-looking statements’
within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Actual
results may differ from such
expectations, whether expressed
or implied. Several factors

could significantly impact the
Company’s operations. These
include climatic and economic
conditions that affect demand and
supply, government regulations
and taxation, as well as natural
calamities over which the
Company has no direct control.
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Directors’ Report for FY2025

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31 Annual Report on the affairs, business and

operations of RMC Switchgears Limited (“the Company”/ “your company”) together with the
Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 315 March, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended 315 March 2025, is summarised

below:
(Amount in Lakhs)
Standalone Standalone Consolidated | Consolidated
for for for for
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Particulars year ended year ended year ended year ended
31%March, | 31 March, |31%March, | 31% March,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue From Operations 31,630.49 17,263.10 31816.03 17263.10
Other Income 167.65 82.97 126.44 82.97
Total Revenue 31798.13 17,346.07 31942.47 17346.07
Profit Before Depreciation,
Finance Costs, Exceptional items | 5441.69 3493.64 5448.99 3493.61
and Tax Expenses
Less: Depreciation & 311.21 282.54 311.21 282.54
Amortisation Expenses
Less: Finance Cost 871.98 864.19 871.98 864.19
Less: Exceptional Item 0.00 204.91 0 20491
Profit Before Tax 4258.50 2,142.00 4265.80 2141.98
Less: Tax Expenses
(Current & Deferred) 1117.71 653.25 1119.57 653.25
Profit After Tax 3140.79 1,488.74 3146.23 1488.72
Earnings per share (Nominal
value per share X 10/-) Basic & 30.25 14.44 30.30 14.44
Diluted

Note 1: Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary

RMC Switchgear Limited
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STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company recorded a Standalone Total Income 0f 331,798.13 lakhs,
compared to X17,346.07 lakhs in the previous year. The Standalone Net Profit (after tax) stood at
%3,140.79 lakhs, as against X1,488.74 lakhs in the previous financial year. On a consolidated basis, the
Total Income stood at 331,942.47 lakhs, and the Consolidated Net Profit (after tax) stood at X3,146.23
lakhs.

The growth in standalone income and profitability reflects the Company’s continued focus on
delivering high-quality, technology-driven solutions and effective cost management. Our sustained
operational efficiency, customer-centric approach, and targeted sales efforts contributed to this
performance.

The management remains committed to building on this momentum by leveraging innovation,
expanding in key markets, and driving value for all stakeholders through sustainable and profitable
growth.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-25, with a view
to conserving resources and ploughing back the profits into the business for future expansion,
strengthening operations, and enhancing the overall growth of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount has been proposed by the Board of Directors to be transferred to any specific reserve for
the financial year 2024-25. The entire profit of X3,140.79 lakhs for the financial year 2024-25 is
proposed to be retained in the Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS. IF ANY., AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED IN BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company, that have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS. IF ANY

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company. A
detailed analysis of the operational and financial performance of the Company is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report (“MDAR?”), which forms part of this Report and is
annexed herewith as Annexure [4].
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from
%11,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven Crore only) divided into 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakh) Equity
Shares of ¥10/- each to X15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore only) divided into 1,50,00,000 (One
Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of X10/- each.

During the year, your Company issued 2,18,500 Equity Shares of 10 each on a preferential basis to
the Promoter, Promoter Group and identified persons at a price of X687 per Equity Share, aggregating
to X15,01,09,500 (Rupees Fifteen Crore One Lakh Nine Thousand and Five Hundred only).

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company allotted 25,000 equity shares of 10 each
(aggregating to 32,50,000 towards face value) at an issue price of I50 per share, pursuant to the
exercise of stock options under the Employees Stock Purchase Scheme, 2023, by Mr. Manish Mantri,
Chief Operating Officer of the Company.

As a result, the Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2025
stood at X1,055.18 lakh, comprising 1,05,51,800 Equity Shares of X10 each.

As on 31st March, 2025, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company hold any
instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company. All the shares of the Promoters held in the
Company are in dematerialised form.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited, accepted nor renewed any deposits,
and there is no amount which has been considered as a deemed deposit within the meaning of Sections
73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended from time to time). Accordingly, no amount of principal or interest remained unpaid or
unclaimed at the end of the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2025.

The Company has, however, accepted borrowings from Directors, which are exempt from the
definition of deposits under the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars of such borrowings are disclosed
in the financial statements under Note No. 4 — Long Term Borrowings (Loan from Directors). Further,
the Company has not accepted any borrowings from relatives of Directors during the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT BY THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules
made thereunder, the details of loans given, guarantees provided, securities given, and investments
made by the Company during the financial year 202425 are provided herein:

e During the year under review, your Company has not provided any guarantees or security in
connection with any loan to any person or body corporate.

e However, the Company has granted advances amounting to 3264.69 lakh to its Subsidiary
Company, RMC Green Energy Private Limited, in compliance with the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

e The said loans/advances have been made for business purposes and are within the prescribed
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limits, and the Company has ensured compliance with all applicable provisions of the Act and
the rules made thereunder.

e The particulars of advances given and investments made by the Company as on 31st March,
2025 are disclosed in Notes No. 11 & 12 of the Standalone Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2025, which form part of this Annual Report.

Accordingly, the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Section 134(3)(g)
and the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loans and guarantees
given, security provided in connection with a loan, and investments made by the Company.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As on the date of this Report, the Company has the following Subsidiary Companies:

Name of the Subsidiary Company Date of Incorporation (DOI)
Intelligent Hydel Solutions Private Limited 29th January, 2024

RMC Green Energy Private Limited 15th July, 2024

RMC Solar Park Private Limited 19th September, 2024

RMC Solar One Private Limited 26th March, 2025

As the subsidiary companies have been newly incorporated during the financial year under review,
there has been no change in the nature of their business since incorporation.

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC-1, is attached as Annexure 1 to this Report.

In compliance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements of the
subsidiaries are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during business hours on all working days (excluding second Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays)
up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. Members desirous of obtaining a copy of the financial
statements of the subsidiaries may write to the Company at its Official Email id- cs@rmcindia.in.

The Standalone Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, subsidiary Financial
Statements, and all other documents required to be attached to this Report are also available on the
website of the Company at: https://www.rmcindia.in.

The particulars of the financial performance of the said subsidiaries are provided as part of the
consolidated financial statement and hence not repeated herein for the sake of brevity

During the financial year under review, no entity has become or ceased to be a Subsidiary, of the
Company, apart from the incorporation of the above-mentioned subsidiaries.

The Company had no Associates and Joint Venture Companies within the meaning of section 2(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31 March, 2025.
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CREDIT RATING

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year 202425, the Company obtained credit ratings from
Infomerics Valuation and Rating Private Limited, a SEBI-registered credit rating agency. The
ratings assigned were IVR BBB- / Stable for the long-term bank facilities and IVR A3 for the short-
term bank facilities (including proposed facilities).

AMENDMENT IN MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, the Company has altered Clause V of its Memorandum of Association
to reflect the increase in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from X11,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Eleven Crore only) divided into 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakh) Equity Shares of X10/- each to
%15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore only) divided into 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity
Shares of X10/- each, pursuant to the approval of the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution
passed through Postal Ballot, the results of which were declared on 19th January, 2025, based on the
Scrutinizer’s Report dated the same day, in reference to the Notice of Postal Ballot dated 19th
December, 2024.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted, which is in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. All the Directors
of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as directors in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. Further, none of the directors has been debarred from holding office
as a director by virtue of any order of the SEBI or any other authority.

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 315 March, 2025 is as follows;

Sr. No. | Name DIN Designation
1 AKHILESH KUMAR JAIN 03466588 Director
2 ANKIT AGRAWAL 00793035 Whole-time director
3 ASHOK KUMAR AGARWAL 00793152 Managing Director
4 KRATI AGARWAL 08789232 Independent Director
5 KULDEEP KUMAR GUPTA 01591373 Independent Director
6 KULJIT SINGH POPLI 01976135 Independent Director
7 NEHA AGARWAL 07540311 Whole-time director
8 SHRIRAM VISHWASRAO MANE | 09701613 Independent Director

RETIRE BY ROTATION AND RE-APPOINTMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of
Association of the Company, and Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on General Meetings issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain (DIN: 03466588), Director,
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is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has recommended his re-appointment to the
members of the Company.

The brief profile of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain and other relevant details, as required under Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the ICSI, are provided in the Notice convening the 31st Annual
General Meeting, forming part of this Annual Report.

At the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28.09.2024, the following Directors were
re-appointed for a further term pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard—2
issued by the ICSI:

e Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 00793152) was re-appointed as Chairperson cum Managing
Director of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 15 April, 2024 to 31
March, 2029.

e Mr. Ankit Agrawal (DIN: 00793035), who retired by rotation and being eligible, was
reappointed at the 30th AGM of the Company. He was further re-appointed as Whole-time
Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company to hold office for a period of 5
years w.e.f. It April, 2024 to 315 March, 2029.

e Mrs. Neha Agrawal (DIN: 07540311), Non-executive Director of the Company, was re-
designated as Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years w.e.f.
1% April, 2024 to 31% March, 2029.

APPOINTMENT / CESSATION

Mr. Anil Jain (DIN: 07575312) was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director (Non-Executive
Independent) with effect from 20th May, 2025, who shall hold office till the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The Board of Directors have recommended the appointment of Mr. Anil Jain (DIN:
07575312) at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 20" May, 2025 to 19®
May, 2028. Resolution for his appointment is being proposed at the 31 Annual General Meeting.

Detailed profile of Mr. Anil Jain (DIN: 07575312) and other relevant details, as required under
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Secretarial Standard—2 issued by the ICSI, are provided in the Notice convening the 31st Annual
General Meeting, forming part of this Annual Report.

Your Board of Directors believes that Mr. Anil Jain has the requisite integrity, expertise, specialised
knowledge, experience, and proficiency, and his appointment on the Board will support in broadening
the overall expertise of the Board and will bring wide experience.

Further, Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain (DIN: 03466588) was appointed by the Board of Directors of the

Company as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Non-Independent) at their meeting held on 15%
July, 2024, under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. The members of the Company, at the 30™
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Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2024, on recommendation of the Board, approved his
appointment as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Kuljit Singh Popli was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director (Non-Executive
Independent) with effect from 15" July, 2024, and his appointment was regularised by the shareholders
at the 30th Annual General Meeting held on 28" September, 2024, for a term of five consecutive years
from 15" July, 2024 to 14™ July, 2029. However, his tenure came to an untimely end on 18" April,
2025 due to his sad demise.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 15th July, 2025, on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on the same day, has approved the
proposal for the re-appointment of Mrs. Krati Agarwal (DIN: 08789232) and Mr. Kuldeep Kumar
Gupta (DIN:01591373) as Independent Directors of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, who
are proposed to be re-appointed for their second term of five (5) consecutive years w.e.f. 17th July,
2025 to 16th July, 2030, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149(10) and 149(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV thereto and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the ensuing 31st Annual General Meeting.

As on the date of this report, the following persons are designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules made thereunder:

e Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Chairperson cum Managing Director
e Mr. Ankit Agrawal, Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer
e Mrs. Neha Agarwal, Whole-time Director & Chief Financial Officer
e  Mrs. Shivani Bairathi, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Changes in Company Secretary & Compliance Officer during the Financial Year 2024-25 and
thereafter upto the date of this report:

Name Designation Date (.)f Date of Resignation
Appointment
. Company Secretary & th th
Ms. Shivi Kapoor Compliance Officer 14™ August, 2023 29" May, 2024
Company Secretary &

Mr. Rahul Sharma

Compliance Officer

27 July, 2024

5% August, 2024

Mr. Anand Chaturvedi

Chief Financial Officer

1%t April, 2024

16" April, 2025

Mr. Anand Chaturvedi

Compliance Officer

29t October, 2024

17% December, 2024

Mr. Pushpendra Singh

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

17" December, 2024

28" March, 2025

Mrs. Shivani Bairathi

Compliance Officer

23 June, 2025

Mrs. Shivani Bairathi

Company Secretary

4™ July, 2025

Mrs. Neha Agrawal*

Chief Financial Officer

4™ July, 2025
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*Mrs. Neha Agrawal is an Executive Director of the Company and was entrusted with the additional
charge of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 04" July, 2025

None of the KMP of the Company is holding office in any other Company as KMP, and none of the
Directors/ KMP of the Company are disqualified.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received the necessary declaration of independence from all Independent Directors
of the Company, that he/she meets the criteria of Independence as envisaged in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and are not disqualified from continuing as Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have registered themselves with the
Independent Director’s Databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. Furthermore,
the Company has also received statements from all the Independent Directors that they have complied
with the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the act and also a
statement on compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel
formulated by the Company.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Independent Directors met once during the year under report, i.e., 17" December, 2024, without
the presence of Non-Independent Directors or members of the management.

The Independent Directors, in their meeting, evaluated the performance of the Non-Independent
Directors, the Chairperson of the Company taking into account the views of executive directors and
non-executive directors and also of the Board as a Whole, against pre-defined and identified criteria
and expressed their satisfaction over the same. The Independent Directors further assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the management and the Board of Directors.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The performance evaluation was conducted through a structured process, by way of circulation of
separate questionnaires designed for the Board, its committees and individual Directors. The
evaluation framework covered, inter alia, the following parameters:

Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Directors

e For Individual Directors: Knowledge and expertise, level of participation, independence of
judgment, contribution to strategy and risk management, safeguarding stakeholders’ interests,
and effectiveness in discharging their duties.

e For Independent Directors (in addition to the above):

Bringing objective and independent judgment in Board deliberations.

Upholding ethical standards of integrity and probity.

Safeguarding the interests of minority shareholders.

Contributing to and monitoring the Company’s corporate governance practices.

Devoting sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations as Independent

Directors.

O O O O O
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e For the Chairperson (in addition to the above):

o Providing effective leadership to the Board and ensuring its overall effectiveness in
functioning.
Promoting a culture of openness and constructive debate in the Board.
Facilitating the effective contribution of all Directors.
Ensuring that the Board decisions are aligned with the Company’s strategic goals.
Maintaining a high level of engagement with stakeholders and upholding the highest
standards of corporate governance.

O O O O

The outcome of the performance evaluation was discussed by the Board at its meeting. Based on the
evaluation exercise, the overall performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors,
including the Chairperson, was found to be highly satisfactory, demonstrating effective functioning
and a strong commitment to the Company’s objectives

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In accordance with the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
put in place a Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors to enable them to understand the
nature of the industry, the Company’s operations, business model, and their roles, rights,
responsibilities, and obligations in the Company.

The programme also aims to update the Independent Directors on a continuous basis about significant
developments in the Company, regulatory updates, and changes in the business environment so as to
enable them to make well-informed decisions and contribute effectively to the Company.

During the financial year 2024-25, presentations were made at the Board and Committee meetings
from time to time on various matters, inter alia, covering the Company’s operations, financial
performance, risk management framework, internal control systems, industry overview, and regulatory
updates. Site visits were also organised for the Directors to help them gain first-hand insight into the
Company's operations and functioning.

The details of the Familiarisation Programme are also available on the Company’s website at:

https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (c) and Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

2. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

3. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
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4. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

5. The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

6. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD DURING THE YEAR

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met at regular intervals during the financial year to discuss and deliberate on
business strategies, operational and financial performance, policy matters, and other key agenda items.

Notices and detailed agenda papers for each meeting, including explanatory notes, were circulated well
in advance to all Directors to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board also reviewed the
observations and recommendations of its Committees, which were placed before the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board met 13 (Thirteen) times on the following dates:

15t April 2024, 25" May 2024, 2™ July 2024, 15" July 2024, 7" August 2024, 31 August 2024, 16™
September 2024, 215 October 2024, 14™ November 2024, 6" December 2024, 17" December 2024,
12 February 2025, and 24™ March 2025.

The gap between two consecutive Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days
as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.

The attendance of each Director at the Meetings of the Board of Directors held during the financial
year 2024-25 is as follows:

Number of No. of Attendance
Serial Board Board at the last
Name of Directors Designation Meetings .
No. entitled to Meetings AGM
Attended 28.09.2024
attend
Mr. Ashok Kumar gl;?;rperson
1 Agarwal Manacin 13 13 yes
(DIN: 00739152) anaging
Director
Whole-time
) Mr. Ankit Agrawal Director & 13 13 o
(DIN: 00793035) Chief Executive y
Officer
Mrs. Neha Agarwal Whole time
3 (DIN: 07540311) director 13 13 yes
Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta | Independent
4 (DIN: 01591373) Director 13 13 yes
Mrs. Krati Agarwal Independent
> (DIN: 08789232) Director 13 13 yes
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6 Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Independent 13 13 o
Mane (DIN: 09701613) | Director Y

7 Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain | Non-Executive 9 9 yes
(DIN:03466588) Director

3 Mr. Kuljit Singh Popli Independent 9 9 yes
(DIN: 01976135) Director

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on 31%t March, 2025, the Board has constituted four (4) Committees in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. These Committees are
appropriately composed and play a vital role in ensuring focused attention on various areas, including
financial reporting, audit and internal controls, compliance matters, nomination and remuneration of
Directors and Senior Management, and corporate social responsibility.

Each Committee functions as per its respective charter or terms of reference, as approved by the Board.
The performance of the Committees is periodically evaluated by the Board. All observations,
recommendations, and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for its consideration
and approval.

The following Committees of the Board were in existence as on 31st March, 2025:

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

e

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of your Company has duly constituted the Audit Committee in accordance
with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules made
thereunder.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Audit Committee comprises the following members:

e Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta — Chairperson (Non-Executive Independent Director)

e Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal — Member (Chairperson Cum Managing Director)

e Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane — Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)
During the year, there was no change in the composition of Audit Committee. The powers, role and
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and are aligned with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, to the extent applicable.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee:
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The Committee is entrusted with reviewing financial reporting processes, audit reports, internal control
systems, risk management frameworks, and compliance with statutory and legal requirements. The
Committee functions in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the financial year 2024-25, 5 (Five) Audit Committee Meetings were held on the following
dates:

e 25th May 2024

e 7th August 2024

e 31st August 2024

e 14th November 2024
e 24th March 2025

The Board of Directors has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during
the year.

The attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2024-
25 is as follows:

Serial No. of No. of
No Name of Members Designation Meetings Entitled | Meetings

) to Attend Attended
1 Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta Chairperson 5 5

(DIN: 01591373)

Mr. Ashok Kumar
’ Agarwal (DIN:00739152) Member 5 5

Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane
3 (DIN: 09701613) Member > >

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors of your Company has duly constituted the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the applicable rules made thereunder.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following
members:

e Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta — Chairperson (Non-Executive Independent Director)
e Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane — Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)
e Mrs. Krati Agarwal — Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)

During the year, there was no change in the composition of the Audit Committee. The powers, role
and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are aligned with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable. The Committee is entrusted with
formulating criteria for appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
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Senior Management, performance evaluation of Directors, Board diversity, and other related matters,
as may be referred by the Board of Directors.

During the financial year 2024-25, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were held on the following dates:

o st April 2024

e 2nd July 2024

e 15th July 2024

o 3lst August 2024

e 29th October 2024

e 17th December 2024
e 10th January 2025

e 17th January 2025

The Board of Directors has accepted all the recommendations made by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee during the year.

Attendance of Members at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings (FY 2024-
25):

Serial No. of No. of
No Name of Members Designation Meetings Entitled | Meetings
) to Attend Attended
Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta )
1 (DIN: 01591373) Chairperson 8 8
Mrs. Krati Agarwal
2 | (DIN: 08789232) Member 8 8
Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane
3 (DIN: 09701613) Member 8 8

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board of Directors of your Company has duly constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the applicable rules made thereunder.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises the following members:

e Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta — Chairperson (Non-Executive Independent Director)
e Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane — Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)
e Mrs. Krati Agarwal — Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)

During the year, there was no change in the composition of Audit Committee. The powers, role and
terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are aligned with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and the Charter of the Committee. The Committee, inter alia, is entrusted with:

e Reviewing and resolving shareholders’/investors’ grievances, including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of Annual Reports, dividends, etc.
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o Considering and approving requests relating to issuance of duplicate share certificates.

e Monitoring the investor grievance redressal mechanism and status of investor complaints.

o Performing such other functions as may be specifically delegated by the Board from time to
time.

During the financial year 2024-25, 1 (One) meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was
held on:

e 3lst August, 2024

The Committee also reviewed the existing procedures to ensure effective and prompt resolution of
shareholder concerns. There were no investor grievance complaints pending as on 31st March, 2025.
The Committee also reviewed the existing procedures to ensure effective and prompt resolution of
shareholder concerns.

Particulars No. of Complaints
Pending at the beginning of the year 0
Received during the year 0
Resolved during the year 0
Pending at the end of the year 0

Attendance of Members at the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings (FY 2024-25):

Serial | Name of Members Designation No. of No. of
No. Meetings Entitled | Meetings
to Attend Attended

Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta

1 (DIN: 01591373) Chairperson : :
Mrs. Krati Agarwal

2 (DIN: 08789232) Member : 1

3 Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane Member 1 1

(DIN: 09701613)

CSR Committee

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

As on 31st March, 2025, the CSR Committee comprises the following members:
e Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta — Chairperson (Non-Executive Independent Director)
e Mrs. Neha Agarwal — Member (Executive Director)

e Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal —-Member (Chairperson Cum Managing Director

During the year, there was no change in the composition of Audit Committee. The Committee is inter-
alia, entrusted with the following responsibilities:
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e Formulating and recommending to the Board a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

e Formulation and recommending to the Board, an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of its CSR
Policy.

e Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities.

e Monitoring the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

o Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for the implementation of the CSR projects,
programs, or activities.

During the financial year 2024-25, 1 (One) meeting of the CSR Committee was held on:
o 25t May, 2024

Attendance of Members at CSR Committee Meeting during FY 2024-25:

Serial No. of No. of
No Name of Members Designation Meetings Entitled | Meetings
) to Attend Attended

| Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane Chairperson 1 1
' (DIN: 09701613) P

Mrs. Neha Agarwal
(DIN:07540311)
Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain

3 (DIN:03466588) Member ! !

Member 1 1

NO DEFAULT

The Company has not defaulted in payment of interest and repayment of any loan to any of the financial
institutions and/ or banks during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has adopted a policy on Related Party Transactions (RPTs) to ensure that all transactions
with related parties are conducted in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length. The policy is
designed to ensure transparency and fairness in the Company’s dealings with its related parties. The
policy is also available on the website of the company and can be accessed at
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Company’s RPT Policy, all related party
transactions are first approved by the Audit Committee and thereafter placed before the Board for their
consideration and approval.

During the year, all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. There were no materially
significant related party transactions that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large. Prior omnibus approval was obtained for repetitive transactions of a similar nature entered in
the ordinary course of business during the financial year under review.
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A statement of all related party transactions was periodically presented to the Audit Committee
meeting for its review.

Details of contracts/arrangements/ transactions with related party which are required to be reported in
Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134(3)(h) read with Section 188 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure 2 to this Report. The details of the
related party transactions are disclosed in Note No. 27 to the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Rakesh Ashok & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 011273C), were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 30.09.2022 for a period of five years, to hold office from the conclusion of the said
Annual General Meeting held in the year 2022 till the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2027.

The Statutory Auditors have submitted their Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. The said Report does not contain any qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks. The information referred to in the Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory
and does not call for any further comments.

Other Disclosures

e The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the Peer Review
process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid certificate
issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAL

e As required under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received a
written certificate from the Statutory Auditors confirming their eligibility for appointment and
that they are not disqualified to continue with their appointment under Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s. B. K.
Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the said financial year is annexed herewith
as ‘Annexure—3’ and forms an integral part of this Report. It is hereby confirmed that the Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark for the year under
review.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at their meeting
held on 04.07.2025, recommended the appointment of M/s V.M. & Associates, Company Secretaries
(Firm Registration No. P1984RJ039200) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five
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consecutive years, commencing from the Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial Year 202930, subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board has received the consent and eligibility confirmation from M/s V.M. & Associates for the
said appointment, confirming that they are not disqualified to act as Secretarial Auditors under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, and as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 20th May, 2025, approved the
appointment of M/s Deepak Mittal & Company as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial
Year 2025-26.

For the previous Financial Year 202425, the Company had appointed M/s Deepak Mittal & Company
as the Cost Auditors and ensured compliance with all applicable provisions under Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Cost Audit report for the year under review was placed before the Board,
and there were no audit qualifications in the report.

The Company has, in compliance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government. The Cost Auditors are entrusted with
the responsibility of verifying the accuracy of such records and submitting the audit report to the Board
within the prescribed timelines.

Internal Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under,
Mr. Rakesh Kumawat, Chartered Accountant was appointed as the Internal Auditor of the Company
for the financial year 2024-25. The Internal Auditor has placed the Internal Audit Report for every
quarter and the same was discussed with the Board.

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors, Cost Auditors, and internal
auditors did not report any instances of fraud to the Audit Committee/Board of Directors under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD POLICIES

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors
and Employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and also report instances of leak of unpublished
price sensitive information. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the
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Audit Committee. Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/Employees has been denied access
to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at the web link
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration policy duly adopted and approved by the
Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company includes the terms and conditions
for appointment and payment of remuneration to the Directors and KMP and other Senior Management
Personnel including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a
director as per Section 178 and Schedule IV of the Act. There have been no changes in the said policy
during the year. The said policy may be accessed on the website of the Company at the web link
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

Risk Management Policy

The Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee
of the Board reviews the same periodically. The Risk Management policy may be accessed on the
website of the Company viz. https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

Other Codes and Policies may be accessed on the website of the Company viz,
http://www.rmcindia.in.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India, relating to meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings
respectively, have been duly complied with.

ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the Annual Return of the Company has been placed on the website of the Company at the
web link http:/www.rmcindia.in.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the
Board and all Employees in the course of day-to-day business operations of the Company. The
Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings/ behaviors
of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to counter such acts. The Code has been
uploaded on the Company’s web link - https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by
the Directors and the Designated Employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to integrity in the workplace, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholder.
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All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the
Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted a code of conduct and code of practices and
procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive information to preserve the confidentiality
of price-sensitive information, to prevent misuse thereof and regulate trading by designated persons.
The code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive information is
also available on the Company’s website, i.e.

https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

The Compliance Officer is responsible for implementing the Code. All the Directors and the
Designated Employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

LISTING OF SHARES

The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited — SME Platform, and the Annual listing fee for
the year 2025-26 has been duly paid.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

As per Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility for
ensuring that the Company has implemented a robust system and framework of internal financial
controls. The Company has laid down an adequate system of internal controls, policies and procedures
for ensuring orderly and efficient Policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures. The internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. The
effectiveness of internal financial controls is ensured through management reviews, controlled self-
assessment and independent testing by the Internal Audit Team.

The members of the Audit Committee of your Company are well-versed with the financial
management. Such an adequate internal control system helps in the identification of potential operation
processes.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting as required under Regulation 34(2) (f) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to our
Company for the financial year 2025-26.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or courts that would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As per Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, certain provisions relating to Corporate Governance are not applicable to the following class of
companies:

e A listed entity having paid-up equity share capital not exceeding X10 Crore and Net Worth not
exceeding %25 Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year.

e A listed entity that has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange.

For the purpose of these Regulations, the term “SME Exchange” refers to the recognised segment of a
stock exchange in India, which provides a platform for Small and Medium Enterprises to raise capital,
as defined under the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, and the
rules framed thereunder.

Since the Company is listed on the SME Platform of BSE Limited, compliance with the provisions of
Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company, and it does not form part of the Annual Report
for the financial year 2024-25.

In line with same, the Company files the Corporate Governance-Non-Applicability Certificate to BSE
on a quarterly basis as per Regulation 27(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under regulation 34 (2) (f) read with
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is
presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report as ‘Annexure-4°.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The relevant information on the conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in ‘Annexure — 5’ forming part of this Annual
Report.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are annexed to this Report as ‘Annexure—6’.

The statement containing names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and their
other details, as required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this Report
as ‘Annexure-7’.

MATERNITY BENEFIT PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT
ACT 1961:

The Company declares that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act,
1961. All eligible women employees have been extended the statutory benefits prescribed under the
Act, including paid maternity leave, continuity of salary and service during the leave period, and post-
maternity support such as nursing breaks and flexible return-to-work options, as applicable. The
Company remains committed to fostering an inclusive and supportive work environment that upholds
the rights and welfare of its women employees in accordance with applicable laws.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has a zero-tolerance policy towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted
a Policy on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace”, covering all aspects as
contained under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has also set up an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received
and disposed off during the year::

Particulars Number of Cases

Complaints of sexual harassment received during the year

Complaints disposed of during the year

Complaints pending as on 31st March, 2025

S| Ol o | O

Complaints pending more than 90 days
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company is committed to conducting its business in a socially responsible manner, aligning with
the principles of sustainability and ethical governance. In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed a CSR policy which sets out the objective, areas,
activities and the manner in which the expenditure on CSR obligation would be carried out by the
Company. The policy underscores the Company’s commitment to contribute positively to society and
the environment and the same is available on the website of the Company at https://www.rmcindia.in/.

In compliance with Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have
constituted a CSR Committee which recommends and monitors the CSR activities undertaken by the
Company.

As mandated under Section 135 (5), the company has, during the financial year 2024-25, spent two
per cent of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding
financial years. A breakup of expenditure carried out and other details related to CSR activities have
been disclosed in the Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility annexed with the Board’s
Report as “Annexure 10”.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO THE DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

The Company does not have any of its securities lying in a demat/unclaimed suspense account arising
out of public/ bonus/ right issues as at 31st March 2025. Hence, the particulars relating to the aggregate
number of shareholders and the outstanding securities in suspense account and other related matters
are not applicable.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(“IEPF Rules”), any dividend which remains unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of
transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, shall be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF).

The Company had declared and paid an interim dividend of R0.20 (20 paise) per equity share during
the financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, any portion of the said dividend which remains unpaid or
unclaimed as on the expiry of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account
shall be required to be transferred to the IEPF in the year 2030.

During the financial year 2024-25, no amounts were required to be transferred to the IEPF by the
Company.
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There were no application made nor any proceedings initiated/ pending against the Company under
the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company grants share-based benefits to eligible employees with a view to attracting and retaining
the best talent, encouraging employees to align individual performances with the Company objectives,
and promoting their increased participation in the growth of the Company.

A. RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED EMPLOYEES STOCK PURCHASE SCHEME-2023
The shareholders of Company have granted their approval in Annual General Meeting held on 30t

September, 2023 to introduce and implement Employee Stock Purchase Scheme-2023 (“ESPS-2023")
to create, grant, offer issue and allot at any time in one or more tranches not exceeding 2,00,000 (Two
Lakh) equity shares to or for the benefit of Employees and Directors of the Company and to such
persons as may, from time to time, be allowed to be eligible for the benefits of the Scheme exercisable
into not more than 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs) equity shares in accordance with the provisions of section
62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of The Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

The ESPS-2023 aims to enhance the employee engagement, to reward the employees for their
association and performance as well as to motivate them to contribute to the growth and profitability

of the Company. The details pursuant to provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in
respect of ESPS-2023 of the Company is annexed to this Report as Annexure 8.

The ESPS 2023 is available on the Company’s website at
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

B. RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME-2024
The shareholders of Company have granted their approval in Annual General Meeting held on 28t

September, 2024 to introduce and implement Employee Stock Option Scheme-2024 (“ESOS-2024")
to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any time in one or more tranches stock options not exceeding
2,00,000 (Two Lakh) to or for the benefit of Employees and Directors of the Company and to such
persons as may, from time to time, be allowed to be eligible for the benefits of the Scheme exercisable
into not more than 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs) Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of section
62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of The Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

RMC Switchgear Limited Page 78


https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

Directors’ Report FY2024-25

The ESOS-2024 aims to enhance the Employee engagement, to reward the Employees for their
association and performance as well as to motivate them to contribute to the growth and profitability
of the Company.

The details pursuant to provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in respect of the ESOS-
2024 of the Company is annexed to this Report as Annexure 9.

The ESOS 2024 is available on the Company’s website at
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=709

APPROVAL FOR MIGRATION OF LISTING/TRADING OF EQUITY SHARES OF THE
COMPANY FROM SME PLATFORM OF BSE LIMITED TO MAIN BOARD OF BSE
LIMITED AND DIRECT LISTING/TRADING OF EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY
ON MAIN BOARD OF NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED.

During the period under review the shareholders of the company passed a special resolution on
19.01.2025 through postal ballot approving the migration of the Company’s present listing from SME
Platform of BSE Limited to Main Board of BSE Limited and the Direct Listing/Trading of Equity
Shares of the Company on Main Board of National Stock Exchange Of India Limited pursuant to the
provisions laid down in Chapter IX & Regulation 277 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018. This migration is in line with
the Company’s strategic objective to enhance market visibility, liquidity of shares, and access to a
broader investor base.

The Board also acknowledged that all necessary formalities, including filings with the stock exchange
and regulatory authorities, will be completed in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The
management is authorised to take all actions required for the effective implementation of this
migration.

DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL
ALLOTMENT UNDER REGULATION 32(7A) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

During the year under review, the shareholders of the Company, at the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on 05" September, 2024, approved by way of Special Resolution the issue and allotment
of 2,18,500 (Two Lakhs Eighteen Thousand and Five Hundred) equity shares having face value of Rs.
10 (Rupees Ten only) each at an issue price of Rs. 687 (Rupees Six Hundred and Eighty-Seven) per
share (including premium of Rs. 677 per share), aggregating to Rs. 15,01,09,500 (Rupees Fifteen Crore
and One Lakh and Nine Thousand Five Hundred Only) on a preferential basis to certain Promoters,
Promoter Group entities and identified non-promoter investors, in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and other applicable laws.
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The allotment was completed in compliance with applicable provisions and the said equity shares rank
pari-passu in all respects, including dividend and voting rights, with the existing equity shares of the
Company. The equity shares issued under the preferential allotment are subject to lock-in as prescribed
under Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and are listed on BSE Limited.

The funds raised through preferential allotment have been utilised for the purposes and objects as stated
in the explanatory statement to the Notice of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held
on 05™ September, 2024, with no deviation or variation in the objects of purposes for which the funds
have been raised.”

OTHER DISCLOSURES AND REPORTING

Other disclosures with respect to Board’s Report as required under the Companies Act, 2013, and the
Rules notified thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are either NIL or NOT APPLICABLE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation for the valuable support and cooperation
received from suppliers, investors, banks, all regulatory and government authorities, and all other
business associates. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation towards the Company’s valued
customers for the support and confidence reposed by them in the organisation and looks forward to the
continuance of this supportive relationship in the future.

Your Directors also proudly acknowledge the contribution and hard work of the employees of the
Company at all levels, who, through their competence, dedication, and commitment, have enabled the
Company to achieve consistent growth.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/
Ashok Kumar Agarwal

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure-1
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub- section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient
features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

Part A — Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Intelligent
Hydel RMC Green RMC Solar RMC Solar
Name of the subsidiary Solutions energy Private | Park Private One Private
Private Limited Limited Limited
Limited
. 30th h
The date since when 11th March, 26th July, September 26™ March,
subsidiary was acquired 2024 2024 205 4 ’ 2025
Reporting period for the 19th
subsidiary concerned, if 15th July, September 26th March,
different from the holding | - 2024 to 31st CPICIOEL, 2025 to 31st
company's reporting March, 2025 2024 to 31st March, 2025
. ’ March, 2025 ’
period.
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant - - - -
financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries.
Share capital 10.00 910.00 10.00 10.00
Reserves and surplus (0.04) 2.87 2.58 -
Total assets 10.35 1196.71 121.41 10.06
Total Liabilities 0.38 283.84 124.1 0.12
Investments - - - -
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Turnover - 99.10 86.44 -

Profit before taxation (0.02) 3.84 3.48 -

Provision for taxation - 0.97 0.90 -

Profit after taxation (0.02) 2.87 2.58 -

Proposed Dividend - - - -

Extent of shareholding (in

51% 99.46% 72% 58%
percentage)

For Rakesh Ashok & Company For & on behalf of the Board of
Directors
Chartered Accountants RMC Switchgears Limited
FRN 011273C

Sd/-

Sd/-
Ashok Kumar Agarwal
CA V.K. Gupta Chairman and
Managing Director
Partner DIN: 00793152
Membership No. 407189
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375

Place: Jaipur
Ankit Agarwal

Date: 20" May, 2025 CEO Cum Whole
Time Director

DIN: 00793035
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Annexure -2

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s

length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. No. |Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions N.A.
C) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions N.A.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
d) including the value, if any NA.
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements
©) or transactions’ NA
f) Date(s) of approval by the Board N.A.
g) Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General
h) meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 N.A.
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Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Name (s) of the related party & | Nature of Duration Salient Date(s) of Amount
nature of relationship Contracts/ of terms of the | approval by paid as
arrangements Contracts/ | contracts or the Board, if advances,
/transactions arrangem arrangemen | any: if any:
ents/ ts or (in
transactio transactions rupees)
ns including
the value, if
any
Ankit Agarwal (Whole Time Rent 11 12,00,000 25 May Nil
Director) Interest Months 1,10,692.83 | 2024
Remuneration 84,00,000
Ashok Kumar Agarwal Rent 11 40,20,000 25 May Nil
(Chairman and Managing Interest Months 114,40,733. | 2024
Director) Remuneration 47
90,00,000
Neha Agarwal (Director) Rent 11 21,00,000 25 May Nil
Interest Months 39,502.46 2024
Remuneration 66,00,000
M/s How Sweet (Prop. Atika Rent 11 25" May Nil
Agarwal part of Promoter Months 1,00,00,000 | 2024
Group)
M/s How Sweet (Prop. Atika | Purchase/Sale of Ongoing 3,00,000 25" May Nil
Agarwal part of Promoter | Goods/Services 2024
Group)
Acme Metawires Private Purchase/Sale of Ongoing 50,00,000 25" May Nil
Limited (Relative of Promoter Goods/Services per 2024
Group) transaction
By Order of the Board of Directors
For RMC Switchgears Limited
Sd/-
Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152
Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure — 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended on 31 March, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by RMC Switchgears Limited (hereinafter referred as “the
Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (“period under review”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representative during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the company has, during the period under review, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained

by the Company for the period under review according to the provisions of applicable law provided

hereunder:
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and re-enactment thereof;
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations & Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and
External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs); There was no FDI, ODI and ECBs during the
period under review.

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), to the extent applicable:-
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share-Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable to the company during the period under
review.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021. Not applicable to the company during the period under review.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of securities) Regulations, 2018.
Not applicable to the company during the period under review.

(1) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories & Participants) Regulations, 2018.

6. Specific laws applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as confirmed by the

management: No specific law is applicable to the Company.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i1) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited & National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

We report that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above.
We further report that:-

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
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of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and other applicable laws.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

» All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority.

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on

the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the

Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and

processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and

ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period under review —

1.

The company has issued and allotted 2,18,500 (Two Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Five Hundred)
Equity Shares of the face value of *10/- (Rupees Ten) each at issue price of T687/- (Rupees Six
Hundred Eighty Seven) including a premium of 2677/- (Rupees Six Hundred Seventy Seven)
per Equity Share aggregating to 315,01,09,500/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore One Lakh Nine
Thousand Five Hundred Only) in accordance with ICDR Regulations, 2018 to the promoters
and identified persons on Preferential Basis. These shares are now listed with BSE SME

Platform.

The NRC Committee of the Board of Directors has allotted 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand)
Equity Shares of X10/- (Rupees Ten) each to the Employees under the RMC Switchgears
Limited ESPS Scheme 2023.

The shareholders of the company have passed the Special Resolution for approval of Migration
of listing/trading of Equity Shares to Main Board of BSE & NSE. The Special Resolution was
approved in terms of Proviso to Regulation 277 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

The company has implemented “RMC Switchgears Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme-
2024 in compliance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
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Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 with a pool of 2,00,000 Equity Shares of the
Company for benefits of the Employees of the Company.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A and forms as

an integral part of this report.

For B K Sharma and Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique Code: S2013RJ233500

Sd/-

BRIJ KISHORE SHARMA
Proprietor

Membership No.: F6206

CP No.: 12636

Peer Review Certificate No.: 6711/2025
UDIN: F006206G000673169

Place: Jaipur

Date: 27.06.2025
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‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members
RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices we followed provide reasonable basis of our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of event, etc.

The compliances of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination is limited to the verification of
procedures on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.

For B K Sharma and Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique Code: S2013RJ233500

Sd/-

BRIJ KISHORE SHARMA
Proprietor

Membership No.: F6206

CP No.: 12636

Peer Review Certificate No.: 6711/2025
UDIN: F006206G000673169

Place: Jaipur
Date: 27.06.2025
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Annexure- 4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Please refer to the Page 42 of this Annual Report.
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Annexure -5

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Earnings and Outgo

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Particulars

Details

Steps taken for conservation of
energy

The Company ensures optimum utilization and maximum
possible savings of energy in its manufacturing operations.

Investments made for reduction
of energy consumption

During the year, no specific investment was made except
installation of a Solar Plant at Chaksu Plant, aimed at
reducing dependency on conventional power.

Impact of above measures

The impact of the measures is not quantifiable and hence, the
effect on overall cost cannot be stated with accuracy.

Information as per Rule 8(3)(A)

The Company does not fall under the list of industries requiring
specific disclosure formats; hence, no further details are
furnished.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts towards technology absorption,

adaptation and innovation

Continuous product development activities to
improve product quality and reduce production
cost.

Benefits derived

* Improvement in productivity
* Improvement in product quality
* Reduction in process scrap
* Cost reduction

Imported Technology (during last 3 years)

* Technology Imported — NIL

* Year of Import — N.A.

* Whether absorbed — N.A.

* Reasons & future plans — N.A.

Expenditure on R&D

No expenditure incurred on Research & Development
during the year.

RMC Switchgear Limited

Page 91




Directors’ Report FY2024-25

(A) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export
markets for products and services and export plans: nil

(B) The details of earnings in foreign currency and outgo of foreign currency are as under:

(in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31 .03 2024
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)

Foreign Currency used for:

Raw Materials 0.00 0.00
Capital Goods 365.49 0.00
Expenditure in Foreign Currency 0.47 0.14
Earnings in Foreign Currency 93.31 170.73

Chairman and Managing Director

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025

RMC Switchgear Limited

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal

DIN: 00793152
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Annexure -6

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

L

Rules, 2014

THE RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN
REMUNERATION OF THE EMPLOYEES (MRE) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25:

S Ratio of % Increase in
r Name of Director Designation Remuneration ° .
No. Remuneration

to MRE
1 Mr. Ashok Kumar Chairp?rson 'cum 21.43:1 20%
Agarwal Managing Director
: Whole-time Director
2 Mr. Ankit A 1 20:1 24.449
r. Ankit Agrawa & CEO %o
Whole-time Director
Mrs. Neha A 1 15.71:1 25.719
3 rs. Neha Agarwa & CFO 5.7 5.71%
4 MI‘ Akhilesh Kumar an_Executive 381:1 NA
Jain Director

The median remuneration of employees was 4,20,000 /- as on 31st March,2025 and
1,61,276/- as on 31st March, 2024.

1.

The numbers of permanent employees on the roll of the Company as on 3 1st March, 2025
were 302.

The average managerial percentage has been increased by 23.08% in the F.Y.2024-25,
while for others it is increased to 160.42%. This is based on Remuneration policy of the
Company that rewards people differentially based on their contribution to the success of
the Company and also ensures that external market competitiveness and internal
relativities are taken care of There are no exceptional circumstances in increase in
managerial remuneration.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees and commission
as per statutory provisions and within the limits approved by the shareholders. The
details of remuneration of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Annual Return
(MGT-7).The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase for Non-Executive Directors
is therefore not considered for the above purpose.

The median remuneration calculated on the basis of employee who worked for whole
FY2024-25.
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5. For calculation of median remuneration of employee total remuneration paid during
the year was taken of the all employee except contract labour. Employee Join/left during
the year were not considered for this calculation.

6. Remuneration paid during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure -7- The statement containing names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration
drawn and their other details, as required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Remuneration Date of .
S. R . . Nature of Educational Exper-
No Name received in FY | Designation Commencement emplovment Qualification Age ience
) 24-25 of employment ploy
Chief
1. Manish Mantri | 1,20,00,000 Operating 02.05.2024 Permanent B. Tech 55 30
Officer
p. | AshokRumar | g, 5 50 Managing 23.08.1994 Permanent B.Com 67 | 46
Agarwal Director
3. | qnkit 84,00,000 | whole-time 154 11 5003 | permanent | B.Com 41 |20
Agrawal Director
4. Igeha 66,00,000 Director 28.06.2016 Permanent BBA 40 |20
garwal
Sudhir Kumar 42.00.000 Elelzgless
5. Bishnoi T ) 28.10.2024 Permanent MBA 44 20
Electrical &
Utility
Anand Chief Finance CA, CS,
6. Chaturvedi 38,00,000 Officer 01.04.2024 Relieved CMA, MBA 54 28
7. | Kuldeep 36,00,000 VP- Projects | 03.02.2024 Permanent B.Tech 48 |23
Sharma
g, | Saal Kumar 4, 55 500 Executive 01.05.2024 Permanent M.Tech, MBA | 61 | 35
Ghosh Director
Head-SBU
9. | Aditya Tiwari | 24,00,000 (Renewable 28.08.2024 Relieved B.Tech 37 11
& 10T)
10, | Akhilesh. 24,00,000 Director 15.07.2024 Permanent M.Tech, MBA | 65 | 38
Kumar Jain

Chairman and Managing Director

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025

RMC Switchgear Limited

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal

DIN: 00793152
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Annexure -8
Disclosure pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in respect of
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme 2023 (“ESPS-2023").

(A) Relevant disclosures with respect to ESPS-2023

(1)The following details on each ESPS under which allotments were made during the year:
(a) Date of shareholders approval: 30.09.2023
(b) Number of shares issued : 2,00,000

(c) The price at which such shares are issued : Determined by the Board/Committee, not less than
face value and not more than market price.

For FY 2024-25, 25,000 shares were issued at 50 per share.
(d) Lock in Period : 1 year

(i1) The following details regarding allotment made under each ESPS, as at the end of the year:

Particulars Details
Number of shares issued under ESPS | 25,000 shares
Price at which such shares were %50 per share
1ssued
Employee-wise details: (i) Senior Management: Mr.
Manish Mantri, COO - 25,000
shares

(i1) Any other employee with 5% or
more in a year: Nil (other than
above)

(i11) Employees with grant >1% of
issued capital at the time of grant:
Nil

Consideration received against 212,50,000 (25,000 x Z50)
issuance of shares

RMC Switchgear Limited Page 96



Directors’ Report FY2024-25

Loan repaid by Trust during the year Not Applicable (scheme
from exercise price implemented directly by the

Company)

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure 9

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in respect of Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024 (“ESOP—
2024”)

(A) Relevant disclosures with respect to ESOP-2024

Particulars Disclosure for ESOP-2024

Date of shareholders’ approval 28.09.2024

Total number of options approved under the 2.00,000
scheme

At the end of st year from the grant date-10%

At the end of 2nd year from the grant date-10%
At the end of 3rd year from the grant date-15%
Vesting requirements At the end of 4th year from the grant date-20%
At the end of 5th year from the grant date-20%
At the end of 6th year from the grant date-25%

Under this Scheme, the Exercise Price of the Shares

. . - will be decided by the Board of Director/
Exercise price or pricing formula

Committee.
Maximum term of options granted 7 YEARS
Sources of shares (primary/secondary) Primary Shares
Variation in terms of options Not Available
Method of accounting Fair Value
Where the company opts for intrinsic value
method — impact on P&L if fair value Not available

method adopted

Diluted EPS pursuant to issue of shares

under the scheme Not available

B) Option movement during the year

Particulars Details
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year Nil
Options granted during the year Nil
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Options forfeited/lapsed during the year Nil
Options vested during the year Nil
Options exercised during the year Nil
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of Nil
options

Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme is
implemented directly by the company -
Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price

received -
Options outstanding at the end of the year Nil
Options exercisable at the end of the year Nil

(C) Details of ESOPs granted to

e Senior & Key managerial personnel: Nil

e Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year amounting to 5% or
more of options granted during that year: Nil

o Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year, equal to or exceeding
1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at
the time of grant: Nil

(D) Disclosure on fair valuation

o Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding: Nil
o Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year: Nil

(E) Method and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options (as required under
Part F of Schedule I of SEBI SBEB & SE Regulations, 2021)

Since no options were granted during FY 2024-25, the following parameters are not applicable
for the year.

However, when options are granted in future, the fair value of options will be estimated using

the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model (or any other internationally accepted valuation
method as approved by the Committee), considering inter alia the following assumptions:

1. Weighted-average values of share price, exercise price, expected volatility, expected
option life, expected dividends, risk-free interest rate and other inputs to the model.

2. Method and assumptions for expected early exercise, based on historical behavior and
attrition rate of employees.
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3. Expected volatility determined on the basis of historical volatility of the Company’s share
price over a period commensurate with the expected option life.

4. Other features of options, if any (e.g., market condition), to be incorporated into the
measurement of fair value, wherever applicable.

By Order of the Board of
Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2025

RMC Switchgear Limited Page 100



Directors’ Report FY2024-25

Annexure-10
As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Company is committed to its stakeholders, government, investors, associates, community,
environment, employees and their families to conduct its business in a responsible manner that
creates a sustained positive impact. The CSR activities are carried out directly by the Company
and through a trust or society. Our vision is to actively contribute to social and economic
development. The Company aims to build a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker section
of society and raise the country’s human development index.

The details of the Company’s CSR Initiatives project/programmes and activities are provided in
this annexure. The focus areas of the Company under its CSR programme are promoting
education, eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition, rural development, sanitation, and the
environment, and any other projects as defined in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on its website and can be viewed at
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks. php?content=709

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

As of March 31, 2025, the CSR Committee comprises of following members of the Board —

1. Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane, Chairperson of the Committee

2. Mrs. Neha Agarwal, Member

3. Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain, Member
Details related to the number of CSR Committee meetings held during the year and the attendance are

mentioned in the Board’s Report.

3. Provide the web link where the composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy, and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.rmcindia.in.

4. Provide the details of the impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report): Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any. Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.12,91,51,000/-

7. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.25,83,020/-
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Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programme or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. 0
Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c¢): Rs. 25,83,020/-(a)
CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Financial Year. (In Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6)Amount transferred to
any fund specified under Schedule VII as per the second proviso to Section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of
Fund transfer

25,83,020 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of the CSR amount spent on projects other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1) @ @) @ 06 © 0] ® ©® o) a1
SI. Name Item from Local Location Project Amount Amount Amount Modeof Mode of Implemen
No. of the thelistof area of the duration allocated spent  transferred Implemen tation —Through
Project activities (Yes/ project for the inthe  toUnspent tation- Implemen
in No). project  current CSR Direct ting Agency
Schedule (in ") financial Account (Yes/NO)
VII to the Year For the
Act. (inRs.) Project
As per
section
135(6)
(in Rs.)

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(ORI, Q) @ ®) ©) 0] @)
SIl.  Nameof Itemfrom Local Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of implementation-
No. the Project the list of area project spent for Implemen Through
activities in (Yes/ the project tation-Direct Implementing agency
schedule VII to No) (in ) (Yes/NO)
the Act
State |District Name |CSR
Registration
number.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 25,83,020/-

(9) Excess amount for set off, if any
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S. No. Particular Amount
(In)

(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section135(5) 25,83,020/-

(i1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 29,15,000/-

(iii)  Excess amount spent for the financial year[(ii)-(i)] 3,31,980/-

(iv)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the -
previous financial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years NIL

v)  [Gi)-Gv)] 3,31,980/-

8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
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S.No. | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
Financial | transferred | spentin specified under Schedule VII as | remaining
Year to Unspent | the per section 135(6), if any, to be spent
CSR Reporting in
Account Financial | Name of Amount Date of succeeding
under Year (in Fund (in Rs.) transfer financial
section Rs.) year (in
135(6) (in Rs.)
Rs.)
Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s):
A 1@ 3) 4) (6] (6) () (8) )
S.No | Projec | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulativ | Status of the
tID ofthe | Yearin duratio | amount | spenton | e amount project-
projec | whichthe |n allocate | the spent at the | Completed/Ongoi
t project was d for the | project end of g
commence project | in the reporting
d (in Rs.) | reporting | Financial
Financia | Year (In
|1 Year Rs.)
(In Rs.)
NIL

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.08.2024
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Chartered Accountants e AMBER TOWER, S.C. ROAD,
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INDI A E-Mail - rakeshashok01@gmail.com

FRN: 011273C

0141-4002667

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

that We have audited the financial statements of RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31*' March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of Cash Flows for the
year the ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the ‘State of Affairs’ of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 ‘Profit’ and its ‘Cash Flows’ for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

3l Revenue recognition: We have performed the following principal audit

The company is dealing with Large Government procedures in relation to revenue recognized:

Companies and Industrial customers on ® Assessing the appropriateness of the
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Contract basis. The company’s revenue is Company’s revenue recognition accounting
mainly from works contacts which is policies.

recognized at a point in time based on the
terms of the contact with customers, which
may vary from case to case. The accuracy of
amounts recorded as revenue contains an
inherent risk relating to price variation claims
and liquidated damages on account of
extended delivery schedules or delays if any.

e We understood the Company’s revenue
processes, including design and
implementation of controls which vary based
on product segment and customer, and
tested the operating effectiveness of such
controls in relation to revenue recognition.

* On asample basis, we tested contracts with
customers, purchase orders issued by
customers, and sales invoices raised by the
Company to determine the pricing terms
including termination rights, terms relating
to penalties for delay and breach of contract
as well as liquidated damages.

* For samples selected, we tested calculations
of amounts billed to customers and recorded
as revenue, in line with underlying contracts/
agreements. We also tested relevant
underlying supporting documentation for
recording of revenue at a point in time.

* We tested on samples basis provisions made
in respect of contracts, where the costs of
executing the contract.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report,
Corporate Governance Report, Company’s annual report and other information, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurances a high level of assurance, but are not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone annual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that insufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone annual financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone annual financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone financial statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the statements of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

RMC Switchgear Limited AP Uf

& Page 107
¥y 3
&

€D act




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure 'A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose so of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been
received from the branches not visited by us.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement (including other
comprehensive income) dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31°% March, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporting “Annexure B”. Qur report
expresses a modified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements.

gl  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the standalone financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31% March, 2025;

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year is in accordance with section 123
of the Companies Act 2013, Hence clause not applicable.

vi. The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year
for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with.

For RAKESH ASHOK AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011273C

c.‘-.—-—-—'—‘_’_)
Place:-JAIPUR VIJAY KUMAR GUPTA
Date: 20/05/2025 (PARTNER )
Membership No.407189

UDIN: 25407189BMGXPF3917
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Annexure-A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the company on the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025, we report that:

(a) (i)The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details &
situation of situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress.

(i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) As explained to us, the company has a phased program for physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, considering the
size of the company and nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets. Pursuant to the
program, physical verification has been carried out by the management during the year and According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company as
at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against' the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventories lying at its location has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods in transit and those lying with third parties. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanation given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its operation.
Management has not found discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories on
such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of
time of the year. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks or financial
institutions are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account in respect of following:

Particulars Inventory Re:;?:aeble P;Eg:&s Reason

30" June As per books 1510.00 6900.00 2119.00 As explained by the
2024 " | As per returns 1514.97 6786.85 2296.22 rr?anagemen-t, the

Difference -4.97 113.15 -177.22 difference in the
30t As per books 1198.14 | 1022717 3331.87 | Inventory is due to
September, | As per returns 1195.18 10437.17 316508 | different method
2024 Difference 2.96 -210.00 166.79 of va.lu?tion while
31 As per books 1455.02 11521.33 520135 | Submitting returns
December, | As perreturns 1457.42 11521.33 5201.35 Ei?ﬁ:el::n::nkstrggg
e Dy srance ot 20 e payable is due to
28% March As per books 1976.00 13151.05 7377.04 delay in approval
2025 ' | As per returns 1958.95 13147.23 7364.09 of invoices by the

Difference 17.05 3.82 12.95 | purchase deptt.

-
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vi.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, during the year the company has provided loans or
provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to other
entities:
(A] the aggregate amount during the year with respect to such loans or advances and
guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is Rs. NIL and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. NIL;
(B) the aggregate amount during the year with respect to such loans or advances and
guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is
Rs. NIL and out of these, balance outstanding at the balance sheet date (including opening
balances) is Rs.0.80 Crores .

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(c)

(d)

(e)
(f)

RMC Switchgear Limited

of the records of the company, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and
the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest or repayable on demand basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted
to the parties as the company has not demanded the loans.

The amount is not overdue, on the above loan and advances; hence this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment:

Particulars All parties Promoters |Related Parties Others
Aggregate amount of loans/
advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on Demand (A) 0.80 Crore 0.00 0.00 0.80 Crore
- Agreement does not specify
any terms or period of 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 0.80 Crore 0.00 0.00 0.80 Crore
Percentage of Loans/ advances in 100% 0.00 0.00 0.00
nature of loans to the total advances

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to parties
covered under section 185 of the Companies Act. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has compiled with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of making investments

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government
for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however,
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

&
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vii. (a)According to the records of the company produced for our verification the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, Goods and Services Tax(GST) and any
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities wherever applicable According to the information and
explanation given to us, no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as on 31/03/2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have
not been deposited on account of any dispute except following:

Name Nature of | Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if
of the the Dues | (Rs.In which the Dispute is Any
Statute lacs) [|amount relates| pending
State GST CGST and 76.33 2019-20 | Commissioner NIL
Department, Raj SGST (Appeal)
viii. As per information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company, there were no

transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company and information given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company, the
company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

(f)  The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the funds raised by way of preferential allotment of shares have been partially utilized for the
purposes for which they were raised. The remaining unutilized amount of Rs.35.32 Lakhs is lying with the
Company and is proposed to be utilized for the said purposes.

Xii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. Hence clause (xi)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) No Report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints were received by the company during the year.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
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Xvi.

xvii.

xviil.

Xix.

XX,

applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering the
period up to 31* March 2025 for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records of the
company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the directors or person connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable,

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

{c) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does
not have any CICs.

The company has not incurred any cash loss during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 41 (a) to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 41 (a) to the financial statements.

For RAKESH ASHOK AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011273C

e

Place:-JAIPUR é/’ VIJAY KUMAR GUPTA
Date: 20/05/2025 (PARTNER )
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPF3917 Membership No.407189
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inexure=B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Control under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting of RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED (“the
Company”) as on 31* March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operate defectively
in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding their liability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that ,in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

RMC Switchgear Limited V Page 114



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31%
March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For RAKESH ASHOK AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011273C

Place:-JAIPUR VUJAY KUMAR GUPTA
Date: 20/05/2025 (PARTNER )
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPF3917 Membership No.407189
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) STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2025 e
T 1 {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Naote As AL As AL
FRERc No. March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES e = e S ee]l - ’
) 1) |Sharcholders' Funds il - DRI |
_|(a)_|Share Capital . L3 1,055.18 103083
_|(b)_|Reserves and Surplus - 3 9,638.91 5,008.87
i - - B B 10,694.09 6,039.70
|2) |Non-Current Linbilities it = = oS
~ |(a) |Long Term Borrowings 4 | 6350l 1,573.99
[ (b) |Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) _ 33 20815 20124
{(c) |Long Term Provisions 5 76.76 88 90|
. 1916.42 TN
3) |Current Liabilitles - -
il |(a) _|Short Term Bormowings - - 6 423308 3.418.90|
{b) |Trade Payables o 7 = . - !
(i) Tatal Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 0.00 181.24
iy |{ii}) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 756943 1.730.30
[ chnlcrpnses und small enterprises
(c) 'Dlh:r Current Liabilities e 8 2115411 1,267.45
|(d) |Short Term Provisions 9 322.36 1,011.68
e | | : 14.240.28 7,609.56
TOTAL 26,850,79 15,513.39|
1. ASSETS =, L o
1) 'I\un Current Assels o .
.{s] \Praperty, Plant and Equipment 1o - P
" 0] rCuplln.l Work in Progress i 442.55 - 0.00
. | iy 'Tm!g|blz: Assels S R 2,98955] 275113
| (m) |Intangible Assets - ) 6.76 §.02
3438.87 3,759.15
L '(b] |Non-current Invesiments [} I 92320] 5.10
P r( ¢) |Long Term Loans and , J\dvnru:cs o 12 2004 0000 12,68
(d) |Other Non-Current Assets 13 491.03 "5" 74
| = - 1,706.27 270.52
D CorremtAssets ! ]
\(a) |Inventories T W 14 2,010.33 1,029.19
| l®) |Trade Receivables s | 472527 9,147.62
l) |Coshand Cash Equivalents e | 95057 - 198.01
’(d: Short Term Loans and Advances 17 1,650.90 173,52
(¢) |Other Current Asscts = - _Im 2,368 58 1,335.39
| I _I . | 21,705.65 12,483.72
i TOTAL 26,850.79 15,513.39
T 1 - 0.00 0.00
The sccompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements e . B |
As per our separate report of even date - [For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Rakesh Ashok & Company RMC Switchgears Limited
Chartered Accountants Py e __ - Ol
FRN 011273C t

CEO

.«_’;n!;_i_t Agarwal
m Whele Time Director

Ashok Kumar Agrawal
Chairman Cum Managing Director

_ (DIN: 00793152)

(DIN: DOTI3035)
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= RMC SWITCH@AB_S. LIMITED = = "o

B s ~ (CIN: L25111RJ1994PLC00869S)
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2025

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

P tiiliine Note For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
No. 31" March 2025 31" March 2024
e =t i - TR T
I. | Gross Revenue from Opcrnlmns(m-:ludsng GST) i 37.307.91 _20339.73
| LesstGST == — === _(5,677.42) _ (3,076.63)
| Revenue from Operations (Net of GST) ) 3163049 1726310
1. | Other Income L - 20 167.65 82.97
HL. | Toml Revenue( I+ Illi _ o 3 31,798.13 17,346.07
e . =1 i
IV. | Expenses N | _ ] |
@ | Cost of Materials consumed B ETE 2235013 9,575.53
b) Cllu.ngas in inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-
| " |Progress S |22 _(102.43) 11635
¢) | Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 0.00 3.73
) | Employee Benefits Expenses - 23 1,546.71| 1,092.86
'y | Finance Costs ) : R s mbl L— _ B71.98 o, 864.19
| B | Depreciation and Amortization Expcnses _ 25 31121 282.54
L= S) Other expenses R 26 2.562.03 3,063.58
- | Total Expenses (a to g) ol 27,539.64 14,999.16
V. _{ Profit Before Exceptional ltems and Tax (r-1vy 4,258.50 2,346.91
| VL. | Exceptional ltems i 204.91
VIL | Profit Before Tax (V-V) - 4.258.50 2,142.00
| VIL__| Tax Expenses o [
|w) |CuremtTax _ 107369 610.83
[ b) | Income Tax of Past Years 3. _ hes
| | ) | Deferred Tax Liability = 3 6.91 B
| IX. Profit (Loss) After Tax (VII-VII) - 3,140.79 1,488.74
X | Earning per equity share; (Face Value of Rs.10 each) 0 | e maniloy o
| &) | Basic — - . o7 3035 1444
b) | Diluted 30.25 14,44
‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements NS
As per our separate report ol even date JSE o | _ Fur & on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Rakesh Ashok & Company e Lk RMC Switchgears Limited
Chartered Accountants = ) N | T |
FRN 011273C G RSHO, | B — T A
Y == C A | L _ Ashok Kumar Agrawal
AT\ e | (3 AL NS | Chairman Cum Managing Director
O ™ ol = L% [FAN - G11273C] %] | (DIN:00793152)
Farmer ] ) N e, T : T sccin ] B
Membership Number : 407189 i | ‘
LIDIN: 2540718 EQBM{JKFI-S‘)I? Rl el B [ | iy ir.il Agnrwnl =3
Place: Jaipur - ‘ | CEO cuni/Whale Time Director
|

(DIN: 0793035)

Dated: 20th May, 2025
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515“3&1..9_!“ C.ﬁ.?‘l H_ETATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025
1} - (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Year ended on Year ended on
Particulars ] -
31" March, 2025 317 March, 2024
1) CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
1 Met Surplus as per Statement of Profit & Loss Before Tases 4,258.50 2,142.00
¢ Adjustments for:
I Deprecaton and Amortisabon 31121 28254
{4 Firiance Loal g71.98 BE4.19
1 bt st Inggmie {107.99) {75.04)
{ig Rental ngome 13 56) 13.5G)
Wl Prowisiong (5.22) 17,61
\ Eavoptional  ihemg 0.0 204,91
Peatd Pasfgrport B Dspwerditone Weitten (9F i_l! 'lﬂ_] {14.30)
Cperating Profit Before Working Capital Changes - 5,312.33 3,47833
3 Adjustmants for Working Capital changes:
Adpastimpnts for (increasel £ decrecse in operoting assels
Iwentories |981.14) 114591
Ttade regojuablos {5.577.66) {3,439.56)
Sharl berm kaans and adyances |B77.38) 375 84
Other current assets {1,033.18) B0S.65)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) m aperating liebiiities:
Trade payabiliss 565784 16376
b current (tilities g4y a7 471,96
Short Term Provisions (689.32} 732.00
4 Cash Generated From Operations 2,659.51 1,430.85
Less, Direct Toses 1,117070 B53.20
NET CASH FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES [A] 1,541.80 771.59
iy CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
fal Pinehase of Tangible / intangible Assels (9B9.27) [318.58)
[} Procesds on Disposal of Tangible Fiked Assets 10.92 53.37
(il dnferant Becewed 107.99 7504
livl  Restal Recoiats 3.56 3596
Iv]  Othai Non Current Assets | |238.29) 100.20
Wil NOM-CUtTEnt InyesTm@Ents 1918.10) (5100
(vl Lomg Term foans and Advances [#79.56) 34.48
! CNET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES [8] {2.302.54) {57.03)
Wy CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(1 Proceeds/(Repayment) Trom Short Term Borrowings|Met) H14.18 63190
(il Procseos from Eguity ssue 2435 LIRT
[#1) Prodesdy by way of pedmium on siue of shases 1,489 2% 0.00
(] Proceeds/|Repayrient) From Long Term borrowlngs |Net) LYY |2 H8.08)
vl interim Dihvidend paid during £y 202324 {2062}
[wil Finance Cost Paid |871.98) |BB4.19]
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C] 1,513.31 (540.99)
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED) [AsB+C) 15257 179.57
Cash & caih eguvalents-  The beginning of the yoar I 198,01 18.44
Cash & cash equivalents-  The end of the yesar 950.58 188.01
Mg B i o
Connpionents of cash & Cash Lauivalents
Cath on Rpnd BG /G 2548
Halanges with Danks
WY EUTFE ACCous 585494 .20
in Faed cl.eapi.lts I _d‘i'ﬂy 172.33
550,58 198.01

3 i abiowit £ at ) Doh staterssnt had been prepsied under the “indirect Method™ as set out in the Accounting Standard -3 on Cash flow Statement

| P dweiiies yiead s Digiies ave been regrouped and rearanged wherever necessary

Y il il -n.'|l.l.I.II|.' epint ol sven date For & o behall of the Board of Directors

Faor Bahesls Axlik & L umijpuiy ) RAMO Switchgenrs Limited I

Ul ten e Nodsmminis
FRN D127

Ashok Wumar Agrawal
husivniann Coam Munaging Weector
(IS 73152
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Note No. 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

i) Corporate Information

RMC Switchgears Limited is a public company domiciled in India. The company Iis primarily
engaged in the business of 'Switchgear Engineering’, "ECI contracts for power distribution/
transmission sector’.

ii)  Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
Generally AcceptedAccounting Principles (GAAP) in India under the historical cost convention on
an accrual basis pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the
Accounting Standards issued by the National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards
(NACAS) and The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). Accounting policies have
been consistently applied by the company except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing Standard required a change in accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.
The company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is its functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Classification of assets and liabilities into Current / Non-current.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the revised Schedule IIl to the Act.

iii) Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company has reclassified/regrouped/rearranged the previous year figures,

wherevernecessary, to make them comparable with revised schedule Ill to the act applicable for
current year’s figures & groups.

iv) Assets and Depreciation

a) Property Plant & Equipment are stated at cost including attributable cost (net of GST
Creditavailed) of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

b) Depreciation on the assets has been provided as under:
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v)

(vi)
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1) Depreciation has been provided on the basis of useful lives of the tangible assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013byusing Straight-line method (SLM) of

depreciation.
2) Depreciation on intangible assets is provided in accordance with AS-26 over the period of 5

years.

3) Premium paid on Leasehold Landis amortized over the Lease term which is of 99 years.

4) Impairment of Tangible & Intangible Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the assets’ net selling price and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using weighted average cost of capital.

Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Valuation of Inventory

Inventory of raw material, stores, spares, semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of FIFO/Weighted
Average Method. Inventory of rejected material is valued at cost or net realizable value
whichever is lower. Work in process generally includes cost of direct material, labour cost and
other manufacturing overheads. Goods-in-Transit is valued at cost.

Income Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “Income Tax Act”).The Company
has opted to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, for the financial year 2024-25.
Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax and computed deferred tax
based on the rate i.e. @ 25.17 % (Tax Rate 22% Plus Surcharge Plus cess) prescribed in the said
section.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
timing differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to
the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws
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and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set-off. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date for theirreliability.

vii) Liguidated Damages:

Liquidated damages are provided based on contractual terms when thedelivery/commissioning
dates of an individual project have exceeded or are likely to exceed the delivery/commissioning
dates as per the respective contract. This expenditure is expected to be incurred over the
respective contractual terms upto closure of the contract.

viii) Foreign Currency:

a) Transactions in Foreign Currency entered into by the Company are accounted at the Exchange
Rates prevailing the date of the transaction. Foreign Currency monetary items ofthecompany,
outstanding on the Balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. Non- monetary items
of the company are carried at historical costs.

b) Exchange Difference arising on settlement / restatement of short term foreign currencymonetary

assets & liabilities of the company are recognized as expense in the statement ofProfit& Loss or
capitalized if such differences pertain to creation of Fixed Assets.

ix)Revenue Recognition:

a) Sales Revenue is recognized when the risk and rewards of ownership are passed on to the
customers, which is generally on dispatch.

b) Revenue from turnkey contracts is recognized based on the stage of completion determined
with reference to the costs incurred on contracts and their estimated total costs. Provision for
foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on turnkey contracts is made on the basis of
technical assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be accounted for.

c) Price Escalation and other claims or variations in the contract work are included in contract
revenue only when:
i) Negotiations have reached to an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will
accept the claim: and
ii) The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer and can be measured reliably.

x) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses of the year. Actual results could
differ from these estimates. The difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized.
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xi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are added to the cost of those assets as Pre-operative Expenses.All other borrowing costs are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Interest
Capitalized during the year is NIL (Previous year Rs. Nil/-)

Xii Employees Benefits:

a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Employees' own and Employer’s contribution to Provident Funds are contributed bycompany
monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to theEmployees’ Provident
Fund Organization, India and is charged to Profit and LossAccount on accrual basis.

b) Defined Benefits Plans:

Gratuity: The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, for its
employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to the eligible employees at retirement,
death, while in employment, or on termination of employment or otherwise as per the
provisionsof the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The company accounts forliability of future
gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method carried
out annually for assessing liability as at the balance sheet date.

xiii) Segment Reporting :

a) Primary Segment:

Company is engaged in “Switch Gear Engineering’ and 'EPC contracts for power distribution /
transmission sector’ which relate to one primary segment i.e. Power.

b) Secondary Segment:

The Company operates predominantly within the geographical limits of India and accordingly
secondary segments have not been considered.

xiv) Deferred Revenue Expenditure:

Deferred Revenue Expenditure incurred is being written off over the period of 5 years

xv) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
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During the financial year, the Company has allotted 2,18,500 equity shares on a preferential
basis on 06th December 2024 at an issue price of Rs. 687/- per share, aggregating to a total
consideration of Rs. 15,01,09,500 (Rupees Fifteen Crore One Lakh Nine Thousand and Five
Hundred only).

Further, the Company has allotted 25,000 equity shares under the Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme (ESPS), 2023 to eligible employees during the year.

xvi) Corresponding Figures of previous year have been reclassified/regrouped or rearranged to
make them comparable with the current year figures.
xvii) Disclosures pursuant to Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Amount

Okttataidieg: | . oMM
Name of Person to whom loan . Outstanding

il Purpose of Loan as on distinzthe

8 31/03/2025 8
year

LUMOS ADVISORS LLP Working Capital 25,00,000.00 | 55,00,000.00
AGARWAL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY | Waorking Capital 25,00,000.00 | 25,00,000.00
AMAN EXPORT INTERNATIONAL Working Capital 20,00,000.00 | 20,00,000.00
MAHAVEER PRATAP SHARMA Working Capital 10,00,000.00 | 10,00,000.00

xvi) Other statutory information:

1. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

2. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

3. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security.or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

4. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Companyshall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
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(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

5. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act,1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act,1961.

6. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of
the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

7. The Company is not declared willful defaulter by and bank or financial institution or lender during
the year.

8. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

9. Summary of reconciliation of quarterly returns filed by the company with banks & books of

accounts:

Particulars Invento Trade Trece Reason
Y | Receivable Paybles
As per books 1,510.00 6,900.00 2,119.00
30" June, As  mentioned
2024 As per returns 1,514.97 6,786.85 2,296.22 T—
Difference -4.97 113.15 -177.22
As per books LB 10,227.17 3,331.87
30!!1
S RainbaT As mentioned
202 s |Asperretums | 1,195.18 | 10437.17 | 3,165.08 hereunder
Difference 2.96 -210.00 166.79
As per books 1,4550.18 | 11,521.33 5,201.35
31 .
December, | As perreturns | 1,4574.20 | 11,521.33 | 5,201.35 Ly g
2024 hereunder
Diffeteiica -24.02 0.00 0.00
As per books 1,976.00 13,151.05 7,377.04
28thMarch, As mentioned
2025 As per returns 1,958.95 13,147.23 7.364.09 batatntar
Difference 17.05 3.82 12.95
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The discrepancies are as a result of our practice of submitting stetement on monthly basis within

15 days from the close of each month.

These statements are necessary to ensure timely

submission while adhering to regularly deadlines. However, it is important to emphasize that
these discrepancies have not led to any undue advantage or access to excess credit facilities from
the banks. Our commitment to transparency and compliance remains steadfast.

10. The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific

11.

purpose for which it was obtained.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)
disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-
in-progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

12. The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.

13.

RMC Switchgear Limited

Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) activities:

Profit before tax as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

Financial Year 2021-2022 34,43 Lacs

Financial Year 2022-2023 1698.11 Lacs

Financial Year 2023-2024 2142.00 Lacs

Total 3874.54 lacs

Average Profit before tax as per Section 135(5) of the Act 1291.51 Lacs

a) 2% of Average Profit to be spent for CSR_Activities 25.83 Lacs

b) CSR Expenditure incurred 29.15Lacs

¢) Excess Amount spent for the Financial year 3.32 lacs

d) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of 0.77 lacs

the previous financial year, if any

e) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 4.09 lacs

f) Nature of CSR Activities Educational
purposes

g) Details of related party transaction Nil

h) Movement in Provision with respect liability incurred NA
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As per our separate report of even date
For Rakesh Ashok & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 011273C

s

CA V. K. Gupta

Partner

Membership Number : 407189
UDIN:

Place: Jaipur

Dated: 20th May, 2025
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For & on behalf of the Board of
Directors

RMC Switchgears Limited

Ashok Kumar Agrawal

Chairman Cum Managing Director
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] RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED
a el (CIN: L2511 1RJ1994PLCOOB6OE)
i ) NBTFS- TO FINANCIAL S'IHTEMFNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°F IHAII.LII 21115 ]
| | Share Capitsl | | {Amount in Re. Laes)
Particulurs
As Ar 31032025 As At 31.03,2024
| == _ -
| 150,00,000 (Previous Year: 110,00,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each ) D 1.500.00 1.100,00
I I
i i U e e =
| 1,05,51,800 (Previous Yeur: 1,03,08,300) Eqwdmunfh 10/- cach Fully Paidup == 1.055.18 1,030.83
TOTAL 1,055,185 1.030.83
| : | | sl 1
(i) Reconcilintion of the number of shares ding at the beginning and ot ihe end of the repo period ;
= Particulars As At 31,03.2025 As At 31.03,2024
Noa. of Shares Amaount Nos, of Shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 10308300 | 1,030,83 68,72,200 687,22
|| Add: Shares issued on_preferential basis 18500 | 2185 - s
Add: Allotment made under ESPS, 2023 25,000 250 . -
| | Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year Sl - - 34,36,100 343.61
LT fing at the end of the Year 1.05,51, 800 1.055.18 1,03.08,300 1,030.83
|
| (i) Details of Shareholders holding more than § % equity shares :
As At 31.03.2025 As Ar 31.03.2024
e Ne, of Shares " Halling No. of Shares % Holding
{a) | Ashok Kumar Agirwal b 23,91,980 267% ~ 2373480 1302% -
(b) | Ankit Agarwal 10.23,320 970% | 10,04,520 92.75%
[ Vitthal Das Agarwal (HUF) B 7,50,900 Ti1% ~7,50,900 7.28%
(d) Meha Agrawal 705,000 6.68% 7,085,000 6.84%
I (i) 'l'erms ani Rights attached to equily shares:
The C‘mnp.ny has anly one class of equity shares hm.mg & face value of Ra 10 | jper ser share. Each holder of equity shores is entitled to one vote p:rnqunry
share. A member shall not have any right to vote whilsi any call or other sum shall be due and payable to the Company in respect of any of the shares of such
member. All equity shares of the Company rank pan passu in all respects including the right o dividend. The dividend is recommended by the Board of
Directors and declared by the members af the ensuing Aol general Meeting. T
{iiw) Inthe financial year 2023-24 | the cﬁmﬂy allotied 3436100 Equity Shares s bonus shares in the proportion of 1:2, i.c. 1{one) botms equity share of*
10/- each for 2({iwa) fully paid up equity shares,
(v} | Company doum“l!}"u_wgly holding or ultimate holding Campm'ly - o e B
(vi) Shkare Holding of Promotors are given below: — S -
[sNa] Promoter - As At 31,03.2025 As At 31032024 % Change
No. of Shares % Huolding No. of Shares s Holding During The Year
(a) | Ashok Kumnr Agarwal | 2391980 1267% 1373480 23.02% -0.36%
{b) | Ankit Agarwal 1023320 9.70% 1001820  975% . -0.05%
(¢) | Vitthal Das Agarwal (HUF) 750900 T1%% 750900 | 7.28% -0.17%
(d) | Neha Agrawal 05000 | 6.68% 705000 i 684% | -0.16%
(e) | Vitthal Das Agarwal 94800 0.90% 9400 | 0% 0,02%
(0 | Asika 52020 0.49% 52020 —0s0% 0.01%
{2) | Ashok Kumar Aparwal(HUF) 319260 0% 30260 300% o — 007%
ih) | Ankit Agarwal (HUF) 156000 1.48% 156000 1.51% -0,03%
NOTE: 3 | I - N =
Reserves ani Surplus { Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As A 3.03.2025 As At 31.03,2024
{a) | Share Premium Account B S == 1 — =
| As per Last Financial Statements = — 1,192.50 1,536.11
| Add: Rﬁmtﬂdmng&cmmpmlmﬂﬂ#ﬂ?&hﬂ: .. 1,489.25 i 0.00]
|| Less: Used for issuing Bonus Shares | S - (3361
|| Closing Bnlmlmc I | 2.681.75 1,192.50/
| (b) | Capital Reserve i ] B | == ==
'Mpcrl.m}‘uunmlsmmn : = e | —
| Capital Investments Subsidy - State S—=1 __14.50 __14.50
|| CLCS Subsidy-Central Govermment ——— ] 15.00 15.00
| . — - - o 19.50 19.50|
(¢} | Retained Enrnings N N |
As per Last Financial Statements [ o  AT7R6ET| 00 2318.74
_Add : Net Profit transfierred from Statement of Profit and Loss . 314079 o hABRT4
I:e_u Interim Dhividend paid = = _— (.00 {20,62)
Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 6,927.66 3.786.87)
| TOTAL [ 9,638,91 5,008.57
| |
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MNature and purpose of reserve

= | = | =

It-:uhdhmiu:l

[ . ==N=

Retuined eamings represents cumulative profits of the company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act. 2003,

[ Securities Prem _ ===
Securities premium was created on issue of shares. This reserve is being utilised in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. N Il
Capltal Heserve
The purpose for which a capital reserve is created is for preparing the company for sudden events like inflation, business expansion, Govt Subsidy to be retumed ete.

I D ERDE Sy e e | e — —
DNOTE : 4 — e —_ R
Long Term Borrowings {Aumount in Rs. Lacs)
| Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
MNon Current Current Non Current Current
L | = =B L B ]
I | Term Loans from Banks = - = e
| |ASecured | T el ) )
Punjab Mational Bank {GECL) 34.59 _ = 5930 93.89 I .1t |
The Federal Bank Lid (GECL) S| = .00/ 0.00 000 15.60
Vehicle Loans | L) - 1 ! || I B — 1.712 996/
= I __ —

| (s B. Unsecured Lk L » B

_From banks 0,00 | 0,70 1M
| Term Loans from Others __ . i -

A. Secured | U . B .

From SIDBI SR 144198 443,40 570.45 - 140,00

ol _'c"e__h.lﬂll Loans T6.03 7.78 [ 0,00 0,00/

B. Unsecured === s e
L. From Adirys Birla Finance Lid | P 0.00) 0.00] _ asossf 26.78
From Other NBFCs | 0.00 . ~ Dboo| __0oo 7987

il [ T P

1L Other Loans & Advances [ i -
A From Directors | V| 6.27) i 0,00 36869 0.00
B. Inter-Corpormie Deposis | 15.00 0,00 18768) ~ 0.00]
| TOTAL | 1,631.50 531.26 1,573.99 420.22]
1
" | (A) | Muture of Securities: Sl N L NE S Rl T
L | GECL from PNB and '_I'ln ndmu Bank l.ul.
Secured bywa;.! nl’fm:lurp:unthcf:wd lnutluflhucm“pmw.bolh present and future, situnted at Tehsil Chuksu, Jlll'm lndpﬂmulmlmmcf
Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Ankit Agarwal and Neha Agarwal, Directors of The Compuny, The loan is also secured by collateral security of immovable
properties located at  Plot No. B-11{B&C), Malviya Industrinl Area, Jaipur and Khasta No, 157, 163 & 164, Village Badodiyn, Chaksu Jaipur (owned by
company/ Shri Ankit Agarwal - Director), Apartment no, 1302, 1ype 3 BHK-Sky Villa on 13th Floor in wing no.1 in “The Crest’ situated ot Airport Enclave
Scheme, Tonk Road, Durgapia, Juipur (owned by Mis Neha Agnrwal) and Plot No, 84 & 85, Amnit Nagar, Jaipur (owned by Shri Ankst Agarwal,
Director ) on pari-passu basis with The Federal Bank Lid. |, Punjab National Bank, Canara Bank.
I [ SIDBI Loan- Plant and Machinery | 3 [ el I i
Loan is secured by way of first charge in the shape of hypothecation on the plant and machinery  bought out of the term loan disbursed and further|
(secured by lien on the “Fixed Deposits’ amounting Rs. 169.11 Lacs plus | interest th mnd the | | guarnniees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
| land Ankit Agarwnl and Smt. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,

5 _i'____li_l. Esmm' Loan-Solwr¥tame | [ T | -
Elmi;mby wiry of first charge in the shape hypothecation on the plant snd machinery to be bought out of the term loan disbursed and further)
secured by hen on the Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs. 66 Lacs plus accrued interest thereon and the personal guarmntees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal ind
|AnHl Agarwnl and Smi Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,

B | v !rSIDIll Luan- Solar Plant I B | ]
tlmi;mwl\lbyw;}rufﬁrﬂchn'p in the shape lypothecation on the plant snd machinery 10 be bought out of the term loan disbursed and further]
iseeured by lien on the 'Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs. 123,30 Lacs plus accrued interest thereon and the personal guarantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
and Ankit Agarwal and Sni. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,

V. SIDBI Loan- Plant and Machinery | — i = |
Laiin is secured by way of firit charge in the shape hypothecation on the plant and machinery 1o be bought out of the 1erm loan disbursed and ferther
secured by lien on the “Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs.219.11 Lacs plus accrued interest thercon and the personal gunmntees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
and Ankit Agarwal and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,

— - o3 e S —1|
| VL SIDBI Loan- 225 Cr . -1 L : ] — | |
| Loon is secured by way of first charge in the shope hypathecotion on the plant and machinery, equipment, tools, spares accessories and all othier assets of|
| the Borrower which have been or proposed 1o be acquired under the project/scheme and firther secured by lien on the “Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs, 321

Lacs plus scerued interest thercon and the personal guarantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal and Ankit Agarwal and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of]
Compairy,
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Vil. | SIDBI Loan- 10.70 Cr. I = . o B
|1.oan is secured by way of first charge in the shape hypothecation on the plant and machinery, equipment, tools, spares aceessarics and all other assets of]
the Borrower which have been or proposed 1o be scquired under the project/'scheme and further secured by lien on the "Fixed Deposits’ amounting Rs. EIII|J'
Lacs plus accrued interest thercon and the personal gumrantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal and Ankit Agarwal and Smt. Neha Agarwal, Directors o

) cmw‘ S - —— — —
VIIL | Vehicles loans | N B | B | i
Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of the respective v -vnhirlc
= X, il Punjab National Bunk- Term Loan for Plant & Hllhiuﬂ}'
| Loans for plant & machinery are seeured by hypotheeation of the mPﬂ-twr mn-lmn:r:,- crulﬂ!.frmnth: loan, =—
_ X. | Adityn Birla Finance Led. | | =
= Loans are sccured by way of Equitable morngage nfwgyﬁwvlgg_lg_!g_;p_dlgy of the company,
| e L] o
(B) | Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans: H ] |
1 [ Secured Term Loans |
Particulars As AL ILO03202S [ As Ar 31032024 Terms of Repayment
I SIDBI- Solar Loan 122.04 159,60| Repayment 1o be made over 60 equal instalments beginning from 10/06/2023 having
imterest rate of 2.1% over Repo mte. Current effective interest rate is 8.6%
1] SIDBI- Plant and 128.36 117.76] Repayment (o be made over $4 equal instalments beginning from 1070972023 having
Machinery imterest rate of 2.1% over Repo rate. Current effective interest mte is 8.60%
= 1. SIDBI- Solar Loan 11922 133,10 Repayment to be made over 34 equal instalments beginning from 10V0872024 having
interest rate of 2% over Repo rale. Current effective interest rate is 8.50%

v. SIDBI- Plant and 260,80 300.00) Repayment to be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 1000972024 having
Machinery interest rate of 0.65% above MCLR. Current effective interest rate is 8.85%

n V. SIDBI- Plant and 335 00 0,00] Repaymant 1o be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 10/09/2025 having
Muchinery interest rate of 0.60% above MCLR. Current effiective interest rate is 8.55%

VL SIDBI- Plant and 1,029.96 0,00] Repayiment to be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 100012025 havirg
Machinery interest rate of 0.65% above MCLR. Current effective interest rale is 8.3%

VIL GECL from Punjab 0.00 31.67| Repayable i 48 Monthly Instalments (@ RLLR + 0.85% subject to maximium of
National Bank- | 9.25% commeneing from October, 2021. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25

GECL from Punjaly 93,89 153.19] Repayable in 48 Monthly [nstalments @ RLLR + 0,85% subject to maximum of

VIIL National Bunk- 11 9.25% commencing from November, 2023

GECL from The 0,00 15.60| Repayable i 36 Equated Monthly Instalments of Rs 319163/ @ Repo Rate +5.25%
IX. Federal Bank Lid, subject to maximum of 9.25% p.a. commencing from September, 2021, Fully repaid
during the FY 2024-25
" T a——. pe—, - i | = ——. .
1 Unsecured Term Loans |
Particulars As AUILDIZ0ZS | As At3103.2024 Terms of Repayment
L Aditya Birla Finance 0.0 377.63| Repayment to be made over 191 equal instalments beginning from 15/02/2023 having
Lid, terest rate of |1 80%. Persomal guaraniees fumished by directors, Fully repaid during
the FY 2024-25
n Loans from other 0.00 79.67| Repaysble in instalments varying from 12 months to 36 months and interest rate @
NBFCs 14% to 18%. Fully mepaid during the FY 2024-25
1. Loan from Directors 627 368.69) Loans from direciors recesved in capacity of Promoter Contribution without specific
terms & conditions. However the company has unconditional right to defer the payment
s and when demanded for n period exceeding 12 months,
v Inter-Corporate 15.00 187.68 The company has unconditional right to defer the payment as and when demanded for o
Deposits penod excesding 12 months
IDFC First Bank Lid 0,00 1.41| Repayable in 36 Equated Monihly Insinlments of Rs. 24065/~ each commencing from
¥ (Under GECL) Oct. 2021 @ 9.25% p.a. First 12 months only interest (o be paid. 30 Instalment has been
paid s on 3151 March, 2024, Stands fully repaid as on 31/03/2025
vi Axis Bank Lid. 0.70 8.35| Repayable in 36 Equated Mowuthly Instalments @@ 16% commencing from May, 2022,
0.00 1.92| Repayable in 24 Equated Monthly Instalments @@ 15% commencing from May, 2022,
Vil | 1CICI Bank Lud. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
IDFC First Bank 0.00 22.91| Repayment m 24 Graded Monthly Instalments of Rs 24 5438/~ commeneing from
VI |Limited February, 2023 @ 15.25% pa. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
Unity Small Finance 0.00 23.36| Repayment in 24 Graded Monthly Instalinents of Fs 252156/« commencing from
IX Bank Lumiied February, 2023 @ 17% p.a. Fully repard during the FY 2024-25
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1

3 Vehicle Loans I .
Particulars As At IL03.2025 | As At 3103.2024 Terms of Repayment
L Car Loan from Axis 36,15 oi00 Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instalments of Rs, 88896/ cach @ 9.15% pu 10
Bank Lid. 7 linstalments have been re-paid in full ns on 315t March, 2025
Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instaliments of Rs. 16438/ cach @ 9.15% p.a. 44
n Car Loan from 0.00 3 4p|nstallments have been re-paid in full as an 3 1st March, 2024, Fully repaid during the
ICICI Bank Ltd. ' T |FY 2024-25
Carl i | Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 71720/~ each @ 8.50% p.a. 60
. | M .
1L, HDFC Bank Lid 108 9.22|Monthly Installments hove been paid as on 315t March, 2024
Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 41665/~ each @ %% pa. 3
v Car Loan from 19.27 0.0/ Monthly nstallinents have been paid ns on 31st March, 2024,
: HDFC Bank Lid -1l :
Repaynble in 36 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 79499/~ each @ 10.88% pa. 6
v Car Loan from Bank 2124 0.00|Manthly Installmenis have been paid as on 315t March, 2025,
of Baroda :
Car Loan from Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 133170/~ each @ 10.25% p.a. 2
it L
Vi Mm Bon: o s Monthly Installments have been paid as on 315t March, 2025
Financinl Service
India Pvi. Lid
== ! T ! =
NOTE:S i B | - il
Long Term Provisions | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)|
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.7024
Provision for Employee bencfits | = 76.76 88.90
TOTAL | | 76.76 88.90
= SF — | = = E—— = 1|
NOTE:6 | - | | | e o
Short Term Borrowings : {Amount in Rs. Lm]‘
Particulars As At 31,03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
Louns repayable on demand: . i 1
 (a) | Cash Credit_from banks (Secured -Sce note | & 1) | i
i i) | The Fedaral Bank Lid | | s 0.00 46033
_ i) | Punjab National Bank | 1,53323 2,062.84
__iii) | Conara Bank e =i _1.680.17 0.00
(b) | Current maturites of Lo Term Bortowings f N | u .
i) | Tern Loans from Banks (Sec Nowe No. 4 under the Long Term Borowings) 80U} B )
| i1) | Term Loans from Others (See Note No. 4 under the Long Term Borrowings) - 45018) 246.45
__((c) | From others (Unsccured) ———— assal g 47551
TOTAL e sl 1,233.08 3,418.90
Note: As on 31/03/2025, The Federal Bank ODVCC account reflects a debit balance and is therefore not included under shor-term borrowings,
e e
Nature of Securities:

Cash Credit  Limits under the cansortium n:rnTnmﬂn_l;mnongll Pl.ll-ljl.b National B;ul:. Canara Bunk and The Federal Bank Lid. are primarily secured
oy way of first pari passu charge on Raw Material, Work-in Progress, Stocks, Finished Good, book debts and entire other Current Assets of the Companmy's
I on Pan-Passu with consortium Banks (Present & Future)

Cash Credit Limits are further collnterally secured by pani passu charge by ereating  equitable mortgage of immovable properties located at Plot No.
B-11{B&C), Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur and Khasra No 157, 163 & 164, Village Badodiya, Chaksu Jaipur (owned by company), Apartment no. 1302,
type 3 BHK-Sky Villa on 13th Floor in wing no.| in “The Crest’ situated at Airpont Enclave Scheme, Tonk Road, Durgapura, Juipur (owned by Mrs Neha
Agarwal) and Plot No. 84 & 85, Amrit Nagar, Jaipur (owned by Shii Aukit Agarwal, Dircctor) on pari-passu basis with - consortium members

|

|

i
NOTE

] T I [
. | | - - i
S I= | 1 I ] N S T
Trade Payable | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As Ai 31032025 As At 31.03.2024
a) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | === 0.00 __181.M4
"% [omm R — - rs043 173030
TOTAL e 7.569.43 1911.53
| I | | ' Il
S (SRS IO ! o _ — e
Ageing Analysis as on J1.03.20258 | {Amount i Rs. Lacs
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total Outstanding
i_[MSME ' I — _0.00 0.00 __0.oo _om
'li.. Others 7.517.13 52,29 000 o 0.00] 7,56943
dii_ | Disputed Dues- MSME — ool L 0.00 0.00
v |Disputed Dues- Ohihers 0,00 (0,00 0,00 0,00/ 0,00
Tatal| T.517.13 5119 .00 0,00 7,569.43
|
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Apcing Analysis as on 31,03,2024 [ ] | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
- Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | year 1-2 years 1-3 years Maore than 3 years Total Quistanding
1 JMSME | i = 181.24 0.00) 0.00 oo 18124
| | i [Others | 1,730,30 - 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,730.30
ii_[Disputed Dus- MSME = 0.00 ool 0o oo 0.00
_i"!r_ Disputed Dues- Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
= Total 1.911.53 - - - 191153
= — - | N || IR S ~
) 8 s ! E—— |
 Other Current l-i-lH'IIHn | { Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As Ar31.03.2024
[ [AdvmcefomCustomens [ ] : = L) 14644
b) | Sundry Creditors-others and Provisions = 195454 779
| @) | Statutory & Other Lial |_ | . . 131.89] 34321
TOTAL | 2,115.41 1.267.45
) - S il | S| R — |
SHOIRLY | [im— ] - |
Short Term Provisions {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulurs As At 31.03.2025 As Ai 31031024
| (a) | Provision for Expenses | = i S || 39.36 734.74
(b) | m&.mrm 1 N i 27891 269.35
| te) | Provision for Interest Accrued but not due i 4.10 7.58
TOTAL | } 312,36 1,011.68
i S (i I = = ! |
NOTE: 11 | —=——_ | B NN 1 - |
Non-Current Investment {Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31.03,2025 As At 31.03.2024
] ol i I - — S - — = R
Inv in Subsidiary Companies (At Cost, Unlunlunﬂ B
9051000 (Previous Year: NIL) Fully Paid-Up Equity Shares OF Rs. 10/~ Each In lnvestment In RMC
| |Green Energy Pyt Lid . ws.a0l 0.00]
51000 (Previous Year 510003 Fully Paid-Up Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/ F.nch In Intelligent Iiy;lel Solutions
_ |Pvld — B e | i 5.10] o B 3.10
72000 { Previous Year: NIL) Fully Puid-Up Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each In RMC Solar Park Private
_|Limited - PN S, Y i | - T 0.00
58000 (Previous Year; NIL) Fully Paid-Up Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/~ Each In lnvestment In RMC Solar ﬂ
One Private Limited - — = 5.50 0.00
TOTAL | | 923.20 5.10
= = P S| | g .
NOTET: 2 y | | | B i
Long Term Loans and Advances | | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31,03.2025 As Ar 31032024
(Unsecured, considered good) = 3 ) 1 . |
{a) | Capital Advances 2 - 27.3% 12.68
| (b) | Advances to RMC Green Energy Pyt Lid, 2 Subsidiary ('umpnﬂy ! N | 264.69 0.00
TOTAL 292.04 12.68
s o [ e .
| INOTR:LY | I - = =R =0 =
Other Non - Current Assets T {Amount in Rs. Lascs)
Particulars As At 31032025 As At 31,03.2024
|| (Unsecured, considered good) =" ! | -
|7 {0} [ Security Deposits | M [ a 2240 2240
B ib) Dcfnrmd Revenue Eipl:mlllure B B N o e 0,00 12.58
ic) | Fixed Deposits (including Accrued but not due | Iinterest) = = = 468631 _217.76
{Bank deposits are earmnrked ngainst Bank Guarantees/Letter of Credits furnished 1o
L= customers/suppliers)
TOTAL 491.03 152,74
| |
= i SRS —_— ol o - | . 1l I
Inventories {Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31032024
I | (a) Raw Matcrials (including bought out items) 101294) 7109
il by Raw Materials - Goods In Transit S | 49988 0.00
| (=) | Work in Progress e l'n] 94 22631
| | Finished Goods{including Scrap) = 118 4389
] _Slulg_l'(_wmcludm packing material) o 124,89 38.08
TOTAL | 2,010.33 1,029.19
| I |
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f |

Trade Receivables

(Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Particulars

As At 31.03.2025

As At 31.00.2024

(Unsecured)

)

Current - Ou.hll.nde for less {h_mzlim:nlhs

b

Others

C|ToTAaL

Less: Provision for impaimment of deblors

11,13085]

5.969.12
3,18833
984

9,147.62

S =0

Agein

Analysis as on 31.03.2025

(Amount in Ks. Lacs)

Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment

51

Particulars
Na.

Less Than & Months
(including not due)

6 months-1 year

1-2 years

1-3 vears

More than 3 years

Tatal

i) |Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
considered
good

11,130,835

327240

218.68

14,81

0.00

14,636.74

i) |Undispured
Trade
receivables -
considered
doulstiul

Disputed
Trade
Reccivables-
considered
good

i)

LLER]|

iv) |Drisputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
doubd ful

- 984

9.84

Total

11,130.85

327240

218,68

14.81

14,735.11

Analysis ns on 31.03.2024

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

8 Particulars

Less Than 6 Months
(including not due)

& months-1 year

1-1 years

1-) years

Maore than 3 years

Tatal

i Unidisputed
Trade
receivables -
considered
pood

5.960.12

288949

193.73

480

1.95

9,059.09

i) |Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
considered
doubtful

i) |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
good

- B8.53

BH.53

iv)  |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
doubtful

9.84

9.54

Total

5,969.12

A4.80

100,31

9,157.45

NOTE : 16

Cash and Cash Equivalenss

i [ —

~ {Amountin Rs. Lacs)

Particulars

As At 31.03,2025

As Ar 31032024

IELE
_®)

_Cash In Hand

Balances with Banks: -
i} In Current Accounts/ CC Accounts (Debit Balunees)

TOTAL |

| i) Fixed Deposits (including Accrued but not due Inerest)

(Bank dﬁpﬁtlh wre earmarked against Bank (.Tm'n.nl::u'l.:l_l:r of Credits fn‘nlilhnﬂ 1o custorrers/suppliers)

35.76

58599

2548

020/

277.82

172.33)
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NOTE:LT | _ |
Short Term Loans aml Advances (Amount in Rs, Locs))
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As A1 31.03.2024
| {Unsecured, considered good) ==
{a) | Advances Rocovershle in Cash/Kind or value to be received 1,260.09 31090
(b) | Prepaid Expenses - 310.55 319.10
(¢} | Other Loans & Advances o026 143.52
TOTAL = 1,650.90 773,51
| — = '
= | =
Oither Current Assets | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As Ar 31032025 As At 31032024
{Unsecured, considered good) | [ . S
(8} | GST paid on ndvance and ITC avnilable 14924
(b) | Security Deposits L | i1 279.63]
fc) | Fixed Deposits (including Accrued but not due Interest] 90651
(Bank deposits are earmarked against_Bank Guarantees/Letter of Credits furnished 1o customers/suppliers)
TOTAL | 168,58 133539

RMC Switchgear Limited




RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

(CIN: L25111RJ1994PLCO0SGI8)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR T

HE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2025
I

| nOTE: 19 ‘ _ l g} B i i
| Revenoe From Operations (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particalars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
[ ) | sake of Products B L (R S _
| | ProductSaless | | 16,386.86 9,527.08
| Sale of Scrup _ | B 147.91 124.97
(b) | Sale of Services -L s} Dae Wl N
| Works Contract Services o I PO 20,773.15 10,687.68
B0 e IR 37.307.91 20,339.73
| Less: GST [ 567742 3,076.63
[ Revenue From Operations (Net of GST) 31,630,49 17,263.10
| = — L | — |
| NOTE : 20 | |
Other Income | | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
_8) | Interest earned = . e 107.99 B 7504
b) | Rental Income _|__ ) L 355 T, - -
¢) | Foreign Exchange Fluctuation —_ W . 764 - . 437
| @ | ProfitOn Sale OF used vehicles | ke 726 0.00
¢) | Accrued Income ( work not completed till 31/03/2025) 4121 0.00
TOTAL 167.65 82.97
|
RNOTE: 2] —a— A _ | A i
Cast of Materials Consumed I {(Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
B dcey 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| |Opening Stock o o 720.92 445.11
| Add : Purchases{Net of Returns) [ 22,5571.53 e By Yy
| |Add: Freight and Cartage Inward - §4.62 59.12
LI e = 23,363.07 10,296.44
|Less: Closing Stock 1.012.94 720.92
TOTAL 22,350.13 9.575.53
|
L | [ S | 1 I
NOTE:2L1 = L (Amount in Rs._Lacs)
Value of Imparted and indigenous Raw material Consumed and iheir percentage io consumption : |
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Paricutas 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
= Value of Imported and Indigenous Raw [ |
| Materials Consumed during the year ;. - | [ i |
Imported - Vel Rs. = LY = 0.00
| | T Percentupe I 0.00%] o 0.00%
Indigenous B |Value | Rs 22,350.13 957553
! P _|Percentage | 100.00% _100.00%|
| |
| | 22,350.13 9,575.53

RMC Switchgear Limited
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NOTE : 22 ' :

Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods & Work in Progress

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Peiwenin 31.03.2028 31.03.2024
_|Opening laventory |Waork In Progress 2631 254.08
| Finished Goods 43.89 132.87
i = Jr B 270.19 386.94
___|Closing Inventory =l ] I
— _|Work In Progress. — _ a5 0 0 0 0 0 - 2631
Finished Goods 118.68 4389
| 37262 270.19
CHANGE IN INVENTORY (102.43) 116.75
| .
NOTE:3 1 | B 1 - - e
Employee Benefits Expenses | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
B itatass For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) |Salury, Wages, Allowances and Stipend | b 126580 803.20
b) |Direciors' Remuneration . = 256,00 - 195.00
| ¢ |Contribution to Provident Fund /ESI A o 9.89 624
~d) |Labour & Staff Welfure Expenses 5 - 10.09 21.55
|| e) |Staff Transportation Expenses R . R 17.07 1236
f) |Provision/ (Reversal) of Gratuity based on Aciuarial Valuation (12.13) 54,00
TOTAL 1,546.71 1,002.86
s - i s - — e . =
NOTE: M | ] N | e
Finance Costs | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
8) |Interest Expense 679.60 678,43
b} |Other Borrowing Costs DY |_ 19238 185.36
. TOTAL §71.98 864.19
I !
| NOTE:25 —a - S
|| Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses | {(Amount in Rs. Lacs)
4 For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Cltiestgs 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) | Depreciation on Property, Plant & Machinery = 29736 266.97
b) |Depreciation on Intangible Assets | 1 1.26 126
¢) |Amortisation of Intungible Assels- Dellered Revenue Expenditure 12,58 14.30
TOTAL 32 282,54
|
— R Rema | i e ——
| | NOTE:26 il S | AN —— ———
Other Expenses | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particnins 31.03.2025 31.03,2024
Auditors’ Remuneration e ._ — 4.38 173
Conveyance Expenses i . | a 425 . 12.29
CSR Expenses | I | 29150 1245
| Discount | S B 0.00/ 3883
__|Insurance Expenses = | 39.48 43.04
Job Work Charges = | 636.53 - 191.26
Loading, Unloading & Labour Charges | i . 60.09 3805
Commission based on Profit to Independent Director | 0.00 26.32

RMC Switchgear Limited




 |Liquidated Damages (Net - L o 4260 _ 30540
Miscellancous Expenses B B 116.54 68.52
Packing Material Consumed . I 43.52 [ 135.17
Postage & Courier Expenses 137 1.3

_ |Power & Fuel B 191.61 170,11
Provision for impairment in Debtors - 0.00 9.84
Printing & Stationery | | 335 329

__|Professional, Consultancy & Legal Charges B L 256.24] 220.74

~ |Rates and Taxes 509 75.16

| Rent 156.15 11582
Repairs & Malintenance Expenses o B
a) Plant & Machinery | 15.33) 58.41
b) Building o . o - 6225 i 59.08

| ) Others l o steel 41,04

__[Stores, Spares & Accessories Consumed | 27439 _ 2769
| |Selling and Distribution expenses = 43424 500.06
Donation Expenses f ) e . 0.71
| [Sundry Balance Written OFT —- B 1551 59943
Telephone & Internet Expenses =l 2.25 3.09
| Tour & Travelling Expenses a 0197 76.11
_|Type-Testing Expenses i - 472 24.36
Vehicle Upkeep Expenses 871 2.27
TOTAL 2,562.03 3,063.58
___;ﬂ_qn-l':zs.l | = | — | — [ (Amount in Rs. Lacs)|
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
(A) | Auditors’ Remuneration (Nei of GST Input Credit) 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 [ AsAuditor T 385 3.50
1 i i) For Certification | 0.53 0.23
TOTAL | 4.38 3.73
S e [ : = ! = =
| NOTE:26.2 o ) i SN | | A o B (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Value of Imported and Indigenous Stores & Spares Consumed and their percentage to consumption :
Particolars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) | Value of Imported and indigenous Stores & Spares Consumed and
[their percentage to consumption :
imprtcd il Cvee | e 000 T
L Percentage 000} __0.00
Indigenous ) |Value | Rs. B 274.39 22769
Percentuge 100.00%| 100.00%
174.39 227.69
R e e
Related Party Transactions
Related Party Disclosures as required by AS-18 are given below: : e = .
|
Name of the related parties and nature of relutionships :
a) | Companies / firms with whom transactions have Nature of Relationship
taken place during the year :
1) Synergy Solar System Proprietorship firm of Mrs, Neha Agarwal, Whole-time Director
_| | ii) Acme Metmwires Private Lid. | Sor-in-law of Chairman cum Managing Director is director =1
i) How Sweet ; | Proprietorship firm of daughter of Chairman cum Managing Director
iv) RMC Green Energy Private Limited Subsidiary Company el S e
v) Intelligent Hydel Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary Company - . | — ==
vi) RMC Solar Park Private Limited Subsidiary Company |
|| | vil) RMC Solar One Private Limited | Subsidiary gmilmug)' o —

RMC Switchgear Limited




iii) Lnlc Mr. Kuljit Singh P‘;pil i

i) Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta

Independent Director

Independent Director

_b) | Key Management Personnel .l I e
i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, L | EEE= Chairman Cum Mamg_n&_l_)_:mclur
i) Mr. Ankit Agarwal | CEQ Cum Whole Time Director - B
iii) Mrs. Neha Agarwal Whole Time Director — o=
iv) Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain o | Non-Exeeutive Director -
| vi) Mr. Anand Chaturvedi B | Chief Finance Officer (wef 01/04/2024 to 16/04/2025) =
|| vii) Mrs. Anuradha Chaturvedi Relative of Mr. Anand Chaturvedi- CFO -KMP (wef 01/04/2024 to 16/04/2025)
Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer (During from 14/08/2023 10
vii) Ms. Shivi Kapoar _|29/05/2024)
| Company Secretary cum Complinnce Officer (Continuing from 04/01/2025 1o
viii) Mr. Pushpendra Singh | 28/03/2025)
¢) | Non-executive Directors | " = ST
i} Mr. Shriram Vishwasrao Mane | Independent Director . _1__ —

Independent Director (we.f. 15072024 1o Iﬂp‘ﬂdﬂﬂ"j - Date of his expi ZI!

The lollowing transactions were carried out / outstanding with related parties in the ordinary course of business with parties referred

above: = =
| | {Amount in Rs, Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
i 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
n _ L 1 1 o= _ )
Details of transactions with Companies / firms with whom transactions
__{have waken place during the year (a) above: = o g .
Puchases —_— L w2l 10
_ |JobWork S L - _ Goop S __48.36
| Purchase of Shares = | e 7.40 ) 0,00}
Loan Given I 151824 000
Detatls o_,f transactions with Key Mmugem ent Personnel as mentioned
\int (b) above are as under: W i .
| Remuneration to Executive Directors/ Non-executive Director = 256.00 - 19500
Remuneration to Independent Director 0.00 S 26.32
Remuneration to Key Management Persons [ 42.18 R 5.00
| Rent payment ' - Iy 77.70) P ?3.2{!1
_|Interestpayment | . 15911 112,33
Details of transactions with Relatives of Key Management Personnel as
mentioned in (c) above are as under: ) NIL NIL )
Man_pow Armangement Charges e o 6.00 o 0.00
Ruripn - -
Detatls of transactions with Companies / firms with whom transactions
| have taken place during the year (a) above : = —1 S it
 Rent Receipts - . -t 3.56 g 1.56
Security Deposit Refunded . ) N 225 N 0.00
| AdvanceReceived | 5.00 M. 0.00
| Loans Repaid Back | B 260,00 _0.00]
| Balance outstanding at the end of period/year : — : |
| Unsecured Loans from Direclors | N N L | 368.69
i | Receivables as at the yearend | . 38140 o 109.39)
| Payable as at the year end | . 2766 i 0.00
NOTE: 28
Disclosure Under Accounting Standard - 7 (Revised) "Construction Contracts” {Amount in Lacs)
|
| For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Particulars
(a) (i) Coniract Revenue recognized during the year 20,773.15 10,687.68
{i1) Method used (o delermine the contract revenue recognized and the stage of
completion o I { Refer Note 1((ix)(b)} { Refer Note I((ix)(b))|
(b) Disclosure in respect of controcts in progress as at the year end:-

RMC Switchgear Limited
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(i) Ageregnte amount of costs incurred and recognized profits {less recognized
losses)

Included under various cost
snd expenses head of

Included under various cost and

— = sccounts expenses head of accounts

(i) Advances received, oulstanding 0.00 0.00
{1ii) Retentions receivable —— l i o 860.53 159.54
| (iv) Amount due from customers (included under Note 15— Trade Receivables ) | __9.895.19 ! 6,862.08
(v) Amount due Lo customers il S = - _ 0.00

. |
NOTE : 9 ‘ |
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments | { | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
by mes 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
|
(s | Good nd Service Tax matters pending with First Appellate Authority _ ] N
BB ol o = SR 7633 o 219
- ~ (b) | Pending Litigation against the company __!_ - . - 520
(€) | Duty on export obligation under EPCG Scheme on the obligation yet 1o 67.07
!be fulfilled %
Total T76.33 100.23
=% o= | SRS —F 1 T N e
NOTE : 30
Earnings Per Share {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For ihe Year Ended For the Year Ended
Paticaburs 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) are computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “Earnings Per Share”

a) | Weighted Average Equity Shares outstanding at year end 10382810 — 1,03,08,300

| _b) | Profit for Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share | LS 3,140.79| S 1,488.74
¢) | Eamings Per Share (Basic) — b IS 3025 " 14

_d) | Eamings Per Share (Diluted) \ - . 3025] 1444

| |_e) | Face Value per Shure 10,00 10.00
N_ﬂ_fi|‘. S i B S i —= ==

I
|

| Disclosures specificd by MSMED Act, 2006

IMicro & Small enterprises as defined under the Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been identified by
the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company and the auditors have relied on the same. Sundry creditors include
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises also. The disclosure pursuant 1o MSMED Act based on the books of account is as under:

Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particeluny 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| |

|| Principal amount due and remaining unpaid | L 0.00{ 181.24
| Interest due on above and the unpaid interest | o000f 6o
Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act | i [ 0.00 0.00
| Amount of payments made to supplier beyond the appointed day = _——44Y = __0.00
| Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payment 0.00 _0.00
Amount of Interest accrucd and remaining unpaid = __ 000 0.00
"~ Iyears for the purpose of disallowance under section 23 of the MSMED. 0.00 0.00
0.00 181.24

Taotal
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NO‘I’I-. 32
ClF Value of Imporis, Expenditures and Enrninf,: in Foreign Currency {Amount in_Rs. Lbes)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(a) | Raw Materinls | " 0.00 0.00f
(b) | Capital Goods _ _ 36549 0.0
| | (e) | Expenditure in Foreign Currency ] | N - 047 014
(d) | Earnings in Foreign Currency 93.31 170.73
Total 459.26 170.87
|
|
NDTE 33
Del‘errtll Taxntion [Su Nott 1{vi)} (Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
Perticalars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.20258 31.03.2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities ——— ] - =
| @) | Accumulated Depreciation 918.74 ~ §90.83]
Defierred Revenue Expenses cloimed as deduction in Income Tax but
b) |deferred in accounts S - 0.00 12.58
= 918.74 903.41
| [ Deferred Tax Assels | i - [ =
| @) | Expenses allowable for tax purposes on Payment B Bum 76.76) B 90
b) | Short Term Capital Loss brought forward | 483 443
¢) | Prowvision for impairment of receivables = 984 9.84
— 91.43 103.56
|| NetDeferred Tax Liability [ _ 82731 799.85
I PR | —— —
NOTE : 34
" |Employee Benefits L_ _ ) [ il - I
| _A. | Defined Contribution P Plans o | —
The amount recognized as anux_p:ns: Tor d |icl'mod contribution plans are as under: (Amount in Rs Laes |
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| Provident Fund —=mai [SPryeen | . 7136 - 4.59
Employee State Insurance 2.26 1.65
| B. | Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity) | ' i
' \r’n!ummn in respect of Gratuity has been carried out by |ndcpmdcm nctunry us at the Balance Sheet dme. The details of the same are given as
__q‘Lij___AulmElinns: e al L DR PR | P - - N
(a) | Discount Rate (Per Annum) —— == _6.75%] - T25%
(b) | Rate of increase in compensation level IC N o 10.00% 10005
(¢) | Rate of return on Plan Asscts — _ 0§ N E—
| (d) | Expected Average remaining working lives of employees in no. of years 21.20 23.90
(i) | Changes in the preseni Value of Obligation: [ = =
| (a) | Present value of the obligation at the beginning nl'lh‘:)'ﬁﬂr I 8889 3573
{b) | Interest Cost — = =] - 644 268
| @ | Cument Service Cost 1 as7| 1225
(d) | Actuarial (Gain)/Loss B | Il (23.45) 39,07
Il _(_L__Benuﬂts Paid ) _I - B (0.84)
() | Present value of the uh]ngntmn at the end nl'thc yew' s | _ — 76.76 . £8.89 |
{iii) | Amount recognized N _— L
| (&) | Present Value of Obligation as ot yearend | Ll T6.76 B BE.RY
(b) | Fair value of Plan Assets as at year end e = _=2p . -
{c) | Net (Asset)Liability recognized T6.76 §8.89
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(iv) | Expenses recognized

(s) | Current Service Cost

(b) | Interest Cost

(¢) | Net actuaril (GainVLoss
(d) |Ade

amr| 1225

1 [ 6.44 2.68
] (23.45) 39.07

(12.13) 54.00

| As per our separate report of even date

For Rakesh Ashok & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN 011273C

N

CA V. K. Gupta

| Parmer

4__5‘- Ny 1

“For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

RMC Swillfljgun Limited

Membership Number : 407189

UDIN; 25407189BMGXPF3917

Place: Jaipur

Dated: 20th May, 2025
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'RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

(CIN: L2511 FRJIFWPLCG‘UMFSJ

‘-f-n A

NOTESTO FINA*ICIAI:. STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 T JI“ MARCI! 2025

N | i — | |

Note 35: ANAL‘\ TICAL RATIOS

M:mh-r:rshl)p Numbcr 407189

UDIN: 254071893MGXPF39 17

Place: Jaipur
Dated: 20th May. 2025

The folowing are analytical ratios for the year ended ‘March 31, 2025 and March 3l L2024
. As at As an %o HReasons of variation in
sy Bate Han Numerator | Denominalor | 5, 0355 | 31,0324 | Variance | _excess 25% in the ratio
4 |Current Ratio Cumentassets | oo 1.52 1.64 -7.09% NA
Shareholder* Due 1o reduction in debt and
b |Debi-Equity Ratio Total Debt | "0 u‘: ’ 045 0.83 46.11% |increase in profitability, the
i ratio has improved
Earning Due to improved profitability
¢ |Debt Service Covernge Ratio available for Debt service 3.76 2.11 78.38% |and reducing debt, the ratio
deblt service has shown the improvement
The ratio has improved due 1o
Net pF“:ﬁf after Average n significunt increase in net
d  |Return On Equity (ROE) ‘“"5.5'. d“;”';f“’ Shareholder’s | 37.54% | 28.06% | 33.78% |profit, which outpaced the
viciend (¢ Equity growth in average
any) shareholder’s equity.
Due to increase in lurnover
. . Cost of goods Average A and reduction in  inventory
e |Inventory Tumover Ratio sold arasles Fasvestiory 17.11 12.90 32.64% lvels, company achieved
better wrnover of inventory
Average NA
f |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio | Net Credit Sales accounts 2.65 2.32 14.02%
receivahle
: Increase in Trade Creditors
g |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Net Creals AyoraRc vade 4.76 6.40 -25.67% |payble has resulted in the
Purchases Payables !
reduced creditor wimover
h |Net Capital Tumover Ratio Net Sales | Working Capital|  4.24 3.54 19.63% NA
i |Met Profit Ratio Net Profit Net sales 9.93% 8.62% 15.14% NA
Earning before Capital NA
i |Return On Capital Employed interest and P 31.52% | 2693% | 17.03%
Employed
1axes -
Ine ime weighted NA
k |Return On Investment gmc:;lmom Tlm:vmli I n T:) :Ablc % T.“:lm A T;:the
investments investments pplic pplicable | App
i e —
| As per our se_pn_m_tg r_e_p-ort uf even date For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Fur Ritkesh Ashok & Company RMC Switchgears Limited
. _ RiML LA =
Chartered Accountants _ . 1
| FRN 011273C B . - o T Il
: e} [ Ashok Kumar Agarwal .
f; 4 Chairman Cum Managing Director
| _ ' - (DIN: 0793152) ———
CA V. K. Gupia -&_..-f - ' =
Partner 1 |

kit .-igu;“al =) -
('“FG cu H"}mfe Time Director
](IJ!N 0 ?'iij'lﬁ.?jj
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0-33, Il FLOOR,

AMBER TOWER, S.C. ROAD,
JAIPUR, RAJASTHAN -302001
E-Mail - rakeshashok01@gmail.com
FRN: 011273C

0141-4002667

RAKESH ASHOK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED,

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

that We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED (“the
Holding Company”), its subsidiary company namely INTELLIGENT HYDEL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED, RMC
SOLAR PARK PRIVATE LIMITED, RMC GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED AND RMC SOLAR ONE PRIVATE LIMITED
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary company together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31°* March 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated

statement of Cash Flows for the year the ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of subsidiary company, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated State of Affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated Profit
and their consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1 Revenue recognition: We have performed the following principal audit
procedures in relation to revenue recognized:

The holding company is dealing with Large
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Government Companies and Industrial
customers on Contract basis. The holding
company’s revenue is mainly from works

* Assessing the appropriateness of the holding
Company’s revenue recognition accounting

contracts which is recognized at a point in time Polices.

based on the terms of the contact with * We understood the holding Company’s
customers, which may vary from case to case. revenue processes, including design and
The accuracy of amounts recorded as revenue implementation of controls which vary based
contains an inherent risk relating to price on product segment and customer, and
variation claims and liquidated damages on tested the operating effectiveness of such
account of extended delivery schedules or controls in relation to revenue recognition.

delays if any. e On a sample basis, we tested contracts with

customers, purchase orders issued by
Customers, and sales invoices raised by the
Company to determine the pricing terms
including termination rights, terms relating
to penalties for delay and breach of contract
as well as liquidated damages.

e For samples selected, we tested calculations
of amounts billed to customers and recorded
as revenue, in line with underlying contracts/
agreements. We also tested relevant
underlying supporting documentation for
recording of revenue at a point in time.

* We tested on samples basis provisions made
in respect of contracts, where the costs of
L executing the contract.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report,
Corporate Governance Report, annual report and other information, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
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prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of presentation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurances a high level of assurance, but are not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part of
an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated annual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that insufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on whether the holding
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the consolidated financial results made by the Management and Board of Directors.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we canclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated annual financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual financial statement represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial
information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors,
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such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 4 subsidiaries, whose
financial statements reflects total assets of Rs.51.81 Lacs, and total revenue from operation of Rs.185.54 Lacs, total
net profit after tax of Rs.5.44 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the financial
information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the Order reports
issued by us and by the respective other auditors as mentioned in paragraph 15 above, of companies included in
the consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary, incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose so of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the afaresaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
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e)

f)

g)

h)

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiary companies, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate
companies are disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, and associate companies covered under the Act, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’ wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act:

. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Holding Company and its subsidiary company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company during the year ended 31
March, 2025;

iv.  (a) The Management of Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, whose
financial statement audited under the Act have represented to us and other auditor of such subsidiary,
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of holding company and its subsidiary company incorporated in
India, whose financial statement audited under the Act have represented to us and other auditor of
such subsidiary, respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies shall, whether directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.
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v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year is in accordance with section 123
of the Companies Act 2013, Hence clause not applicable.

vi. The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year
for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with.

For RAKESH ASHOK AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 011273C

Place:-JAIPUR VUUAY KUMAR GUPTA
Date: 20/05/2025 (PARTNER )
Membership No.407189

UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375
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Annexure—Ato the Independent Auditors’ Report
of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of RMC Switchgear Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Control with reference to the consolidated financial statements under clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting of RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED (“the
Company”) as on 31* March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the
year ended on that date.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of RMC Switchgears Limited (‘the Holding
Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company’s and its subsidiary company, which are companies covered under the Act, as
at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act. '

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

G
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company’s and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, has in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl .

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company,
insofar as it relates to 1 subsidiary company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such subsidiary.

For RAKESH ASHOK AND COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011273C

i
Place:-JAIPUR VIJAY KUMAR GUPTA
Date: 20/05/2025 (PARTNER )
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375 Membership No.407189
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_RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

(CIN: L2511IRJ! QFfFLCﬂﬁSﬁM}

T W LTS

mabeap ==t Valuys

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

E' our separate report of even date
For Rukesh Ashok & Company
|Chartered Accountanis
FRN 011273C |

-~

thbtullig N'nmlu:r__ -_ill‘?lﬂﬂ o
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6ITS
Place: Jaipur

Dated: 20th May, 2025

(.T t'-i.l

T {Amount in_Rs." Lacs)
ot March 31,2025 March 31,2024
I |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) |Shareholders’ Funds e[| [
|  |ta) |ShaveCopit!l 2 1,055.18 103083
{b) |Reserves and Surplus 3 9,643,35 5,008 86
logoss| 20000 000600969
i |2 Minority Interest | 4.89
"~ 3) |Non-Current Liabilities -
(a)_|Long Term Borrowings 16350 1,573.99
| Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 208.17 201.24
' lte) |Long Term Provisions 76.76 $8.90
i | L 191644] _ 1ss1d
4) |Current Liabilities ——
e _|(a) |Short Term Borrowings 4,233.08 3.418.90
i {b) |Trade Payables C Sl
(i) Total Ozrt;:nnding dues of micro :m:rpris:s es and small | 0.00 181.24
(i1} Total Dulslmdug dues of creditors other than micro | 758387 1,730.30
| enterprises and small enterprises
~|te) Other Current Linbilities 2,128,70 1,267.45
(d) |Short Term Provisions 324.20 1.011.68
- L 14,269.85 7,609.56)
) ~ TOTAL 26,902.60 15,518.27
_ ML JASSETS o CH il
|1y |Non-Current Asscls U
(a) |Property, Plant and Equipment p— ¥ = —
{ () [Copital Work in Progress T2l 0000 0000 000
|| (i) Tangible Assets 299096/ 2,751.13
_r.(iii} [Intangible Assets i 6.76 8.02
| — —— = _ ATSEM) 5159151
| | |Nen-current lavestments 000 S
||t}  Long Term Loans and Advances _65578] 12.68
| |@ |Other Non-Current Assets 749.42 252.80
) i 1,405.21 26548
i 2) __gmnhl\nel:l . — e |
A [_ﬂ | Inventories U e 201033 200 1.029.19
| |(b) |Trade Reccivables i 1482732 9,147.62
_ l(¢) |Cashand Cash Equivalents 97430 207.93
) i{d] Short Term Loans and Advances 1,559.44 173,52
(e} |Other Current Assels 2.373.86 1,335.39
L | i B 21,745.25 12,493.64
- TOTAL 26,902.60 15,518.27
i T .| o . 0.00 0.00
companying notes are an integral part of the finencial stalements

Fur & un behalf of the Board of Directors - _-

RMC Switchgears Limited

y Alhﬂk- lﬁum;r .-\gr;u'll
Chairmar Cum Manoging Director
{DIN I’JI’J 793.‘52)

it Ag_nrml
hale Time Director

(DIN: (0793035)
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

(RMD)

 BRWITEH lj B it I;._A_L..l_
Maluiy Asil Vidss | Vi W

(CIN: LEH IRSI 994PLC908698)

(Amaum in Rs. Lacs)

Partner

ot

CA V. K. Gupta

Membership Number : 407189
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375

Place: ce: Jaipur

Dated: 20th May, 2025

——_— Note | Forthe Year Ended | For the Year Ended
No. 31" March 2025 31" March 2024
| | F— i
[ L. Gross Revenue from Operations(including GST) 18 37.526.85 _20,339.73
B | Less: GST ~aa o | (5.710.82) - (3,076.63)
|| Revenue from Operations (Net of GST) . 31,816.03 17,263.10
II. | Other Income o 19 126.44 82.97
| 1L | Total Revenue (1+11) ) o 31,942.47 17,346.07
IV, | Expenses . g . o
1 EE' Cmtwcﬂnsumm - 20 2235052 9,575.53
.. b) Changes in inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-
| " |Progress @000 N 21 ) (102.43)) __16.75
¢) | Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 94.94 373
) Employee Benefits Expenses - 22 | 1.546.71 1,092.86
L Finance Costs 1l 23 871.98 864.19
| 0| Depreciation and Amortization Expcnscs | 24 | B k)0 el | 282.54
|- 2) | Other expenses N B 25 2,603.73 3,063.61
- | Total Expenses (atog) o |l 27,676.67 14,999.19
V. | ProfitBefore Exceptional ltems and Tax (1-1V) | 4,265.80 2,346.88
VI. | Exceptional ltems i — 204.91
VIL | Profit Before Tax (V-VI) - —_ 4,265.80 2,141.98
VIIL. | Tax Expenses o = | -~ - B
B a) | Current Tax e - 1,075.53| 610.83
b) | Income Tax of Past Years _ _Jie r L . 17.98
¢) | Deferred Tax Liability . 32 6.93 24,44
~IX. | Profit (Loss) After Tax (VII-VII) 3,146.23 1,488.72
Minority Interest = 099 (0.01)
X | Share of Profit(Loss) after tax and minority inter:sl g 314524 1,488.73
__ XI_ | Earning per equity share: (Face Value of Rs.10 each) 2 | : - -
| @) | Basic I _ i 30.30] 14.44
by | Diluted _ 30.30 14.44
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Stalements | . -
As per our separate report of even date . | - For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Rakesh Ashok & Comp_y—_ - ~_ RMC Swi;qﬂ_ﬁw .
Chartered Accountants
FRN 011273C | SHON -‘C »_Em-nwif— ]

Ashok Kumar Agrawal
Chairman Cum Managing Director
(DIN: 00793152)

(DIN: 007931 f33)
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED <RME)
Registered Office & Works:Khasra No.-163,164, Village-Badodiya ,Tehsil-Kotkhawda, Kotkhawads, Jaipur, Jaipur, Rajasthan, India, 30390
{CIN: L25]1 1TRJIT994PLCO0B69R)
www.rmeindia.in, E-mail: cs@ rmcindinin
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025
{Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Yeur ended on Yeur ended an
31" March, 2025 31 March, 2024
L] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I Net Surplus as per Statement of Profit & Loss Before Tiaves 4,265,580 Li41.98
2 Adjustments for;
(i) Depreciation and Amartisation 311,21 342 54
in) Finance Cosi 87198 #6419
(1] Interest Income 1 107.99) (75,04)
fiv) Renial lncome {3.56] (3.56)
v} Provinons (3.20) 7761
(vil  Minonty Interest Profit (Loss) 085 001
(vir)  Exceprional  resis o 204,91
tviit)  Deferred Revenue Expenditure Wrnten OFF [1258) {1430
Operating Prafit Before Working Capital Changes 5318.68 347832
3 Adjustments for Working Capital changes:
Adfustrents for fincreme)  decreave i UPEE I gyl
Inventories (81 14 (14590}
Trode receivables (5.679.70) {3.439.560)
Shor-term loons and advances (TRS 92 375.84
(hher curreni asseis (L3847 (805 65
Aufpustaments for tnerease  (dvervarel s operattog fiabilites
Irudde paavables 5.672.34 76376
Oher curvent lahilities 80125 471 96
Short Term Provisions (BRT 4K) 732.07
4 Cash Genernted From Operations LaT%.30 1,430,584
Less: Direct Taxes 1) 1957 63326
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES [RY] 1,550.99 TTI.58)
L1 N] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
() Purchase of Tangible / Intangible Assets {1.302.54) (318.58)
(i) Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Fixed Assets 1092 5337
() Inierest Recemved 107 99 T5.04
{ivl  Hental Receipts 3.56 350
(vl Other Non Current Assets (49662 ) 1040 14
{vi}  Long Term Loans and Advances (643 10) 34.48
NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES |B] (2.31%.80) (1,99
1 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{1} Proceeds/{ Repayment ) from Short Terim Bormowings Net | Bl4 I8 CRIRT
(1) Proceeds from Equity lssue 2435 =
{an) Inerense i Equity (Minonty Share) 12,849 A E9
() Proceeds by way of premiinm on issie of shares 148925 -
(v} Proceeds/( Repayment) From Long Term borrowings { Nel ) 57.52 (28R 08)
(w1} Interinn Dividend pasd duning FY 2023-24 - [20.62)
{vind Finance Cost Paid (E71.98) (86 19)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES |C) 1,526,149 {53, 10
NET CASH GENERATED(USED) [A+R+C) Thi 3% 18949
Cash & cash equivalents-  The beginning of the vea 207.93 18,44
Cash & cash equivalenis-  The end of the year 974,32 20793
Mo
I Components of eash & cash Equivalents-
Cash on hamd 90.81 1554
Cheque in hand 10,00 0.00
Balances with banks
In current Accouns $95.68 1001y
Ini Fixed dﬂ!l!!ll‘: 27782 17233
97432 207,93
o The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as el out in the Accounting Standard -3 on Cash ow
- Statement
3 Previous yvear's figures have been regrouped and rearrongzed wherever necessany
As et our separate repon of even date For & on behalf of ihe Board of Directors
Far Kakesh Ashok & Company RMU Switchzears Limined
{ hartered Accountants
FRN 0112730
Ashok Kumar Agrawal
W = o "hewdewnann € ey Narnrcipsinge { Wrei o
__,_—-"_"'} (1N: DNI7Y353)
CAV, k. Gupta
Partrier
Membership Number ¢ 407189
UDIN: 25407189 BMGXIPGHITS Afdkin Agarwal
Place: Juipur 0 cum\ )Wl Fime D hireine
(NN DUTUI035)
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Note No. 1
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

i)

i)

RMC Switchgear Limited

Corporate Information

RMC Switchgears Limited (Holding Company) is a public company domiciled in India. The
company is primarily engaged in the business of ‘Switchgear Engineering’, "ECI contracts for
power distribution/ transmission sector’.

Intelligent Hydel Solutions Private Limitedis a subsidiary company incorporated on 29" January,
2024 having registered office in Jaipur in which RMC Switchgears Ltd. holds 51% Equity Shares.

RMC Green Energy Private Limited is a subsidiary company incorporated on 15 July, 2024
having registered office in Jaipur in which RMC Switchgears Ltd. holds 99.46% Equity Shares.

RMC Solar Park Private Limitedis a subsidiary company incorporated on 19" September, 2024
having registered office in Jaipur in which RMC Switchgears Ltd. holds 72% Equity Shares.

RMC Solar One Private Limited is a subsidiary company incorporated on 26" March, 2025 having
registered office in Jaipur in which RMC Switchgears Ltd. holds 58% Equity Shares.

Consolidated results include the financial statements of holding company and its subsidiaries i.e.
Intelligent Hydel Solutions Private Limited, RMC Green Energy Private Limited, RMC Solar Park
Private Limited, RMC Solar One Private Limited. Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the notified accounting standard (AS-21) on consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects
with the Generally AcceptedAccounting Principles (GAAP) in India under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with the Accounting Standards issued by the National Advisory Committee on Accounting
Standards (NACAS) and The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Accounting policies
have been consistently applied by the company except where a newly issued Accounting
Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Standard required a change in accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
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could differ from these estimates. The company’s consolidated financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees, which is its functional currency and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Classification of assets and liabilities into Current / Non-current.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the

Company's/group companies normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the revised
Schedule 11l to the Act.

jiiy Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company/group companies have reclassified/regrouped/rearranged the previous year
figures, wherevernecessary, to make them comparable with revised schedule Il to the act
applicable for current year’s figures & groups.

iv) Assets and Depreciation

a) Property Plant & Equipment are stated at cost including attributable cost (net of GST
Creditavailed) of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

b) Depreciation on the assets has been provided as under:

e

1) Depreciation has been provided on the basis of useful lives of the tangible assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013byusing Straight-line method (SLM) of
depreciation.

2) Depreciation on intangible assets is provided in accordance with AS-26 over the period of 5
years.

3) Premium paid on Leasehold Landis amortized over the Lease term which is of 99 years.

4) Impairment of Tangible & Intangible Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the assets’ net selling price and its value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using weighted average cost of capital.

Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

v) Valuation of Inventory

Inventory of raw material, stores, spares, semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of FIFO/Weighted
Average Method. Inventory of rejected material is valued at cost or net realizable value

RMC Switchgear Limited s Page1ss
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whichever is lower. Work in process generally includes cost of direct material, labour cost and
other manufacturing overheads. Goods-in-Transit is valued at cost.

(vi) Income Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “Income Tax Act”).The Company
has opted to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, for the financial year 2024-25.
Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax and computed deferred tax
based on the ratei.e. @ 25.17 % (Tax Rate 22% Plus Surcharge Plus cess) prescribed in the said
section.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
timing differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to
the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws
and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set-off. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date for theirreliability.

vii) Liquidated Damages:

Liquidated damages are provided based on contractual terms when thedelivery/commissioning
dates of an individual project have exceeded or are likely to exceed the delivery/commissioning
dates as per the respective contract. This expenditure is expected to be incurred over the
respective contractual terms upto closure of the contract.

viii) Foreign Currency:

a) Transactions in Foreign Currency entered into by the Company are accounted at the Exchange
Rates prevailing the date of the transaction. Foreign Currency monetary items ofthecompany,
outstanding on the Balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. Non- monetary items
of the company are carried at historical costs.

b) Exchange Difference arising on settlement / restatement of short term foreign currencymonetary
assets & liabilities of the company are recognized as expense in the statement ofProfit& Loss or
capitalized if such differences pertain to creation of Fixed Assets.

b O Py

\_‘_:_'_ M
e
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ix) Revenue Recognition:

a) Sales Revenue is recognized when the risk and rewards of ownership are passed on to the
customers, which is generally on dispatch.

b) Revenue from turnkey contracts is recognized based on the stage of completion determined
with reference to the costs incurred on contracts and their estimated total costs. Provision for
foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on turnkey contracts is made on the basis of
technical assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be accounted for.

c) Price Escalation and other claims or variations in the contract work are included in contract
revenue only when:
i) Negotiations have reached to an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will

accept the claim: and
ii) The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer and can be measured reliably.

%) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the
date of consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses of
the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The difference between the actual
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized.

xi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are added to the cost of those assets as Pre-operative Expenses.All other borrowing costs are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Interest
Capitalized during the year is NIL (Previous year Rs. Nil/-)

xii) Employees Benefits:

a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Employees' own and Employer’s contribution to Provident Funds are contributed bycompany
monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to theEmployees’ Provident
Fund Organization, India and is charged to Profit and LossAccount on accrual basis.

b) Defined Benefits Plans:

Gratuity: The company/group companies provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan,
for its employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to the eligible employees at
retirement, death, while in employment, or on termination of employment or otherwise as per
the provisionsof the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The company/group companies account for
liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method carried out annually for assessing liability as at the balance sheet date.

RMC Switchgear Limited l Page 157



<RMLC>

BWITHEHBEARD LTO.

Safety And Valons | Voar Way |

xiii) Segment Reporting :

a) Primary Segment:

The company/group companies are engaged in "Switch Gear Engineering’ and 'EPC contracts
for power distribution / transmission sector’ which relate to one primary segment i.e. Power.

b) Secondary Segment:

The company/group companies operate predominantly within the geographical limits of India
and accordingly secondary segments have not been considered.

xiv) Deferred Revenue Expenditure:

Deferred Revenue Expenditure incurred is being written off over the period of 5 years

xv) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

During the financial year, the Holding company has allotted 2,18,500 equity shares on a
preferential basis on 06th December 2024 at an issue price of Rs. 687/- per share, aggregating
to a total consideration of Rs. 15,01,09,500 (Rupees Fifteen Crore One Lakh Nine Thousand
and Five Hundred only).

Further, the Holding company has allotted 25,000 equity shares under the Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme (ESPS), 2023 to eligible employees during the year.

Corresponding Figures of previous year have been reclassified/regrouped or rearranged to
make them comparable with the current year figures.

xvi)

xvii) Disclosures pursuant to Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Amount .

Outstanding MBI
Name of Person to whom loan Outstanding

— Purpose of Loan ason durhe the

€ 31/03/2025 €
year

LUMOS ADVISORS LLP Working Capital 25,00,000.00 | 55,00,000.00
AGARWAL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY | Working Capital 25,00,000.00 | 25,00,000.00
AMAN EXPORT INTERNATIONAL Working Capital 20,00,000.00 | 20,00,000.00
MAHAVEER PRATAP SHARMA Working Capital 10,00,000.00 | 10,00,000.00

D
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xvi) Other statutory information:

1.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies do not have any benami property, where any proceeding
has been initiated or pending against the Company/group companies for holding any benami

property.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual
Currency during the financial year.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security.or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Holding and subsidiary Companies have not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in
the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies have complied with the number of layers prescribed under
clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies are not declared willful defaulter by and bank or financial
institution or lender during the year.

The Holding and subsidiary Companies do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be
registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Summary of reconciliation of quarterly returns filed by the holding company with banks & books of
accounts:

'
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Trade Trade
Particulars Inventory Receivable Paybles Reason

As per books 1,510.00 6,900.00 2,119.00
30" June, As  mentioned
2024 As per returns 1,514.97 6,786.85 2,296.22 heiscnda

Oiffaiitice -4,97 113.15 -177.22

As per books 1,198.14 10,227.17 3,331.87
aoth
Sactiniied As mentioned
202 oo | Asperreturns | 1,195.18 | 10,437.17 | 3,165.08 hereunder

Diffarante 2.96 -210.00 166.79

As per books 1,4550.18 | 11,521.33 5,201.35
31 A tioned
Dacember, | Asperretums | 1457420| 1152138 | s2013s |73 . TOES e
2024 hereunder

-24, ) 0.

Difference oo 0.00 %

As per books 1,976.00 13,151.05 7,377.04
28thMarch, As  mentioned
2025 As per returns 1,958.95 13,147.23 7,364.09 Rl

Difference 17.05 3.82 12.95

The discrepancies are as a result of our practice of submitting statement on monthly basis within
15 days from the close of each month. These statements are necessary to ensure timely
submission while adhering to regularly deadlines. However, it is important to emphasize that
these discrepancies have not led to any undue advantage or access to excess credit facilities from
the banks. Our commitment to transparency and compliance remains steadfast.

used the borrowings from banks and financial
for which it was obtained.

10. The Holding and subsidiary Companies have
institutions for the specific purpose

11.The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and
capital work-in-progress are held in the name of the group companies as at the balance sheet
date.

12. The Holding and subsidiary Companies do not have any transactions with companies which are
struck off.
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13. Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) activities by holding company:

Profit before tax as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

Financial Year 2021-2022 34.43 Lacs

Financial Year 2022-2023 1698.11 Lacs

Financial Year 2023-2024 2142.00 Lacs

Total 3874.54 lacs

Average Profit before tax as per Section 135(5) of the Act 1291.51 Lacs

a) 2% of Average Profit to be spent for CSR_Activities 25.83 Lacs

b) CSR Expenditure incurred 29.15Lacs

c) Excess Amount spent for the Financial year 3.32 lacs

d) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of 0.77 lacs

the previous financial year, if any

e) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 4.09 lacs

f) Nature of CSR Activities Educational
purposes

g) Details of related party transaction Nil

h) Movement in Provision with respect liability incurred NA

For & on behalf of the Board of

As per our separate report of even date Directors
For Rakesh Ashok & Company RMC Switchgears Limited
Chartered Accountants W""d
FRN 011273C xﬂ*ﬂ\
: Ashok Kumar Agrawal
\W MAP e Chairman Cum Managing Director

/ .- ) (DIN: 00793152)
CAV. K. Gupta (i/, |

Partner E——r

Membership Number : 407189

UDIN: CEO cum ole Time Director
Place: Jaipur (DIN: D0793035)

Dated: 20th May, 2025
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__ NOTES TO COT\SDLI.DATED HN;\N(.IAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JI!T MARCH 2025

_|NOTE:2 | — 1 i s | = =
Share Capital | | | {Amount in Rs. Lacs
Farticulars
As At 31032025 As Ar 31.03.2024
= d Capit -l [ | B o
150,00,000 (Previous Year: 110.00,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- cach i 1,500,00 ~1,100,00
] Subscri 1 | = =
1,03,51,800 (Previous Year: 1,03,08,300) Equity shares of Rs 10/- cach Fully Paid up | ) 1,055.18 1,030.83
TOTAL ! I | 1,055.18 1,030.83
{i) Reconcilintion of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the cod of the reporting period :
e Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
Nos. of Shures Amouni Nos, of Shares Amaount
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 1,03,08300 | 1,030.83 | 68,72.200 687.22
| Add: Shares issued on_preferentinl_basis 218,500 | 2185 = -
Add: Allotment made under ESPS, 2023 25,000 250 = || =
| Add: Bonus Shares issued during theyear . 3,36,100 361
Dulu.t.m:dnm,ul the und of the Year | 1.05.51.800 1,055.18 1,03,08,300 1,030.83
| |
(if) Details of Shareholders halding more than 5 % equity shares : =
As At 31032028 As At 31,03.2024
= Fartiqurs Na of Shares o Holding No, of Shares Y Holding
| tw) T Ashok Kumar Agarwal B 3391980 | 1267% il i CBsae0 | 2302%
|| Akit Agarwal . 1023320  870% | 10,04,620 9.75%
(c) | Vitihal Das Agarwal (HUF) B ~7.50,900 7.12% == 7,540,900 7.28%
(d) Meha Agrawal 705,000 6.68% 7,05.000 6,84%
= (iii) | Terms and Rights aitached to equity shares
The Cowmpany bas unly ane class of equity nhuma having o face value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to ane vote per equity
share. A member shall not have any right to vote whilst any eall or other sum shall be due and payable to the Company in respect of any of the shares of
such member. All equity shares of the Company rank pari passu in all respects incloding the right to dividend, The dividend is recommended by the Board
of Directors and declared by the members at the ensuing Anual generl Meeting.
") [inthe financial year 2023-24 , the company allotied 3436100 Equity Shares as borus shares in the proportion of 1:2, i.c. 1{one) bonus equity share of
10/- ench for 2{twa) fully paid up equity shares,
2= ) Company doesn't have any holding or ultimate holding Cor R S -
{vi) __[Shure Holding of Promainrs are given Mwl : S . L
|
5.No. Promoter . As A131.03,2025 As At 31.03.2024 % Change
No. of Shares o Holding Nao. of Shares o Holding During The Year
{a) | Ashok Kumar Agarwal 2391980 _ 16T% 37380 23.02% 0.36%
(b) | Aukit Agarwal 1023320 9.70% 1004820 975% 0.05%
{e) | Vitthal Das Agnrwal (HLIF) 730900 7.12% 750900 1.28% L 0%
(d) | Neha Agrawal ~msoo | eas% 705000 esin —016%
(e} | Vitthal Dus Agarwal | 94800 0.90% C MB0D 0.92% i -0.02% ;
(f) | Avika e 52020 4% [ s2020 [ o | 0.01%
{g) | Ashok Kumar Agarwal(HUF) 319260 303% 319260 T ™%
{h) | Ankit Agarwal (HUF) 156000 1.48% 156000 1.51% -0.03%
NOTE:3 - g B i '
Reserves snd Surplis =i {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As Ar 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
| ()  Share Premium Account | [ | /e - ===
| Asper L ljl-t Financial Statements IF = = 1,192.50 1,536.11
.p\,dil Rﬂ:m\'ed during the year on preferential / ESPS issue | ! e 1,489.25 ﬂ.m
Less: Uscd for issuing Bonus Shares B - (343.61)
| ClosingBalanee [ | ) 2.681.75 1.192.50
(b) | Copital Reserve M | Il e T il :
As per Last Financial Stntements: i | e S—————
| Capital Investments Subsidy - State — 1 | e i_~l_..'gQ1 —P 14.50]
CLCS Subsidy-Central Government | | T {_ ) 15.00 15.00
| I | 29.50 29,50
| () | Retained Earnings ]| [ | o el il [
M per Last Financinl Sintements | N - [ 3,786 86 231874
| Add : Net Profit imnsferred from Stuement of Profit and Loss - e 3,145.24| L 48873
= b4yl (20.62)
==} e 693210 3,786.86
| Famre—NFN 9,643.35 5,005.86
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Nature and purpose of reserve - [
|
Retuined Earnings B
Retnined eamnings represents cumulative p profits of the company and effects of remensurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be utilised in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
Securities Premi 1IN —_ i - e
Securities premium was created on issuc of shares. This reserve is being utilised in sccordunce with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, . i
Capital | Ituen'e
The purpose for which n capital reserve is created 15 for prepm 2 the ¢ company for sudden events like inflation, business expansion, Govt Subsidy to be returned ete.
i (| —— G B . il
_ | NOTE: 4 !
Long Term Borrowings [ Amount in s Lacs)
eul As At 11.03.2028 As At 31032024
rare g Non Current Current Non Current Current
} = i [
I | Term Lonns from Banks —
& A. Secured | iy =
Punjab National Bank (GECL) | = S - $9.30 . N 20.97
| The Federal Bank Lud (GECL) o = 0.00 0.00| 0.00) 15.60
Vehicle Loans S - _ ¥63 2011 1.712 .96
5 B. Unsecured __i_ ___ == = ___-______ = = = =
From banks | — 0.00 N 0.70 T
1 [ I l - [
IL| Term Loans fram Others o a o =
| A Secured ] o ] I ] =
From SIDBI_ == 1441.98) 44340 57045 140.00
Vehicle Loans 76,03 71.75 0.00 0,00
— o
B. Unsecured ) . __ o | | n
From Aditya Birla Finance Lid | 0.00| oo| 350,85 26.78|
From Other NBFCs 0.00} 000] 0.00] 79.67
111, Other Loans & Advances = ) =y g
A From Directors = 627 0.00 36869 0.00
B. Inter-Corporate Depaosits = o - 15.00 oool 187.68 0.00
TOTAL I 1,631.50 53126 1,573.99 201
| ] A S | I -
| A | Nuture of Securities: | = 3
L GECL from PNB and_The Federal Bank Ltd, |
Secured by way of first charge on the fixed ngsets of the compaiy, both present and future, ., situated at Tehsil Chaksy, Jarpur and personal guarantces of]
Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Ankit Agarwal and Neha Agarwal, Directors of The Company, The loan is also secured by collateral security of immovable
properties located at Plot No, B-11(B&C), Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur and Khasra No, 157, 163 & 164, Village Badodiya, Chaksu Tnipur (owned
by company/ Shei Ankit Agarwal - Director), Apartment ne. 1302, type 3 BHK-Sky Villa on |3th Floor in wing no.l i The Crest’ situated ot Airport
Enclove Scheme, Tonk Road, Durgapura, Jnipur (owned by Mrs Neha Agarwal) ond Plot No, B4 & 85, Aminit Nogar, Tnipur {owned by Shri Anlai
Agarwal, Director) on pani-passu basis with The Federal Bank Ltd. , Punjab Narional Bank, Canara Hank.
=] 1. | SIDBI Loan- Plant and Machinery | — I ] = g
Lonn is secured by way of first charge in the shape of hypothecation on the plant and machinery  beught out of the term loon disbursed and further)
secured by lien on the “Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs. 16911 Lacs plus accrued interest thereon and the personal gunraniees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
(and Ankit Agnrwal and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,
] [— | S
| | mL_ | SIDBI Loan- Solar Plant ] ] [ =1
|
Loun is secured by way of first charge in the shape hypothecation on the plant and machinery to be bought out of the term loan disbursed und further|
\secured by lien on the "Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs. 66 Lacs plus scerued interest thereon and the personal gunrantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwall
‘and Ankat Agarenl and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Compary,
W | SIDBI Losn-Solar Plane | l | — !_
Loan is secured by way of first charge in the shope hypothecation on the plant and machinery 1o be bought out of the term loan disbursed and further|
secured by lien on the ‘Fixed Deposits’ amounting Bs. 123,30 Loes plus acorued imterest thereon and (he personal guamniees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
and Ankit Agarwal and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,
i ¥. | SIDBI Loan- Plant and Machinery | N [
Loan is secured by way of first charge in the shape hypothecation on the plant and machinery 1o be bought out of the tem loan disbursed and further|
secured by lien on the "Fixed Deposits’ amounting Rs.219.11 Lacs plus accrued interest thereon and the personal gusmniees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal
| mnd Ankit Agarwnl and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of Company,
VL | SIDBI Loan- 225 Cr, = el E e 3
Loan is secured by way of first charge in the shape hypothecation an the plant and machinery, equipment, tools, spares accessories and all other assers off
the Bomrower which have been or proposed 1o be acquired under the project/scheime and further secured by lien on the “Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs,
321 Lacs plus sccrued interest thereon and the personal guarantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal and Ankit Agarwal and Smt. Neha Agurwal, Directors of|
Company, 2 AEHG
1=
_ . i TS
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VIl | SIDBI Loan- 10.70 Cr. |
|Loan is secured by way of first charge in the lhnpc hypoth-,-mun on the plnm and machinery, |:qu1pm=u, tools, spares accessorics and all othier assets ets off
|the Borrower which have becn or proposed to be acquired under the project/scheme and further secured by lien on the ‘Fixed Deposits' amounting Rs
1321 Laes plus accrued interest thereon and the personal guarantees of Ashok Kumar Agarwal and Ankit Agarwal and Smi. Neha Agarwal, Directors of|
Cmpm:y
e VIIL | Vehicles loans | | i} =
) | Vehicle loans are secured by hypotheeation of the respective vehicle, —— = |
| IX. | Punjab National Bank- Term Loan for Plant & Machinery | | L
= mearplauu & nmhm:rymu:umdbyhypuhnnmunumw respective machinery created lhm the loan. | N
= X. Adityn Birla Finance Lid, | i I =
B | Loans are secured by way of Equitable mortgage of immovable pmpﬂwilonsl 10 director of the cnmpln}'. ——
|
“|(B) | Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans: | o !
1 - Secured Term Loans | |
Particulars As Ar 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024 Terms of Repayment
i L SIDBI- Solar Loan 122.04 159.60| Repayment 1o be made aver 60 equal instalments beginning from 10/06/2023
having interest raie of 2. 1% over Repo rate. Current effective inferest rate is 8.6%
o 0] SIDBI- Plant and 124 36) 117.76| Repayment (o be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 10/09/2023
Machinery having interest rate of 2,1% over Repo rate. Current effective interest rate is 8.60%
nL. SIDBI- Solar Loan 119,22 133.10] Repayment to be made over 54 equal insialments beginning from |0/082024
having interest rate of 2% over Repo rate. Current ffective interest mite is 8.50%
w. SIDBI- Plant nnd 260,80 300.00] Repayment to be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 10/09/2024
Machinery having interest raie of 0.65% above MCLR. Cumrent effective interest rate is
§.85%
V. SIDAL- Plant and 225,00 0.00] Repayment to be made over 54 equal insialments begimning from 10/0%/2025
Mauchinery having interest rate of 0.60% above MCLR. Current effective inferest mie is
B.55%
VL SIDBI- Plant and 1,029 .96 0.00| Repayment to be made over 54 equal instalments beginning from 10/01/2025
Machinery liaving interest rate of 0.65% above MCULR. Current effective interest mic is 8,3%
VIL GECL from Punjab .00 31.67] Repayable i 48 Monthly Instalments §@ RLLR + 0.85% subject to mmximum of
National Bank- | 9.25% commencing from Ociober, 2021, Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
e GECL from Punjab 93,89 153.19] Repayable in 48 Maonthly Instolments @ RLLR + 0.85% subject to maximum of
VIIL  [National Bank- 11 9,25% commencing from November, 2023
GECL fram The 0.00 15.60( Repayable in 36 Equated Monthly Instaliments of Re.319163/- @ Repo Rate +
X Federnl Bank Lid. 5,25% subject to maximum of 9.25% p.a. commencing from Seplember, 2021,
Fully repaid during the FY 2024-2%
-2 _ﬂmll-ﬂd Term I.ﬂl-l'll = == || -
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As Ar 3103.2024 Terms of Repayment
11 i I Adityn Birla Finanee 0.00 377.63| Repayment to be made over 191 equal instalments beginning from 15/02/2023
Lid. having interest mte of 11.80%. Personal guaraniees furnished by directors. Fully
repaid during the FY 2024.25
i n Loans from other 0.00 79.67| Repayable in instalments varying from 12 months to 36 months and interest rte
N NBFCs @ 14% 1o 18%. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
1L Loan from Directors 627 368.69| Louns from directors received in capacity of Promoter Contribution without
specific terms & conditions. However the company has unconditional right to defier
the payment as and when demanded for n period exceeding 12 months.
w Inter-Corporate 15.00 187.68| The company has unconditional right to dafer the payment as snd when demanded
Deposits for a period exceeding 12 monihs
IDFC First Bank Lid 0,00 1.41| Repayable in 36 Equated Monthly Instalments of Rs. 24065/~ each commiencing
S {Under GECL) from Oct. 2021 (@ 9.25% p.a. First 12 months only interest to be paid. 30
Instaliment has been paid as on 3151 March, 2024, Stands fully repaid as on
31032025
Axis Bank Lid. 070 £.35] Repayable in 36 Equates Monthly Instalments (@ 16% commencing from May,
b 2022,
i 0.00 1.92] Repayuble in 24 Equated Monihly Instalments @ 15% commencing from May,
vi ICIC! Bank Ltd. 2022 Fully repnid during the FY 2024-25
i [DFC First Bunk (.00 2291 | Repayment in 24 Graded Monthly Instalments of Rs. 245458/~ commencing from
v Limited February, 2023 (@ 15.25% pa. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
= Unity Small Finance 0,00 23,36 Repayment in 24 Graded Monthly Instalments of Rs.252156/- commencing from
IX Bank Limited February, 2023 @ 17% pa. Fully repaid during the FY 2024-25
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|
1 (L

Cash Credit Limits under the consortium ama

3 | Vehicle Loans | |
o
Particulars As Ar 3032025 As Ar 3032024 Terms of Repayment
B L Car Loan from Axis S 0.g0| Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instalments of Rs, 88896/~ each @ 9.15% pa.
L Bank Ltd. ' D instalments have been re-paid in full as on 3151 March, 2025
Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instalments of Rs, 16438/ each @ 9.15% p.a.
u Car Loan from 0.00 2.46|¥ installments have been re-paid in full as on 315t March, 2024, Fully repaid
ICICI Bank Ltd. during the FY 2024-25
Carl Som Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 71720/~ each (@ 8.50% p.a.
A SR 6l Monthly Install id 3 2024,
m HDFC Bank Lid 1 9.22|60 Monthly Installments have been paid as on 315t March,
Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 41665/~ cach @ 9% p.a. 3
v Car Loan from 1927 0.00 Manthly Installments have been paid as on 3 1st March, 2024,
i HDFC Bank Ltd =11 . '
Repayable in 36 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 79499/~ each @ 10.88% p.a.
v Car Loan from Bank 2124 0,006 Menthly Insiallments have been paid as on 31st March, 2025.
of Barodn
=i Car Loan from Repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Installments of Rs. 133170/~ each @ 10.25%
Mercedes Benz p.a. 2 Monthly Installments have been paid as on 31st March, 2025.
VL j : 8378 0.00
Financial Service
) - India Pvi. Lid
noress il e — = —— 5
Long Term Provisions | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 3032025 As At 31.03.2024
__| Provision for Emplayee benefits i - 76.76 #8.90
TOTAL 76.76) H8.90
—— = =
| Short Term Bli_ﬂ‘owilll! e S I 2 = (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31,03,2025 As At 31.03.2024
[ Losns cepayable on demand: | e
(a) | Cash Credit_from banks (Secured -See note | & 11} 1L R
| 0| TheFedemlBankled| e A 0.00 460,33
if) | Punjab National Bank L R - _l.:ﬂl'ﬂ 2,062.84
= | it | Canara Bank [ — 1,680.17 .00
v (b) | Curvent maturitics of Long Term Borrowings: __'__ - i = e
B = _i) | Term Loans from Banks (Sce Note No. 4 under the Long Term Bomowings) il [ 80.11 173,77
i) | Term Loans from Others (See Note No. 4 under the Long Term Bomowings)) _451.15| 24645
1 (o) | Fromothers (Unseeured) e T - waall 41581
i = = _l— =
TOTAL | 4,233.08 3 A18.90
!l!’g_llc:_ As on 31/03/2025, The Federal Bank an/ice I::_E]Llﬂ!_r!_ﬂﬂﬂll a dehit balance and is therefore not included under short-term borrowires il
I, S g —— |
Nature of Securities: it

ngements qmunEﬂ_ Punjab National Bank, Canarn Bank and The Federal Bank Lul. ore Pfil;l'ﬂ_!'
secured by way of first pari pussu charge on Raw Material, Work-in Progress, Stocks, Finished Good, book debts and entire other Current Assets ol the
I Company's on Pari-Passu with consortium Banks (Present & Future)

|Cash Credit Limits are further  collaterally secured by pan passy charge by creating equitable morgage of immovable properties located  at Plot No
|B-11(B&C), Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur and Khasra No.157, 163 & 164, Village Badodiya, Chaksu Jaipur (owned by coimpany), Apartment no, 1302,
type 3 BHK-Sky Vills on 13th Floor in wing no.1 in “The Crest’ situsted at Airport Enclave Scheme, Tonk Road, Durgapura, Jaipur {owned by Mrs Neha
| Agarwal) and Plot No. 84 & 85, Amrit Magar, Jaipur (owned by Shri Ankit Agarwal, Director) cn pari-passu basis with - cansortium members.

NOTE :7 | [ ——] | | (e et =|
1 O R | S [ === = = i —— .
Trade Payable | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
5| n) | Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | I B 0.00 181.24
e b Others JUL I PR || — I [ 7.583.87 1,730.30
|1 il I ES— [ W — =
TOTAL = 758387 1.911.53
] —— T — e P T o WL
| [Ageing Analysis as on 31.03.2028 ] {Amouni in Rs. Lucs)
|} Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Purticulars Less than | year 1-2 years -3 years More than 3 years Total Outstanding
| | i IMSME | === 000 ___ Dbpo 0.00 0.001, 0.00
i |Others | S=E S 7,531.58 5119 _bool L 7,583.87)
i |Disputed Dues- MSME 0.00 = 0.00 0. _0.00 oo
4] 39 D_L!plllll!d Du:f_- Others 0.00 0.00 0,00 0,040 01,04}
l Toial| 7.531.58 5129 0,04 .00 T.583.87
| | | |
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eing Analysis as on 31.03.2024 | | i i (Amount in Rs. Lacs})
] Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | year 1-2 years 2- yeurs More than 3 yeurs Total Quistanding
| i |MSME 181.24 0,04 0.00 0.00 181.24
il [Others _ 1,730.30 0.00 0.00 0,00 1,730.30)
| i |Disputed Dues- MSME 0.00 0.00) a.00] 0,00 0,00
iv_|Disputed Dues- Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 1,211.53 - - - 1,911.53
] 8 ) I | ] .
Other Current Liabilities | | (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At J1.03.2025 As A1 31.03.2024
) | Advance from Customers = 28.99 146.44
|_b} | Sundry Creditors-others and Provisions e = - 1,947.69] 777.79)
c) | Satutory & Other Linbilities B ) - 152.01] 343.21
TOTAL 2,128.70 1,267.45
NOTE: 9 0 i == i ]
| Short Term Provisions | [ (Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
| (a) | Provision for Expenses B ) 39,36 73474
_| (1) | Provision for lncome Tax i = 280,75 16935
| (&) | Provision for Interest Accrued but not due gl = = 4.0 7.58)
TOTAL 324.20| 1,00 1.68
| == | | B .
1 = ' [ .
NOTE: 11 - - | ST N - B
| Lang Term Loans and Advances | | | _ (Amount in Rs. Lacs
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As A1 31.03.2024
[ (Unseoured, considered good) LI Y |
| _ta) | Capital Advances - 655.78 12.68
TOTAL 655.78 1268
| e ol [ el =e=er
| NOTE: 12 0 S . | o= =
| Other Non - Current Assets ' {(Amount in Rs. Lucs)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
(Unscoured, cansidered good) ] e L N oW ] ]
[ (@) | SecurityDeposits | i [ _ — aan| 2240
(b) | Deferred Revenue Expenditure - o T —— = - _—= 0.00 12.58
I Prelimiary Expenses & Prepaid Expenses | = 7.60 0.06|
| (d) Fixed Deposits (including Accrued but not due Interest) B - o 468.63 217.76
(Bank deposits are earmarked against Bank Guarantees/Letier of Credits furmished 1o
E customers/supplicts) . -
TOTAL | 749.42 15280
|
 NOTE:1} ! , e e e ————
luventories | | _(Amoant in Rs. Lacs)|
Particulars As At 3032015 As Ay 31,03.2024
i T | Ruw Materials (including bought out items) S A A 012.94]° 72092
(b) ._R.n.w Muaterials - Goods In Transit " = - _ 499.88 __0.00
(e) | Workin Progress — I R - - .. | B 22631
) Finished Gooda{including Scrap} N I_ T 43.89
e} Stores & spures (including packing material) 124 89 3808
| ToTAL 1,010.33 1029.19
fmoresw | T — = | = B
Trade Receivables (Amount in Ra. Lacs)
Particulars As At 31,03.2025 As At 3032024
| (Unseoured) | 1 o . ] — 1
(a) Current - Outstanding for less than 6 months B - 1123280 5.969.12
(b) Others | ! o e _ 360435] 3,188 33
Less: Provision for impairment of debrors = 9.84 984
| ToTAL 1 | 14.827.32 9,147.62
i
|
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Mu.gdnnlph as on 31032025 |

iAmumlln Rs. Laes)

Outstanding for following perinds from due date of paymient

Particulars | Less Than 6 Months
{including mot due)

More than 3 years

Total

i) |Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
congidered

pood

11.232.90

0.00

14,738.79

i) |Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
considered
doubtful

i) |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
good

8E.53

iv) |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
doubtful

984

uﬁ'

Total

11,232.90

98.36/

14,837.16

Ageing Analysis as on 31.03.2024

{Amount in Rs_Lacs

r following periods from due date of payment

Particulurs | Less Than 6 Months
(including not due)

Maore than 3 years

Tatml

] Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
considencd
good

5969.12

195

9,059.00

i) |Undisputed
Trade
receivables -
considered
doubtful

i) |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered

good

B8.53

i) |Disputed
Trade
Receivables-
considered
doubtful

9.84

9.84

Total

5,969.12

10031

9,157.45

E:lS |

| Cash and Cash Equivalents

{Amouni in Rs. Lacs)

As At 31.03.2025

As AL31L03.2024

& () | Cash In Hand

{b) | Cheques In Hand

(e} | Balunces with Banks:

~|[ToTAL |

i) In Current Accounts/ CC Accounts (Debit Balances) |
i) Fixed Depaosits (including Accrued but not due Inierest) |

{Bank deponits are earmarked ngainst_Bank Guarnntees/Letter of Credits fumnished 1o customers/supplicrs)
e i it Ly MEURH : ! :

90.81
10.00

25.53

006
172.33

97430

207.93
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NOTE ; 16 | - E = .
Short Term Loans nmd Advances {Amount in Rs. Laci)
Particulars As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024

| (Uinsesured, considered good) | [ =

(a) | Advances Recoverable in CoslvKind or value to be received i L6863 310.90

(b) | Prepaid Expenses _ iy = a0 31910/

(¢} | Other Loans & Advances —— - - 80.26 143.52

TOTAL =] 1,559.44 773.52

| - ' -
NOTE:17 . ol e = i 3
Other Current Asscts ] | {Amount in Rs. Laes)
Particulars As AL 31032025 As At 31.03.2024
{Unaccurcd, considered good) | | : I
(a) | GST paid on advance and ITC available | fe == | 2123 149.24

| (b) | Security Deposits i = , — B oo 97696 279.63
| (e) | Fixed Deposits (including Acerued but not due Interest) r ) N 1.184.56 906.51
|| (Bank deposits sre earmarked against Bank G iLetter of Credits_fumished to customers/suppliers)

TOTAL I 2,373.86 1.335.39

| | | ]
— \
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£ : 18
| Revenue From Operations {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(n) | Sale of Products ol ] | g a | (= T
| Product Sales ' i 3 16,605.80 9,527.08
Sale of Serap . 1] || R B D | . 124.97
(b) | Sale of Services [ B -l )
Works Contract Sl:n'll.'cs | 20,773.15 10,687.68
! - ! 37.526.85 20.339.73
Less: GST | 5,710,82 3,076.63
Revenue From Operations (Net of GST) 31,816.03 17,263.10
i I — £ _Be=g, - ]
. .'. g - - I- —_— — | —_ -
Other Income | | {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
BanRiatE 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
a) | Interestearned - 107.99 75.04
b) lenl Income | 3.56 3.56
¢) | Foreign Exchange Fluctuation = SrE = 7.64 4.37
d) | Profit On Sale OF used vehicles | 7.26 0.00
TOTAL 126,44 82.97)
| i
| NOTE:20 - | E .
Cost of Materials Consumed | (Amount in Bs. Lacs)
Particalars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening Stock e - | —— 72082 44511
_|Add: : Purchases{Net ul’Rr.-l.urnsJ i - ) — 22557.53] 9719232
- __.»_ﬁqj_d Freight and Cariage Inward N - 1 - 83,01 59.12
| N | | [— 23,363.46) _ 10.296.44
Less: Closing Stock | 1,012.94 720.92
TOTAL 22,350.52 9,575.53
A0 T — = = | — e 1 N }
NOTE : 2 | - {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Value of im[mrtr.-d 1 and | lndiggnnns Raw materinl Consumed and their per p:n:en.lng: L0) L’ou!umpllnn 3
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
RATOIeLY 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
2) Value of Imparted and Indigenous Raw
|Materials Consumed during the year : L | )
Imported al - |value Re. - a -
. _ ikl |Percentage i = 0.00% C 000%
Indigenous Value 35052 9,575.53
Percentage il B 100.00% ~ 100.00%
i 22,350.52 9,575.53
oTE:a Byt e 5 ] ===
i ‘Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods & Work in Progress (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
TRt 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
_|Opening Inventory |Wnrk In Progress | 22631] N 254.08
o o B I-tmshud ed Goods | 43 89 132.87
o °F .1 . 270,19 386.94
(Closing Inventory i P E N )
Work In Progress | 25394 22631
s D Finished Goods - 118,68 43.89
37162 270.19
CHANGE IN INVENTORY (102.43) 116.75
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NOTE ; 22

Employee Benefits Expenses

{Amount in Rs. Locs)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
P 31,03.2025 31.03.2024
| ) [Salary, Wages, Allowances and Stipend 1,265.80 803.20
b} | Directors’ Remuneration 2 256, CH] 195,00
| ) |Contribution to Provident Fund /ESI i - B _Dﬂ [T 6,24
d)  |Labour & StalT Welfare Expenses i 10,09 i 21.55
| € surr Transportation E.xpens:s 17.07 12 86
f) |Provision/ (Reversal) of Gratuity based on Actuarial Valuation (12.13) 54.00
TOTAL 1,546.71 1.092.86
| |
| NOTE:23 - R [ P N i
Finance Costs | {Amount in Rs. Locs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Farkin 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| m) [Interest Expense - B g ol 67960 678.83
| b) |Other Borrowing Costs 1 - - 192.38 185.36
|
TOTAL 871.98 864.19
1 | : i SR =
| INOTE:24 : B S S | ==
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Barticilers For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
- a) | Depreciation on Property, Plant & Machinery | B - 3 266.97
| | b) |Depreciation on Intangible Assels o 1 126) 126
| | _© |Amortisation of Intangible Assets- Deflered Revenue Expenditure 12.58 14.30
TOTAL 311.21 282.54
I
_|NOTE:2S ] — __ - 1 - i
Other Expenses (Amount in Rs. Lacs
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
BRI 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| Auditors' Remuneration - 438 3n
_|Conveyance Expenses - = == _ | [ — — 425 1229
~ |CSR Expenses = - B 29.15 1245
| Discount N | = e - - 38.83
| |Insurance Expenses T i [ = . 39670 43.04
~ |Job Work Charges 0 . ) 63653 191.26
__ |Loading, Unlaadmg& Lnbm:r Charges —w — 60091 38, 05
_|Commission based on Profit_to Independent Director o 1 - = - 2632
I quuldnl.ed Damnges (Net} B I ) == 4260 - 30540
Miscellaneous Expenses 117.40 68,55
Packing | Material Consurruad - ) 4350 13
|Postage & Courier Expcnses - ) A 1.34
|Power & Fuel - R ) 191.61 170.11
Provision lhrampmrnwm in Debtors | B 0.00 934
~ |Printing & Stationery o N . 335 3 2’9
| |Professional, Consultancy & Legal Ehuges e _— B 26 220,74
Wi R:gmlrﬂtn_igl_l_(__‘gm'gzs - = B - 36.30 B -
Manpower Supply Serviee —_— 1.99 N -
__ |Hydrology Survey Charges =i — B 075 o -
_|Rates and Taxes N s e _2509] ?5 lﬁ
~ |Rent - - ) . 157.26 11582
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses - = e — I A -
u) Plant & Machinery. - [ 1 _Isa 5841
| b) Building Ly N - 62.25 59.08
) Others - I - s 4104
Stores, Spares ¢ & Ancassnn:s Consumed B B 2N 227.69
Selling and Distribution expenses. | (T 434,24 = 500.06
| [Donation Expenses | 1.27 071
Sundry Balance Written OfF o | L 15.51 _ 59543
E Tell.‘:phcm: & Internet Expenses 1 il 225 3.09
|Tour & vaellly._g:naes B | _101.97 76.11
Type-Testing Expenses . I 472 2438
Vehicle Upkeep Expenses 8.71 2.27
TOTAL 2.603,73 3,063.61
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Value of Impnrud and lndlgmuus Stores & Spares Consumed and their percenmge 1o cnnxnmphun '

| . . I S| T s AL
NOTE : 25.1 {(Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
(A) | Auditors’ Remuneration (Net of GST Input Credit) 31032025 L5200
i) As Auditor el | =T = 385 T
i) For Certification | 0.53 023
TOTAL | 4.38 3.73
|
hOTE 252 - B " (Amount in Rs. Lacs)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
e 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) | Value of Imported and indigenous Stores & SFIII'B Consumed and their percentage (o g 3
_I_mp-nrlcd Value Rs. = e | SRS -
i Pcrcrnmge | - = -
[ Indigenous Value i Y. 27439 227.69
| | Percentoge 100.00% 100.00%
274.39 227.69|
= Lo e e — s D .
N :26 e - SR | Il I B | .
Related Party Transactions |
Related Party Disclosures as required by AS-18 are siw_.-_T below: il I I
Name of the reluted parties and nature of relutionships @ |
a) | Companies / firms with whom transactions have tuken place MNature of Relationship
| ) Synergy Solar System ! —= Proprietorship firm of Mrs. Neha Agarwal, Whole-lime Director
| ii) Acme Metawires Private Lid. 3 | Son-in-law of Chairman cum Managing Director is is director
Cm iii) How Sweet | I | Proprietorship firm of daughter of Chairman cum Managing Director
by | K:! Ma tgemtﬂt t Personnel ] B . T
| D Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, i Chmnp_s_r_:£l_:_m Mnnagmg Director S .|
ii) Mr. Ankit Agarwal W CEOQ Cum Whole Time Director .
iii) Mrs. Neha Agnrwal B Whaole Time Director e = O P
iv) Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain | | NuwF*:acm_s_v_e_l‘JEIEr____
I vi) Mr Anand Chaturvedi | Chiefl Finance Officer {wel 01/ a‘ﬂel-"’ﬂl-l tl.'rl_ﬁ.fﬁﬂ-‘_[l?é)
o vii) Mrs. Anuradha Chaturvedi B [ B Relotive of Mr. Anand Chaturvedi- CFO -KMP (wef 01/04/22024 1o
| vii) Ms. Shivi Kapoor S :_ Company mpany Secretary cum Compliance Officer (During from 14/08/2023
viii) Mr. Pushpendra Singh Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer (Continuing o from
¢) | Non-executive Direclors — N || 1] - -
i) Mr. Shriram Vishwasro Mane o Independent Director B —
|} Ms Krati Agarwal — 3 | Independent Director b =
i) Late Mr. Kuljit Singh Papls _Independent Director (w.e £ ISID?IZU”4 o I&‘MH Date of his
iii) Mr. I.-{u!deep Kumar Gupia Independent Director [

The following transactions were carried out / n_utstamliing wilh related parllies in the ordinary course of business with

(Amm.ml in Rs Lacs)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
SRrim 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| |Eavments e el == E
| Details af| :mn:aw Companies ;:.‘?rms with whom frc.rm-:ic.'mm have mkn: place | I )
| Purchases S N il 4802 12901
Job Work ; - - N i I = 836
Details of transactions with Key Management Personnel as mentioned in (b) above are as R i I
| Remuneration to Executive Directors/ Non-executive Director kS i 256,00 195.00
Rmuncrnu_m_gqllpdcpendnnt Director SNt N - k- 2632
= | Remuneration to Key Management Persons | i 42,18 5.00
Rent_payment . : ey T _ nwl 73.20
J Interest payment T 15.91 233
| Details of transactions with Relatives of Key Mma.gm‘m!nl Personnel as mentioned in () NI N
Manpower Arrangement Charges | — S 600 -
o Receipls Rl . ) |
| Derails of transactions Wlh‘l_(_,_ﬂﬂ!pﬂ]lfﬂ .r_j'mr: with nhum .'ramacrmus have lnkzrlpimr - - | [ e ]
Rent Rcce:p(s — — = _ 3.56 3.56
Balance oulslandmg at the end nl‘_permd.-yenr . ol . ' ol
. Unsecurrd Loans from Directors [ ) o . 6271 36869
| Receivables ns at the yearend | ol - 6437 10939
| Payable os at the year end 26.93 27.24
!
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NOTE :

27

Disclosure Under Accounting Standard - 7 (Revised) " Construction Contracis”

(Amount in Lacs)

For the Year Ended For the Yenr Ended
Parbidiiare 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
{a) (i) Contract Revenue recognized during the year 20,773.15 10,687.68

{ii) Method used to determine the contract revenue recognized and the stage of campletion

(b) Disclosure in respect of contracts in progress as at the year end -

_[Refer Note 1{(ix}(b))

[Refer Note 1({ix)(b)]

. ; . . Included uoder various | Included under various
(i) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognized profits (less recognized losses) cast and expenses head |cost and expenses head
- of accounts |of accounts
(i) kdwnc:s received, outstanding ) =1 -
{iii) Retentions receivable | D 860,53 159,54
(iv) Amount due from custumcrs (included umicr Note 15 Trade Rcm:wnhies 9.895.19] 6,862,08
(¥) Amount dug to customers - -
i =l i -
NOTE : 28 N B
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Exsielare 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
' o i == == S
() | Goods and Service Tax matters pending ‘with First Appellate Authority(Net L of Pre-deposit) 76.33 27.96
| _(b) |Pending Litigation against lhe company | - | 520
{c) | Duty on export obligation under EPCG Scheme on the uhhganan yet to be fulfilled - 67.07
Total 76.33 100,23
CNotei — 8
Enrnings Per Share ; T_ {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
rasteulem 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) are computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “Eamings Per Share™
| @) | Weighted Average Equity Shares outstanding at year end — 1,03,82.810| | ,03,08,300
[ | b) | Profit for Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share B - | 314623 1.488.72
) Eum}gg&_gcr Share (Basie) - | . 30.30 1444
| _d) | Eamings Per Share (Diluted) e T = 8 30.30 14.44
¢) | Face Value per Share | | 10.00 10.00
| - R o= ==
NO’I’E 30 I
Dhﬂmurﬁ s:m:lﬂul by MSMED Act, 2006 s, |

Micro & Small enterprises as defined under the Micro . Small and Medium l:mcrpns:s Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been identified by the

Particalars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
[ | Principal mmount due and remaining unpaid | ) S | . = = 181,24
| Interest due on above and the unpaid interest | 1 i = - _
| | Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act [ i = - L . =
| Amount of payments made to supplier beyond the appnmwd day _ i - L
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payment | made be}nnd the - = _| -
~ | Amount of Interest sccrued and remaining unpaid - e
Amount nl‘ I‘urlher interest mmmnlng due and payable in succeeding years for lhe purpose - x
/ Total . 0.00 181.24
NOTE : 31 ) i B |
| ci¥ \'alne of Imports, Expenditures and Earu!ugs in I-un.-ngn Currency = =il (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Pty 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
~ (n) | Raw Materials el ] BB = o -
(&) [Copital Goods | 1 N _ 36349 |
(c) E.lecndllul‘l: in Foreign Currency i i N 0471 D14
(d) | Earnings in Foreign Currency . — 9331 170,73
Taotal 459.26 170.87
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|
~ |NOTE:32 i .y _= . N
Deferred Taxation [See Note 1(vi)} (Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Eatievian 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| Deferred Tax Liabilities = o e
a) Mcumu]ﬂtnd Dcpa'cciation 91883 §90.83
b | Deferred Revenue Expenses claimed as deducnon in Income Tax but deferred in m:cnun:s - 12.58
i LN ! ! 918.83 90341
Dcftrrtd Tl;auseu e | e ] 2 N ) 2
a) | Expenses allownble for tax purposes on Payment Basis . 76.76] 88.90
b) | Short Term Capital Loss hrought forward | - 4.83 - 483
¢) | Provision for Impairment of receivables _' g - : = B 9.84 9.84
) o =i = { 91.43 103.56
Net Deferred Tax Linbility | - = _ 827.40] 79985
Tax Liability on_Net DTL = | 208.17] 201.24

NOTE: 33 .
loyee B
A Defined Caontribution Plans K ==
| “The amount rcougmzud 15 an expense for defined contribution plans are as under: {Amount in_Rs. Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Bartoainty 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Provident Fund | = will, = 7.26 4.59
Employee State Insurance | 226 | .65

B. | Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity)
Valuation in respect of Gratuity has been l:nmcur.l out by independent uclumy us ot the Balance Sheet date. The details of the same are given as

(i) | Assumptions: ) N ) ] -
| (a) | Discount Rate (Per Annum) b= S B ﬁ.‘_-’S‘_'#& ]  1.25%
{b) | Rate of increase in compensation level = 10.00% 10.00%)
(e} | Rate of return on Plan Assets [ e )
{4 i Eupe:ted Avernge remaining wnrhng_ln:s af umplnyaes in 1. ul'ymrs _— o 21200 2390
_{lj]_ Changes in the present Value of Obligation: | S [ — B ]
{n) | Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the year e | 85.89 3573
(b) | InterestCost 1 | e —_— 644 268
(e) | Current Service Cost o | ) ) ) = . 487 ) 1225
(@) | Actuarial (GainyLoss o == @) 39.07
| (e) | Benefits Paid ‘ il | Tm— - (0.84)
(f} Present value of the ol:ﬂlgmun at the end of the year [ o B 76.76 ) 88.89
HBEE Amount recognized )| . - i 1 e—— =
| (@) | Present Value of Obligation as at it year end | g I 676 8889
|| (b) | Fair value of Plan Asscts us atyearend | L = ] -
(¢) | Net (Assety/Liability recognized v - 1 88.89
(iv) | Expenses recognized = Y |
(n) | Current Service Cost - - D | o 4.87 12.25
_(b) | Interest Cost = | —— i 6.44 268
(c) | Net actuarial {Gainp‘lnss (23.45) 19 o7
(d) | Expense(Gain) for the year which has been accounted in Profit & Loss Alc (12.13) 5400
e - S| [Ne— S| | — — =
NOTE : 34 [ '1
hdliitimml Inrormatinn as required by p paragr-pl: 2 ur the :mtral inntru:iiuns I‘nr pupnrntlons af consulillntad financinl stnleau-u ™ Sl:hedule
R [ | _ | {Amouui in Rs. th!-:tl
NAME OF ENTITY Net Assets i.e 'i:ﬂlll .Aul.'ls minus Total Share In Profit or (lnss)
Linbilities
| Holding Company
B RMC Switchgears Ltd 10,695.16 91.88%| 314079 C 9983%
Indian Suhsldiiry Companies a o
RMC Green Energy Private Limited 912.87 7.84% B ¥ 0.09%
" RMC Solar Park Private Limited 1261 0.11% 258] 0.08%
o il RMC Solar One Private Limited = I L 0.00 0.00%|
Intelligent Hydel Solutions Pyt Lid i 906| 0.09%)| .02y T 0.00%)
|
| TOTAL Y 11,640.60 100.00% 3,146.23 100,00%
t -
|
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| _ 0 —
As per our separate report of even date = i e ~ |For & on hehalf of the Board of Directors
_For Rakesh Ashok & Company ) N ch Switchgears Limited
Chartered Accountanis I | i J l ===
FRN 011273C -
I v R ) o Tl _Ashok Kumar Agrawal
r_ﬁ_: by =+ Chairman Cum Managing Direct
— e ((DIN: 00793152)
CA V. K. Gupia I
Partner B
Membership Number - 407189 pkit Agarwal
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375 | y CEQ cum| |Fhole Time Director
Place: Jaipur B 11 _  (DAV: 00793035)
Duted: 20th May, 2025 1 I

RMC Switchgear Limited Page 175




' RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED LBl
r[‘JN LEEHIRJ!PDJP.' CO08698)

NOTLS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARC!I 2025

| Ngte .'lg' ANALYTICAL RATIOS
The I'nlnwlng are analytical ratios for the yenr ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Asat As at %o Reasons of variation in excess
SLNo. Ratio Name Numerator Denominator 310328 | 31.0324 | Variance 25% in the ratio
a__|Current Ratio Current assets g 1.52 1.64 -1.19% NA
Due to reduction in debt and
b [Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shn;i-::id:fs 0.45 0.83 -46.13% |increase in profitability, the ratio|
Ry has improved
Earning Due to improved profitability
¢ |Debt Service Coverage Ratio available for Debt service 3.76 2.11 78.62% |and reducing debt, the ratio
deblt service has shown the improvement
The ratio has improved due 1o a
Net Profit after AWII].EE Slgﬂll_wﬂ-nl increase in net Pmﬁl.
d  |Return On Equity (ROE) taxes-Preference | o otders | 37.59% | 28.06% | 33.98% |which outpaced the growth in
Dividend (if Equity avernge sharcholder’s equity.
any)
Due to increase in turnover and
; Cost of goods Average . reduction in inventory levels,
e |Inventory Turnover Ratio sold nrin] Immlf:;_ 17.11 12.90 32.64% company  achieved  better
wrnover of inventory
Avernge NA
f |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio | Net Credit Sales nccounts 2.65 232 14.20%
receivable
. = Increase in  Trade Creditors
g [Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Aaptia “";‘:gﬂ"m'cf‘ie 475 640 | -25.78% |payble has resulted in the
y reduced creditor tumover
h |Met Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working Capital 426 3.53 20.41% NA
i |Met Profit Ratio Met Profit Net sales 9.89% 8.62% 14.67% NA
Eaming before Capital NA
j  |Return On Capital Employed interest and =t 31.56% 26.93% 17.17%
Employed
laxes
Income Time weighted Not Not Not NA
k |Return On Investment generated from average Applicable | Applicable | Applicable
investments investments
[Fg— S — I | I | ke —s o
As per our separate report of even date | - | _For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
| For Rakesh Ashok & Company | | [V | RMC Switchgears Limited i
Chartered Accowntams | [ | il
FRN 011273C Rl | ] ol
R | T AVAS | = L Ashok Knmnr Agarwul -
= T 14 R Chairman Cum Managing Director
| : | 2 & 74 o (DIN: 0793152) - -
| CAY. K. Gupta : i L a -
Pariner - s L - | =
Membership Number : 407189 - ] AAhkit Agarwal
UDIN: 25407189BMGXPG6375 | _ CEO cum Whole Time Director — =
Place: Juipur | i  (KIN: 00793035)
Dated: 20th May, 2025 i
|
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting
(hereinafter referred to as "AGM/Meeting”) of the Members
of RMC Switchgears Limited (“the Company”) will be held on
Friday, the 26th day of September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. (IST")
through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM]) at corporate office of the company situated at B-11
(B&C) Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur-302017 Rajasthan, India
to transact the following business:.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2025 together with the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b] the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2025 together with the report of Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akhilesh
Kumar Jain (DIN: 03466588), who is liable to retire
by rotation

To appoint a Director, in place of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Jain
(DIN: 03466588), who is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment of Mr. Anil Jain (DIN: 07575312) as an
Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
149,150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), and pursuant to relevant provisions of
Articles of Association of the Company and based on
the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company,
Mr. Anil Jain (DIN: 07575312), who was appointed as
an Additional Director of the Company in Independent
Category w.e.f 20th May, 2025 in terms of Section 161(1)
of the Act and whose term of office expires at this Annual
General Meeting, and in respect of whom the Company
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has received a Notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act from a member proposing his candidature for the
office of Director of the company and from whom the
Company has received a declaration that he meets the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, be and is hereby appointed as Non-executive
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 3
years commencing from 20th May, 2025 to 19th May,
2028 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or
expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise
in this regard.”

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta (DIN:
01591373) as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”] and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
and pursuant to relevant provisions of Articles of
Association of the Company and on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors, Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta (DIN:
01591373), who was appointed as an Independent
Director in the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 25th September, 2020 for a term of five years and
who is eligible for re-appointment and has given consent
and declaration to act as an Independent Director, and
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice
in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office
for a second term of five consecutive years commencing
from 17th July, 2025 to 16th July, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or
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expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise
in this regard.”

Re-appointment of Mrs. Krati Agarwal (DIN: 08789232)
as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the
Companies [(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
and pursuant to relevant provisions of Articles of
Association of the Company and on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors, Mrs. Krati Agarwal (DIN: 08789232),
who was appointed as an Independent Director in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th
September, 2020 for a term of five years and who is
eligible for re-appointment and has given consent and
declaration to act as an Independent Director, and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office
for a second term of five consecutive years commencing
from 17th July, 2025 to 16th July, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or
expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected therewith orincidental thereto and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise
in this regard.”

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the
financial year 2025-26

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),
the payment of remuneration of Rs. 30,000/~ (Rupees
Thirty Thousand Only) plus GST and re-imbursement of
actual out of pocket expenses to M/s. Deepak Mittal &
Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003076),
who were appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company as “Cost Auditors” on the recommendation of
Audit Committee to conduct the audit of the cost records
maintained by the Company for the financial year 2025-
26, be and is hereby ratified and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or
expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected therewith orincidental thereto and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise
in this regard.”

To appoint M/s V.M & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuanttothe provisionsofSection 204
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies [Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules,
2014, (including any statutory modification(s),
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for
the time being in force) and other rules, guidelines and
circulars issued in this regard, from time to time and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. V. M.
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Jaipur
(Firm Registration No. P1984RJ039200 and Peer Review
Certificate No.: 5447/2024) be and is hereby appointed as
Secretarial Auditors of the Company to hold office for 5
(five) consecutive years commencing from April 01, 2025
to March 31, 2030 at an annual audit fee as mentioned
in the explanatory statement annexed hereto, with an
authority to the Board of Directors to revise the terms
and conditions of appointment, including any increase in
remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may
be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditors.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or
expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected therewith orincidental thereto and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise
in this regard.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited

Ashok Kumar Agarwal Date: 30.08.2025
Chairman and Managing Director Place: Jaipur
DIN: 00793152

Registered Office: Khasra No.-163,164, Village-Badodiya,
Tehsil- Kotkhawda, Jaipur-303908Rajasthan, India

Notes:

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the rules made
thereunder which sets out material facts in respect of
the special business to be transacted at the AGM as set
out under Item No. 3 to 7 is annexed hereto. The details
as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Clause 1.2.5 of
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-27)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
("ICSI") in respect of Directors seeking appointment /re-
appointment at this AGM are also annexed hereto.

2. The 31st AGM is convened through VC / r OAVM pursuant
to General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19,
2024 and earlier circulars issued in this regard by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to
as "MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 and
earlier circulars issued in this regard by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as
“SEBI Circulars”] which permit the companies to hold
AGM/EGM through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of members at a common venue . The deemed
venue for the 31st AGM shall be the Corporate Office
of the Company i.e. B-11(B&C) Malviya Industrial Area,
Jaipur-302017 Rajasthan, India. Since the AGM is being
held through VC/ OAVM facility, the route map is not
annexed in this Notice.

3. In compliance with the aforesaid Circulars, the Notice
of the 31st AGM along with the Annual Report for
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the financial year 2024-25 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose name appear
in the Register of Members/List of Beneficial Owners,
as received from the Depositories as on 2nd September,
2025 and whose email addresses are registered with
the company/ depositories/RTA. Members who wish to
receive a physical copy of the Integrated Annual Report
for FY 2024-25 may request the same by sending an
e-mail to cs@rmcindia.in mentioning their Folio No./
DP ID and Client ID. Further, in terms of Regulation
36(1](b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for those Members
whose e-mail addresses are not registered, a letter
providing the web-link (including the exact path where
the complete details of the Annual Report are available)
is being sent at their registered address. The Notice of
AGM and the Annual Report are also made available
on the Company’s website at www.rmcindia.in, on the
website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this 31st AGM. Therefore,
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to
this Notice.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the AGM by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed
to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In case of joint holders attending the AGM only such joint
holder whose name appears as the first holder in the
order of names as per the Register of Members of the
company will be entitled to vote, provided the votes are
not already cast by remote e-voting by the first holder.
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10.

11.

Institutional Investors who are Members of the Company
are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through
VC/OAVM facility. Corporate Members and other non-
individual Members intending to appoint their authorized
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and vote thereat through remote e-voting or e-voting
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board
Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authorization Letter to
the Scrutinizer by e-mail at cs.vmandafdgmail.com ,
with a copy marked to the Company at esfdrmcindia.in.
Institutional Shareholders can also upload their Board
Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authorization Letter, etc.,
on the e-voting website of CDSL by logging in to www.
evotingindia.com and clicking on the “Upload Board
Resolution / Authority Letter” option under the “e-voting”
tab.

Members wishing to claim dividends that remain
unclaimed are requested to correspond with the
Company or the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent (RTA). Members may kindly note that the amount
of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period
of seven consecutive years from the date of transfer to
the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account is required to
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) pursuant to Section 124 of the Act. Further,
the equity shares on which dividends have not been
claimed for seven consecutive years or more will also
be transferred to the IEPF Authority in accordance with
the provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with the
applicable IEPF Rules.

Members are requested to update/intimate changes,
if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email
address, telephone/mobile  numbers, Permanent
Account Number (PAN), mandates, power of attorney
, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch
details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code,
etc.

a. For shares held in electronic form: to their

Depository Participants ("DPs”)

b. For shares held in physical form: to the Company/
RTA in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms
pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/PoD/P/CIR/2025/91 dated 23rd June, 2025

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding
shares in physical form may file their nomination in the
prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar &

12.

13.

14.

15.

» NOTES

Share Transfer Agent (RTA). In respect of shares held in
dematerialized form, the nomination may be filed with
the respective Depository Participant (DP).

If any Member desires to cancel/ vary/ opt out of the
earlier nomination, he/she may do so by submitting the
prescribed Form SH-14 or Form ISR-3, as the case may
be to the Company’s RTAin case of physical shareholding,
and to the respective DP in case of demat shareholding.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations
as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from
1st April, 2019. Further’, transmission and transposition
of securities shall be effected only in dematerialized
form. Hence, the Members holdings shares in physical
form are requested to consider converting their
holdings in the dematerialized form. The Members
who are desirous to convert their physical holdings into
dematerialized form. Members can contact the company
for assistance in this regard.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of
the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements
in which the directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically
for inspection by the members during the AGM. All
documents referred to in the Notice and Directors’
Report will also be available for inspection in electronic
form without any fee by the Members from the date of
Circulation of this Notice upto the date of 31st AGM i.e
26th September, 2025. Members desirous of inspecting
the said Registers are requested to send their request
in writing from their registered e-mail address to cs@d
rmcindia.in.

The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies along
with the related detailed information are available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
and at the respective subsidiary companies. Copies
thereof shall be made available to the Shareholders of
the Company and its subsidiaries upon request. The
said documents are also available on the website of the
Company at www.rmcindia.in.

Members can submit questions in advance with regards
to the financial statements or any other matter to be
asked at the 31st AGM, from their registered email
address, mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID and
mobile number, to reach the company’s email address
at cs@rmcindia.in in advance atleast 10 (ten) days prior
to the meeting. Such questions by the Members shall be
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16.

17.

18.

taken up during the meeting and replied by the Company
suitably.

Further, Members who would like to ask questions during
the AGM with regards to the financial statements or any
other matter to be placed at the AGM, need to register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from
their registered email address mentioning their name,
DP ID and Client ID and mobile number, to reach the
company’s email address at csdrmcindia.in at least 10
(ten) days prior to the meeting. Those Members who have
registered themselves as a speaker shall only be allowed
to speak/ask questions during the AGM, depending upon
the availability of time.

The Members / investors may send their complaints or
queries, if any, to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer
Agent (RTA) at rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com or to
the Company at cs@rmcindia.in.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Manoj
Maheshwari (FCS 3355, CP 1971), Practicing Company
Secretary, as the Scrutinizer and failing him, Ms. Priyanka
Agarwal (FCS 11138, CP 15021), Practicing Company
Secretary, as the Alternate Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the
voting at the 31st AGM and the remote e-voting process
in, a fair and transparent manner.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS.

. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act,
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
in accordance with the applicable MCA Circulars,
the Company is providing to its Members the facility
to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions
set out in the Notice of AGM by electronic means.
For this purpose, the Company has entered into
an arrangement with Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-voting
agency. Members who have cast their votes by
remote e-voting prior to the Meeting may attend the
Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their votes
again. The instructions for e-voting are annexed to
the Notice

e The remote e-voting period shall commence on
23rd September, 2025, 9.00 A.M. (IST) and ends on
25th September, 2025, 5.00 P.M. (IST)]. During this
period, Members holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

» NOTES

date of 19th September, 2025 may cast their votes
electronically. The remote e-voting facility shall be
disabled thereafter by CDSL.

e Members will be provided with the facility for voting
through an electronic voting system during the
VC/OAVM proceedings at the AGM and Members
participating at the AGM, who have not already cast
their vote by remote e-Voting, will be eligible to
exercise their right to vote during such proceedings
of the AGM. Members who have cast their vote
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM will also be
eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

e  The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion
to their shareholding in the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 19th
September, 2025 as per the Register of Members/
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories
and the RTA. Once the vote on a resolution is cast
by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently. A person who is not a
shareholder as on the cut-off date should treat this
notice for information purpose only.

e Only those Members whose names appear in the
Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as on the
cut-off date shall be entitled to avail the facility of
remote e-voting or e-voting at the AGM.

e The final results including votes cast during the
AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting
shall be declared within 2 working days from the
conclusion of the meeting. The final results along
with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on
the Company’'s website - www.rmcindia.in, on the
website of BSE Limited (www.bseindia.com), and
on the website of CDSL (www.evotingindia.com)
immediately after the result is declared by the
Chairman.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 23rd
September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends Thursday, 25th
September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. 19th September, 2025, may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be
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in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 13th
September, 2025.

How do | vote electronically using CDSL e-Voting
system?

The way to vote electronically on CSDL e-Voting system
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to CDSL e-Voting system

Al

(i)

Login  method for e-Voting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method
for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat
mode CDSL/ NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders

1) Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL Depository

Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi /
Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option
will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication.
The users to login to Easi / Easiest are
requested to visit cdsl website www.
cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab.

2)  After successful login the Easi / Easiest
user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where
the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your

2)

» NOTES

vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there is also
links provided to access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that
the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3] If the user is not registered for Easi/
Easiest, option to register is available
at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and
click on login & New System Myeasi Tab
and then click on registration option.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access
e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate
the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication,
userwill be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also
able to directly access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL Depository

Login Method

1) If you are already registered for NSDL
IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL: https://
eservices. nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Services is launched, click
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will
be able to see e-Voting services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during
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3]

the meeting.

2] If the user is not registered for IDeAS
e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for 1DeAS “Portal or
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg. jsp

3)  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl. com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system
is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/0OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in
demat mode) login through their Depository
Participants (DP)

Login Method

You can also login using the login credentials
of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/
CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to
retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e.
CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting(dcdslindia. com or
contact at toll free No. 1800 2109911

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode with NSDL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting(dnsdl.co.in or call at : 022 -
4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case
of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in
demat mode.

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in
Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the
e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2)  Click on “Shareholders” module.
3)  Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders
in Physical

holding shares
Form should enter
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5]

6)

(ii)

(iii)

Folio Number registered with the
Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as
displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form
and had logged on to www.evotingindia.
com and voted on an earlier e-voting of
any company, then your existing password
is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the
steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than
individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric
*PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders
as well as physical shareholders])

e  Shareholders who have not updated
their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested
to use the sequence number sent by
Company/RTA or contact Company/
RTA.

Dividend Bank Details OR Date of
Birth (DOB)  Enter the Dividend
Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/
mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
demat account or in the company
records in order to login.

o If both the details are not recorded
with the depository or company,
please enter the member id / folio
number in the Dividend Bank details
field.

After entering these details appropriately,
click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical
form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders
holding shares in demat form will now
reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

» NOTES

field. Kindly note that this password is
to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to
vote, provided that company opts for
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in
physical form, the details can be used
only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant
<Company Name> on which you choose
to vote.

On the voting page, you will see
“RESOLUTION  DESCRIPTION"  and
against the same the option "YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK"
if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(viii) After selecting the resolution, you have

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

decided to vote on, click on “"SUBMIT".
A confirmation box will be displayed. If
you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“0OK", else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL" and accordingly modify your
vote.

Once you "CONFIRM” your vote on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast
by clicking on “Click here to print” option
on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten
the login password then Enter the User ID
and the image verification code and click
on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.
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(xii) There is also an optional provision to

Additional Facility for Non -

upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which
will be made available to scrutinizer for
verification.

Individual

Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote
Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders [i.e. other
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves
in the "Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting(@
cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a
Compliance User should be created
using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will
be mapped automatically & can be delink
in case of any wrong mapping.

Itis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the
Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA] which they have issued in favour of
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded
in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders
are required mandatory to send the

relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly

authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz; cs@
rmcindia.in (designated email address
by company), if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same. INSTRUCTIONS FOR
SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/
EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
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The procedure for attending meeting
& e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM
is same as the instructions mentioned
above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting
will be available where the EVSN
of Company will be displayed after
successful login as per the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through
Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend
the meeting. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join
the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for
better experience.

Further shareholders will be required
to allow Camera and use Internet with
a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any
kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express
their views/ask questions during the
meeting may register themselves as
a speaker by sending their request in
advance atleast 4 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at (company email id). The
shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may
send their queries in advance 7 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at (company email id).
These queries will be replied to by the
company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered
themselves as a speaker will only be
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allowed to express their views/ask

questions during the meeting.

e  Onlythose shareholders, who are present
inthe AGM/ EGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and
are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system available during the EGM/ AGM.

J If any Votes are cast by the shareholders
through the e-voting available during the
EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders
have not participated in the meeting
through VC/OAVM facility, then the
votes cast by such shareholders may
be considered invalid as the facility of
e-voting during the meeting is available
only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/
MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/
DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned

» NOTES

copy of the share certificate (front and back], PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id
& mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP)

3. ForIndividual Demat shareholders - Please update your
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting &
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM
& e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email to helpdesk.evoting(dcdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800 21 09911

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by
electronic means may be addressed to Mr.RakeshDalvi,
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East], Mumbai -
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting(@ cdslindia.com
or call toll free no. 1800 21 09911.
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED

NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102
of the Companies Act, 2013

The following statement sets out the material facts concerning
the special business mentioned in the accompanying notice to
be transacted at the meeting.

ITEM NO. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), based on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ("NRC”) and pursuant to the provisions of Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”] read with the
Articles of Association of the Company, at its meeting held
on 20th May, 2025, approved the appointment of Mr. Anil Jain
(DIN: 07575312) as an Additional Director in the category of
Independent Director of the Company

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Anil
Jain shall hold office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for appointment as an Independent
Director.

Mr. AnilJain had qualified B.E. (Hons.) in Electrical Engineering,
MNIT Jaipur and having an experience of over 43 years in the
power sector Anil Jain is a veteran power sector professional
with over four decades of experience spanning generation,
transmission, distribution, and regulatory functions. He
began his career at NTPC in 1981 and played a pivotal role in
the growth of POWERGRID, contributing to its emergence as
a leading global transmission utility. He later held leadership
roles at UP Power Transmission Corporation Ltd (UPPTCL],
where he led major transmission initiatives including the
Rs. 5,000 crore Green Energy Corridor-Il project. From 2022
to 2025, he served as Executive Director (Engineering) and
(Tariff) at Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission, overseeing
regulatory alignment, CAPEX evaluation, tariff orders, and
grid planning. Anil Jain has been actively involved in several
national-level reforms and policy initiatives, with expertise
in project planning, execution, commercial operations, and
strategic growth in the power sector.

Considering the vast experience of Mr. Anil Jain, the Board
on the recommendation of NRC has determined that his
appointment would be beneficial to the Company. The
Company has also received a notice in writing under the
provisions of Section 160 of the Act, from a Member proposing
the candidature of Mr. Anil Jain for the office of Director of the
Company.

Mr. Anil Jain has given his consent to act as a Director of
the Company and submitted the following declarations and
confirmations:

e  That he meets the criteria of independence as provided
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in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations;

e That he is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director under the provisions of Section 164 of the Act;

e That he is not debarred from holding the office of
director by virtue of any order passed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India or any other such authority;

e That he has complied with the requirements of Rule 6(1)
and 6(2) of the Companies [Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICAJ;

e That he is not aware of any circumstances or situations
which exist or may reasonably be anticipated that could
impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties as an
Independent Director of the Company.

Additional Details of Mr.Anil Jain, pursuant to Regulation 36(3)
of SEBI Listing Regulations and Clause 1.2.5 of SS-2 issued
by the ICSI, are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Anil Jain is a person of
integrity, fulfills the conditions for appointment as an
Independent director specified in the Act and is independent
of the management of the company.

In accordance with the recommendations of the NRC the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th August, 2025,
has considered and recommended for the approval of the
Members, the appointment of Mr. Anil Jain as an Independent
Director of the Company for a term of 3 (three] consecutive
years, commencing from 20th May, 2025 to 19th May, 2028
(both days inclusive), not liable to retire by rotation.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 150(2) read with
Section 152(2) of the Act, appointment of an Independent
Director requires approval of Members of the company in a
general meeting.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution as
set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice for approval
by the shareholders.

Interest of Directors and KMP:

Except for Mr. Anil Jain (being the appointee) and/or his
relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice.



CORPORATE REVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTICE

ITEM NO. 4:

The members are informed that Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta
was first appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 25.09.2020, for a term of five (5] consecutive years
in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Articles of Association
of the Company.

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director
can hold office for a term of up to five consecutive years
on the Board of a company, and he / she is eligible for re-
appointment for an additional term of up to five consecutive
years, on passing of a special resolution by the company.

As per the provisions of Schedule IV of the Act, the re-
appointment of an Independent Director shall be made on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation. Accordingly, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") conducted
the performance evaluation of Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta
and concluded that the continued association of Mr. Gupta
would be beneficial to the Company, given his professional
experience, expertise, and knowledge in relevant areas and
recommended his re-appointment for second tenure of five (5)
consecutive years to the Board.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 15th July,
2025, has approved and recommended the re-appointment
of Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta as an Independent Director
of the Company for second term of 5 (Five) years effective
from 17th July, 2025 to 16th July, 2030 (both days inclusive],
for the approval of the Members and he shall not be liable
to retire by rotation during his tenure as an Independent
Director. Additionally, a notice in writing under section 160
of the Act proposing his candidature for re-appointment as
an Independent Director of Company has been duly received
from member

Mr. Gupta has given his consent to act as a Director of the
Company and submitted the following declarations and
confirmations:

e Thathe meets the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

e That he is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director under the provisions of Section 164 of the Act.

e That he is not debarred from holding the office of
director by virtue of any order passed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other such
authority.

» NOTES

e That he has complied with the requirements of Rule 6(1)
and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

e  That he is not aware of any circumstances or situations
which exist or may reasonably be anticipated that could
impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties as an
Independent Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Gupta is a person of integrity,
fulfills the conditions specified in the Act for re-appointment
as an Independent Director and is independent of the
management.

Abrief profile of Mr. Gupta along with other details, as required
under Secretarial Standard-2 and Regulation 36(3) of SEBI
Listing Regulations, is annexed to this Notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of the Special
Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying notice
for approval by the shareholders. .

Interest of Directors and KMP:

Exceptfor Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Gupta (being the appointee) and/
or his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company, and their respective relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 5:

The members are informed that Mrs. Krati Agarwal was
first appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
25.09.2020, foraterm offive (5) consecutive yearsinaccordance
with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and the Articles of Association of the Company.

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director
can hold office for a term of up to five consecutive years
on the Board of a company, and he / she is eligible for re-
appointment for an additional term of up to five consecutive
years, on passing of a special resolution by the company.

As per the provisions of Schedule IV of the Act, the re-
appointment of an Independent Director shall be made on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation. Accordingly,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("“NRC")
conducted the performance evaluation of Mrs. Agarwal and
concluded that the continued association of Mrs. Agarwal
would be beneficial to the Company, given her professional
experience, expertise, and knowledge in relevant areas and
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recommended her re-appointment for second tenure of five
(5) consecutive years to the Board.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 15th July, 2025,
has approved and recommended the re-appointment of Mrs.
Krati Agarwal as an Independent Director of the Company for
second term of 5 (Five) years effective from 17th July, 2025
to 16th July, 2030 (both days inclusive), for the approval of
the Members and she shall not be liable to retire by rotation
during her tenure as an Independent Director. Additionally, a
notice in writing under section 160 of the Act proposing her
candidature for re-appointment as an Independent Director of
Company has been duly received from member

Mrs. Agarwal has given her consent to act as a Director of
the Company and submitted the following declarations and
confirmations:

e Thatshemeetsthecriteriaofindependenceasprescribed
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

e That she is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director under the provisions of Section 164 of the Act.

e That she is not debarred from holding the office of
director by virtue of any order passed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other such
authority.

e Thatshe has complied with the requirements of Rule 6(1)
and 6(2) of the Companies [Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA].

e  That she is not aware of any circumstances or situations
which exist or may reasonably be anticipated that could
impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties as an
Independent Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Agarwal is a person of
integrity, fulfills the conditions specified in the Act for re-
appointment as an Independent Director and is independent
of the management.

A brief profile of Mrs. Agarwal along with other details, as
required under Secretarial Standard-2 and Regulation 36(3)
of SEBI Listing Regulations, is annexed to this Notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of the Special
Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying notice
for approval by the shareholders.
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Interest of Directors and KMP:

Except for Mrs. Krati Agarwal (being the appointee) and/or
her relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company, and their respective relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 6:

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. Deepak
Mittal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003076)
as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records
of the Company at a remuneration of * 30,000/- (Rupees
Thirty Thousand only) plus re- imbursement of out of pocket
expenses for the financial year 2025-26.

As per Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 read with Section 148 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013, the
remuneration recommended by the Audit Committee shall
be considered and approved by the Board of Directors and
ratified subsequently by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought through
Ordinary Resolution for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2025- 26.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of an Ordinary
Resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying notice
for approval by the shareholders.

Interest of Directors and KMP:

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out
at Iltem No. 6 of the notice.

ITEM NO. 7:

In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the
Act”), every listed company and certain prescribed class of
companies are required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report
issued by a Company Secretary in practice, with their Board's
Report prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act.

Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on
04.07.2025, approved and recommended for the approval of
the members, the appointment of M/s V.M. & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors
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of the Company for 5 (five] consecutive years, commencing
from April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030. Though, the Act
does not mandate obtaining members’ approval for such an
appointment, as a measure of good governance, the Board is
seeking the approval of the members of the Company.

It is pertinent to note that while considering the appointment
of M/s V.M. & Associates, the Board of Directors and the
Audit Committee considered several factors, including the
firm’s technical expertise, professional competence, industry
knowledge and ability to navigate a dynamic and regulated
business environment. Based on this evaluation, M/s V.M. &
Associates was found to be suitably qualified to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company effectively.

Brief Profile of the Secretarial Auditor:

M/s V.M. & Associates (Firm Registration No.: P1984RJ039200
and Peer Review Certificate No.: 5447/2024) ("VM”/ “The
firm”) is a leading firm of Practicing Company Secretaries
with over three decades of rich and diverse professional
experience. Renowned for its commitment to excellence,
the Firm specializes in Secretarial Audits, Due Diligence,
IPOs and provides a comprehensive range of advisory,
representation and compliance services under Company
Law, SEBI Regulations, FEMA Regulations, RBI Directions,
Mergers & Acquisitions, amongst others.

Over the years, VM has successfully catered to clients across
a broad spectrum of industries including Banking, Financial
Services, Information Technology, Leather, Textiles, Mining,
Wire & Cables, Stock Broking, Education, Tourism, Real
Estate, FMCG etc.

Backed by a dedicated and highly skilled team of professionals,
VM is committed to meeting the evolving expectations of the
corporate sector, while upholding the highest standards of
corporate governance and professional integrity.

» NOTES

M/s V.M. & Associates shall be paid an annual fee of Rs.
5,00,000 /- (Rupees Five Lakhs Only) plus applicable taxes
and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred at
actuals, for conducting the Secretarial Audit of the Company
and for providing non-audit services for the FY 2025-26.
Further, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation
of Audit Committee, shall be authorized to revise the terms
and conditions of appointment, including any increase in
remuneration for the remaining duration of the term, in such
manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with
the Secretarial Auditors.

M/s V.M. & Associates has given its consent to act as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company and has provided the
requisite consent-cum-eligibility letter, confirming that
the proposed appointment, if made, will be within the limit
specified by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India
and in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the passing
of an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 7 of the
accompanying Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Interest of Directors and KMP:

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives are in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out
at item no. 7 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For RMC Switchgears Limited
Ashok Kumar Agarwal

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00793152

Date: 30.08.2025
Place: Jaipur

Registered Office: Khasra No.-163,164, Village-Badodiya,
Tehsil- Kotkhawda, Jaipur-303908Rajasthan, India
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Safety Values

RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED
CIN: L25111RJ1994PLC008698
Registered Office: Khasra NO.-163,164, Village- Badodiya, Tehsil-
Kotkhawda,Jaipur,Rajasthan, India-303908
Corporate Office: B-11 ( B&C) Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur ,Rajasthan, India- 302017
Tel: +91-141 4110060/61 | E-mail: cs@rmcindia.in|
Website: www.rmcindia.in

Date: 04.09.2025

To,
The Shareholder

Subject: RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED- Integrated Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25
Dear Shareholder,

Pursuant to Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended, we wish to inform you that RMC Switchgears Limited for the financial year 2024—25, along with the Notice of
the 31t Annual General Meeting (AGM), is available on website www.rmcindia.in and at the website of Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Central Depository Securities Limited (“CDSL”) at
www.evotingindia.com.

As per Depository/Bank’s records, your email address is not registered. Accordingly, we are providing below the web-
link, including the exact path, where the Annual Report of the Company is available for your ease of viewing:

Web-Link to Annual Report: https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=705

Path: Home > Investors > Annual Reports

You may access/download the Annual Report from the above link/path. If you wish to receive a physical copy of the
Annual Report, you may request the same by writing to Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) as per
details mentioned below:

Name: MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)
Address: C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083.
Email id: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

The Members are requested to register the email address with their respective Depository Participant (in case of demat
holdings) or with RTA (in case of physical holders) to receive all future communications electronically, thereby
contributing to a greener environment.

Thank you for your continued support.

Yours faithfully,
For RMCSwitchgears Limited

Sd/-
Shivani Bairathi
Company Secretary


http://www.rmcindia.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
https://www.rmcindia.in/headerlinks.php?content=705
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com
http://www.rmcindia.in/

	01 RMC AR 2025 Front 
	02 FINAL RMC Board Report 2024-25 Cleaned (Bhushan)
	Directors’ Report for FY2025
	Changes in Company Secretary & Compliance Officer during the Financial Year 2024–25 and thereafter upto the date of this report:
	Meetings of the Board of Directors
	Annexure-1

	Form AOC-1
	(Pursuant to first proviso to sub- section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries
	Part A – Subsidiaries
	(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
	(Amount in Lakhs)

	Annexure -2
	FORM NO. AOC -2
	(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.


	Annexure – 3
	Annexure- 4

	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
	Annexure -5
	Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
	[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
	Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
	CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
	Annexure -6

	Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
	Annexure -7- The statement containing names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and their other details, as required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
	Annexure -8
	Disclosure pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014
	and Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits
	and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in respect of
	Employee Stock Purchase Scheme 2023 (“ESPS–2023”).
	(A) Relevant disclosures with respect to ESPS-2023


	Annexure 9
	Disclosure pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 14 read with Part F of Schedule I of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in respect of Employee Stock O...
	(A) Relevant disclosures with respect to ESOP-2024
	B) Option movement during the year
	(C) Details of ESOPs granted to
	(D) Disclosure on fair valuation
	(E) Method and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options (as required under Part F of Schedule I of SEBI SBEB & SE Regulations, 2021)


	Annexure-10
	As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
	(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

	03 Standalone BS Revised RMC Switchgears 24 25
	04 Consolidated BS Revised RMC Switchgears 24 25

